
R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 1

1

MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regular Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, August 15, 
2023, beginning at 6:30 PM in the Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 South 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.

6:30 PM CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

ITEM #1
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACTION: Discussion - Consider approval of agenda as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #2
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 2, 2023.

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of minutes as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #3
SUBJECT: RECEIVE PRESENTATIONS OF THE TINLEY PARK BUSINESS 

SPOTLIGHT - PARK LAWN AND VINNY'S CLAM BAR - President Glotz 
and Clerk O’Connor

ACTION: Discussion: 
1.) Park Lawn encourages people with disabilities to discover their passion, 

take pride in their accomplishments, live more independently, and 
thrive.  The Tinley Park location opened recently at 17007 Oak Park 
Avenue.  Please join us in welcoming Matt Polson, Director of 
Community Day Services at Park Lawn.

2.) Vinny’s Clam Bar will be opening soon at 18202 South Harlem Avenue.  
We’re pleased to welcome Jeffrey Polak, General Manager of Vinny’s 
Clam Bar.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 2

2

ITEM #4
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPOINTING STEVE NEMECEK TO THE POSITION OF 

FOREMAN-STREETS DIVISION - President Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: Steve joined the Village’s Public Works Department seven (7) years 
ago.  He has gained valuable operational experience and shown leadership in all 
his duties in the Street Division.  Steve has made significate contributions to 
maintaining the sign department, takes great pride in in all his work, takes 
initiative with a positive attitude, and is willing to step outside of his comfort 
zone to take on challenges that will better himself, his co-workers, and the 
department.  His professional demeanor, his public relations communication 
skills, and ability to make educated decisions all make him a great candidate for 
this promotional opportunity. Consider a appointing Steve Nemecek to the 
position of Foreman-Streets Division effective August 16, 2023.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #5
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-088 APPROVING A 
PURCHASE OF TASERS FROM AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $34,754.20.

B. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-092 APPROVING A 
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
METRO POWER FOR THE EMERGENCY BACK-UP GENERATORS 
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,050.

C. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-093 APPROVING A 
JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION INC. FOR THE 
VILLAGE HALL BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDENSING UNIT 
REPLACEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,949.39.

D. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-094 APPROVING A 
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE POST 2 CHECK 
METER REPLACEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $79,036.10.

E. CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM THE ILLINOIS ARBORIST 
ASSOCIATION TO CONDUCT A RAFFLE ON TUESDAY, 
NOVEMBER 7, 2023, WITH THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE 
NOT TO EXCEED $2,500. WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN AT THE 
TINLEY PARK CONVENTION CENTER, 18451 CONVENTION 
CENTER DRIVE.



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 3

3

F. CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM INGALLS DEVELOPMENT 
FOUNDATION, ONE INGALLS DRIVE, HARVEY, ILLINOIS TO 
CONDUCT A RAFFLE SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2023, WITH 
THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE NOT TO EXCEED $1,500.  
WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN AT THE TINLEY PARK 
CONVENTION CENTER, 18451 CONVENTION CENTER DRIVE ON 
SEPTEMBER 9, 2023.

G. CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM PEOPLES ANIMAL WELFARE 
SOCIETY (P.A.W.S.), TO CONDUCT A RAFFLE THROUGH 
SUNDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2023, WITH THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF 
THE PRIZE NOT TO EXCEED $1,850. WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN 
AT P.A.W.S. 8301 191ST STREET.

H. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $3,725,831.75 AS LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD 
APPROVAL REPORTS DATED AUGUST 4 AND 11, 2023.

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of consent agenda items.

COMMENTS:  
 
 

ITEM #6
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-043 APPROVING AN 

ASSET PURCHASE AND RELOCATION AGREEMENT FOR TEEHAN’S 
IRISH BAR - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: As part of the Harmony Square development project, the Village 
wishes to preserve the historic nature of Teehan’s Irish Bar (17329) given its 
significance to the community. This Agreement grants the Village naming rights 
to Teehan’s Irish Bar following its closure and re-development. This item was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole held prior to this meeting. This 
Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #7
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-095 APPROVING AND 

AWARDING AN OAK PARK AVENUE SIGN GRANT TO HAWAII FLUID 
ART FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17200 OAK PARK AVENUE - 
Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: Hawaii Fluid Art is a new painting studio located in Downtown 
Tinley Park. David King and Patrice O’Toole will be installing new exterior 
wall signage that includes an aluminum wall sign and a projecting sign. The 
Sign Grant shall be in an amount not to exceed $3797.50 This item was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole held prior to this meeting. This 
Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 4

4

 
 

ITEM #8
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-044 GRANTING A 

VARIATION TO PERMIT A FENCE IN A SECONDARY FRONT YARD 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6648 174TH PLACE - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: The variation permits a 4-foot high open-style fence to encroach 
into the required 25-foot secondary front yard. The Plan Commission held a 
Public Hearing on August 3, 2023, and voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the 
Variation request in accordance with the plans and findings of fact in the Staff 
Report. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #9
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2023-O-045 GRANTING TWO 

VARIATIONS FROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR THE OAK PARK 
TOWNES TOWNHOME DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 17822-17828 
OAK PARK AVENUE - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner seeks the Variations to redevelop the property for 
construction of a thirty-one-unit townhome development within the NG (Legacy 
– Neighborhood General) zoning district. The Plan Commission held a Public 
Hearing on August 3, 2023, and voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the 
Variations in accordance with the listed plans and Findings of Fact in the Staff 
Report. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #10
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-090 APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF OAK PARK TOWNES SUBDIVISION 
FOR THE OAK PARK TOWNES DEVELOPMENT AT 17822-17828 OAK 
PARK AVENUE - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: The requested approval for the Final Plat of Oak Park Townes 
Subdivision was reviewed by the Plan Commission on August 3, 2023, and 
voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the Final Plat of Subdivision with a 
recommended condition. This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 5

5

ITEM #11
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-091 APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF VACATION OF RIGHT OF WAY FOR 
THE OAK PARK TOWNES DEVELOPMENT AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK 
AVENUE - Trustee Mahoney

ACTION: Discussion: The requested Final Plat of Vacation was reviewed by the Plan 
Commission on August 3, 2023, and voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the 
Final Plat with a recommended condition. This Resolution is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #12
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVING THE REJECTION OF ALL BIDS FOR THE 

179TH STREET WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Public Works is requesting to reject all bids received for the 179th 
Street Watermain Replacement.  Bids for the watermain on 179th Street from 
Oak Park Avenue to 66th Court were opened publicly on August 1, 2023.  The 
two bids received were well above the budgeted amount for the project by 
approximately $350,000. FY2024 funding carryover, plus additional funding to 
cover the cost of the project, will be requested for the FY2025 capital budget. 
Consider rejecting all bids for the 179th Street Watermain Replacement.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #13
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-096 APPROVING AN 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND M.E. 
SIMPSON CO., INC. FOR THE WATER SYSTEM ASSESSMENT 
PROGRAM - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approving this agreement with M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. in 
the amount of $226,557 for the Water Assessment Program.  This item was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. 
This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 6

6

ITEM #14
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-089 APPROVING AN 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND 
PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS - 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Consider awarding a contract to Primera Engineers, Inc. in the 
amount of $151,375.56.  This item was discussed at the Committee of the 
Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. This Resolution is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #15
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2023-R-097 APPROVING A JOB 

ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION INC. FOR THE PUBLIC SAFETY 
BUILDING BOILER REPLACEMENTS - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approving the JOC with Robe Construction Inc. in the 
amount of $128,552.06.  This item was discussed at the Committee of the 
Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. This Resolution is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #16
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM STAFF -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #17
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #18
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - A u g u s t  1 5 ,  2 0 2 3  | 7

7

ITEM #19
SUBJECT: ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS: 

A. DISCUSSION OF MINUTES OF MEETINGS LAWFULLY CLOSED
UNDER THIS ACT, WHETHER FOR PURPOSES OF APPROVAL BY
THE BODY OF THE MINUTES OR SEMI-ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE
MINUTES AS MANDATED BY SECTION 2.06.

B. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON
BEHALF OF THE PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED
AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR ADMINISTRATIVE
TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN
ACTION IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE
BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE RECORDED AND ENTERED
INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

C. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE
OF THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE
PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A PARTICULAR PARCEL
SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

D. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION,
DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC
EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR
THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A
COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC
BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY
TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

ADJOURNMENT



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                       August 2, 2023 1

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES,
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,

ILLINOIS, HELD AUGUST 2, 2023

The special meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the Council 
Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on 
Wednesday, August 2, 2023. President Glotz called this meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 

At this time President Glotz led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Clerk O’Connor called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following:

                       Village President: Michael W. Glotz         
Village Clerk: Nancy M. O’Connor

                        
Trustees: William P. Brady

William A. Brennan
Dennis P. Mahoney
Kenneth E. Shaw
Colleen M. Sullivan

Absent:                                   Michael G. Mueller
Also Present:                           
Village Manager: Patrick Carr 
Asst. Village Manager: Hannah Lipman
Village Attorney: Paul O’Grady

Motion was made by Trustee Shaw, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to approve the agenda as written or 
amended for this meeting. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. 
Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee Brady to approve and place on file the minutes 
of the regular Village Board Meeting held on July 18, 2023. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, 
Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mahoney, seconded by Trustee Shaw to consider approving the following 
Consent Agenda items:

A. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,534,257.09 AS 
LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED JULY 21, AND 28, 2023.

President Glotz asked if anyone from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items from the Consent 
Agenda. No items were removed or discussed. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from 
members of the public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. 
Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady to adopt and place on file ORDINANCE 
2023-O-042 APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE HARMONY SQUARE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (NORTH STREET AT OAK PARK AVENUE). As the Harmony 

Page | 8AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                       August 2, 2023 2

Square project continues to move forward, there have been a few requested changes to the Development 
Agreement. This amendment reduces the overall Tax Increment Financing (TIF) incentive amount due to an 
overall reduction in total project costs. This Ordinance was discussed at the Committee of the Whole held 
prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or 
public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. 
Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-086 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND THE LAKOTA GROUP FOR HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE. This 
agreement includes the scope of services that consists of Design Development and Construction Documents 
for the landscape architecture, and of Harmony Square and the surrounding streetscapes, as well as other 
downtown related design elements, such as pedestrian walkway connections. This item was discussed at the 
Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any 
comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, 
Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Shaw, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-087 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND R. C. WEGMAN / CULLEN CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT FOR HARMONY 
SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE. This agreement with R.C. Wegman and sub-consultant 
Cullen Construction Management to provide Owners Representation Consulting Services during the pre-
construction phase – Design Development and Construction Documents of the Harmony Square project and 
act as an extension of Tinley Park. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held 
prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or 
public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. 
Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-084 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE. This 
agreement includes the scope of services consisting of design of all building structures of Harmony Square, 
including the hospitality building located at the corner of Oak Park Avenue and North Street, the Harmony 
Square support and stage building located at the corner of Oak Park Avenue and 173rd Street, and the VIP 
building for concert viewing. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to 
this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board or public. There 
were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: 
Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-083 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. FOR HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS - DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE.
This agreement includes the scope of services that consists of Professional Engineering and Surveying 
Services for Harmony Square and surrounding area of public infrastructure improvements – roadway, water 
main, and manhole rehabilitation, as dated in the June 15, 2023, Professional Services Agreement. This item 

Page | 9AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                       August 2, 2023 3

was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if 
there were any comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: 
Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the 
motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-085 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. FOR HARMONY SQUARE 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS PHASE.  This agreement includes the scope of services that consists of site utilities and 
civil work for the Harmony Square Plaza and surrounding areas, dry utility relocation from overhead to 
underground, electrical and street lighting design within the project limits, and all required coordination as 
further described in the proposal dated July 26, 2023. This item was discussed at the Committee of the 
Whole meeting held prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members 
of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. 
Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to adopt and place on file 
ORDINANCE 2023-O-041 AMENDING TITLE IX, CHAPTER 91, SECTION 08, OF THE TINLEY 
PARK MUNICIPAL CODE - IMPOUNDMENT AND REDEMPTION FOR STRAY ANIMALS.  
This Ordinance amends the Village Code to allow all animal shelters in the community to set their own 
prices for the services they provide to the community. This item was discussed at the Committee of the
Whole held prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the 
Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: 
None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to adopt and place on file 
RESOLUTION 2023-R-082 AMENDING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND THE PEOPLE’S ANIMAL WELFARE SOCIETY (P.A.W.S) FOR 
IMPOUNDMENT POLICIES AND FEES.  This amendment to the agreement allows Community Service 
Officers to deliver stray animals to the P.A.W.S. facility, allow P.A.W.S. to set their own prices for 
impoundment fees, and allow P.A.W.S. to determine which payment methods they can accept. This item was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole held prior to this meeting. President Glotz asked if there were any 
comments from members of the Board or public. There were none. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, 
Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz declared the motion carried.

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Staff.  

Police Chief Walsh thanked the Village Board and Staff for attending the National Night Out on Tuesday, 
August 1, 2023.

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. 

Trustee Brady presented an overview of National Night Out. He stated that in his research of National Night 
Out, he discovered that that is a night to honor the Police Department. He noted that the Tinley Park Police 
Department has won nineteen (19) awards over the years for what has been put together. He mentioned this 
is a night to honor police agencies and not politics.

Page | 10AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                       August 2, 2023 4

Trustee Brady also noted that the Citizens Police Academy will be presenting its 12-week program from 
January 11 to March 28, 2024.  This program is for residents of Tinley Park and is free of charge.  
Applications will be available beginning Monday, August 7th at the Tinley Park Police Department. 

Trustee Sullivan stated that the National Night Out was a great event and thanked everyone involved in 
planning this event. 

Trustee Shaw concurred with Trustees Brady and Sullivan. He also noted that the Village has had many great 
events this summer and thanked everyone involved in presenting these events.  Trustee Shaw also stated his 
appreciation for the hard work that is being put into making Harmony Square happen. 

Trustee Brennan congratulated Police Chief Walsh and his staff for a great event at National Night Out. 

President Glotz concurred with the Board and thanked everyone involved in putting National Night Out 
together. He mentioned this is a night to honor police agencies and not politics. 

President Glotz stated the Village lost a great friend this past week. Trustee Shaw announced that former 
Interim Community Development Director Paula Wallrich passed away. Trustee Shaw commended Paula’s 
great work and stated the Village’s respect for Paula. 

President Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the public. There were none.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney, at 5:24 p.m. to adjourn to Executive 
Session to discuss the following:  

A. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR 
DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 
PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST 
AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY 
OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

B. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, 
INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A 
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

C. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE PUBLIC 
BODY. 

D. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON BEHALF OF THE 
PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN ACTION 
IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE 
RECORDED AND ENTERED INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President 
Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Shaw, seconded by Trustee Brady to adjourn the Village Board meeting at 5:46 p.m.  
Vote on roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Shaw, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Mueller. President Glotz 
declared the motion carried.

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that no 

Page | 11AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                                       August 2, 2023 5

discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item.

APPROVED:

_____________________________________
                     Village President

ATTEST:

_____________________________________
                Village Clerk

Page | 12AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



TINLEY PARK 
BUSINESS SPOTLIGHT 

President Glotz and 
Clerk O'Connor 

Page | 13AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

CONSIDER THE APPOINTMENT OF: 
 

STEVE NEMECEK  
FOREMAN-STREETS DIVISION 

 

 

President Glotz 

Page | 14AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 15AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 16AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-088

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PURCHASE BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. FOR TASERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,754.20

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 17AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-088

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PURCHASE BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
AND AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. FOR TASERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,754.20

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into a Purchase with Axon Enterprise, Inc., a true and correct copy of such 

being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Purchase be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Purchase” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Purchase Agreement, to be substantially 

in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Purchase. 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 18AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

QUOTE
AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. FOR TASERS 

Page | 19AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-088, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PURCHASE BETWEEN THE 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. FOR TASERS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $34,754.20,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

of Tinley Park on , 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 20AGENDA - 8/15/2023, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 3, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Jimmy Quinn, Facilities Superintendent

Subject: Emergency Back-Up Generators Annual Maintenance
Approve Renewal of Contract (Year 2 of 3)

_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented at The Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description: 
Public Works is requesting the approval of renewing the Service Contract Year 2 (two) of 3 (three) with Metro 
Power of Mokena, Illinois for the annual maintenance and inspections for 18 (eighteen) Village Emergency 
Back Up Generators.

Background:
Public Works is tasked with the proper upkeep of all Village Facilities Emergency Back Up Generators to 
minimize the effects of power loss from Com Ed. Continual routine preventative maintenance assures 
optimal system working conditions and conserves the life span of these vital Village owned types of 
equipment.
The Village has contracted with Metro Power the last 12 years and have found them to perform all contracted 
services satisfactory. 

Budget/Finance: Funding is budgeted and available in the approved FY24 Budget, Municipal Buildings Fund.
                                  
                                     Budget Available                                               $27,600
                                     Contract Amount                                               $24,050
                                     Difference – Under Budget                               $   3,550

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve Service contract renewal with Metro Power of Mokena, Illinois for $24,050.
2. Direct Staff as needed necessary.

     

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 21AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-092

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND METRO POWER FOR THE EMERGENCY BACK-UP GENERATORS 

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,050

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 22AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-092

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND METRO POWER FOR THE EMERGENCY BACK-UP GENERATORS ANNUAL 

MAINTENANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,050

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an agreement with Metro Power a true and correct copy of such 

Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 23AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AGREEMENT WITH METRO POWER
 EMERGENCY BACK-UP GENERATORS ANNUAL 

MAINTENANCE

Page | 24AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-092, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND METRO POWER FOR THE EMERGENCY BACK-

UP GENERATORS ANNUAL MAINTENANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,050,” which was 

adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 25AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 METRO POWER INC.
“SERVICE IS OUR SPECIALITY”

  
PLANNED MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This planned maintenance agreement is entered into by Metro Power, Inc. and the equipment owner/agent
named herein, to perform the services listed below. Metro Power, Inc. will perform periodic inspections on
all equipment listed.

Upon acceptance of this agreement, Metro Power, Inc. will render the services listed below on this
equipment at the annual rate listed on the attached quote. The equipment will be inspected at agreed
intervals during regular business hours (unless otherwise specified) each year this agreement is in effect.

These inspections will include:
Inspect entire equipment for any oil, water and fuel leaks.

Inspect exhaust system, air inlet system, and turbo chargers.
The entire equipment to be lubricated and oil changed if the running time is more than 50 hours, or a 
minimum of once per year.
Inspect condition and tension of all parts.
Inspect cooling system to include condition of coolant. hoses, radiator and inlet and outlet dampers.
Inspect fuel system to include main tank, day tank and day tank pump, all fuel lines and fittings.
Check and adjust rocker settings annually.
Check condition of batteries and battery charge rate.
Clean and refill air cleaner or change element as required.
Inspect generator control and engine wiring,
Inspect AC wiring at generator and automatic transfer switch(es) using infrared thermal probe.
Inspect remote annunciator.
Check all instruments for proper operation.
Instruct proper personnel, if such personnel are available and present at time of inspection, on
operation and upkeep procedures between inspections.
After all of the above, run generator set and conduct testing ( under load when practical),
Check automatic transfer switch(es) for proper operation to include logic, time delays & contacts
exercise cycle, and switching of power source.
Submit a report of this inspection to the owner, and advise of any further work required.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND REPAIR
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Any additional repairs, parts or services which are required will be brought to the attention of the customer.
Repairs will be made only after proper authorization is given to Metro Power, Inc.  Any additional repairs,
maintenance or services will be performed at current Metro Powers rates for labor.  Parts will be
supplied at the manufacturer's suggested list price. Emergency services between regular inspection visits
will be provided at Metro Powers current rates for labor. 

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Contract price includes materials, labor, travel time and mileage to perform the services listed above.
Contract includes oil, oil filters, fuel filters and coolant filters.

It is understood that this agreement does not include any parts or labor, other than those specifically
mentioned above. This agreement does not include expenses to repair damage caused by abuse, accident,
theft, acts of a third person, altering of equipment, or forces of nature. Metro Power shall not be
responsible for failure to render service for causes beyond its control. including strikes and labor disputes.

Either party may cancel contract for any reason at any time with thirty (30) days prior written notice. Metro Power 
warrants and agrees that all of its personnel performing services pursuant to this contract shall be trained for the 
services they perform and that all parts and materials installed pursuant hereto shall be new
and suitable for the use intended.

Page | 26AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



-
Manufacturer Model  Serial#
Various 8 Units  

         Also includes all related automatic transfer switches
                                                                                                
                  LIMITED WARRANTY POLICY OF  METRO POWER, INC.

1.  Parts and Materials
Metro Power does not warrant, either expressly or implied, any parts or material. The owner's sole remedy is 
the warranty of the manufacturer.

2.  Service, Repair and Workmanship
Owner understands and agrees that Metro Power is not responsible for special or consequential damages, 
including loss of time, injury to person or property or any other consequential damage, incidental or 
economic loss due to unit or equipment failure. Metro Power does agree to correct by repair or replacement 
any defects of material or workmanship installed under this Inspection Agreement which may develop under 
normal and proper use within thirty (30) days from installation, provided owner gives Metro Power written or 
verbal notice within forty eight (48) hours of such defects and inspection by Metro Power substantiates 
owner's claim. Such correction shall constitute a fulfillment of all obligations to the owner and shall constitute 
owners sole remedy.

Contract for: Village of Tinley Park Water & Sewer
16250 S Oak Park Avenue
Tinley Park, IL 60487

                      

This is a firm quote from Metro Power. Inc. and is guaranteed for the first year the contract is in effect on all 
equipment listed above.

This quote consists of (2) two visits per year on equipment listed above

Price Per Year for 8 Units @ $6525.00

2 Hour Loadbank on 7 Units @ $4250.00

4 Hour Loadbank on 1 Unit @ $1750.00

December 2023 – Full Service 
June 2024 – Inspection & Loadbanks

  

  Metro Power, Inc
Customer Signature  / Date                                                         Date 07/26/2023

Contact Information                 PLEASE PRINT         Phone – Cell - Fax   

Please sign and return to:        Metro Power Inc.
                                                    P.O. Box 1033
                                                    Mokena, IL 60487
                                                    Phone 708-342-1940   

  metropowerinc@yahoo.com         

Page | 27AGENDA - 8/15/2023, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 7, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Jimmy Quinn, Facilities Superintendent

Subject: Village Hall Building Department Condensing Unit Replacement
Approve Job Order Contract (JOC) With Robe Construction Inc.

_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description:  We are requesting authorization to replace the existing Condensing Unit at the Village 
Hall Building Department utilizing the Job Order Contracting (JOC) procurement method. Robe 
Construction Inc. is the awarded general contractor that will perform the work under an existing 
cooperative contract through the city of Naperville. This contract is for usage by other jurisdictions 
within Illinois pursuant Procurement #19013.

Background:  The existing Condensing Unit is 12 years old and has experienced several failures. This 
will be replaced with a new overall energy efficient Condensing Unit.

Budget/Finance:     Funding was budgeted and approved for $50,000.00 for FY2024 Capital Projects. 
Due to pricing changes for materials this project is over the original budgeted amount.

Contractor:                                               Location Proposal
Robe Construction Inc. Naperville, IL $58,949.39
                         
                    

                   
   Budget Available                            $ 50,000.00

                       Contract Amount                                                                      $ 58,949.39   
Difference Over Budget                                   $   8,949.39 
Using Capital HVAC (30-00-000-75004) to cover balance

Staff Direction Request:
1. Approve the JOC with Robe Construction Inc. in the amount of $58,949.39.
2. Direct staff as necessary.

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 28AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-093

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION, INC FOR THE VILLAGE 

HALL BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDENSING UNIT REPLACEMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $58,949.39

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 29AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R-093

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR THE VILLAGE HALL BUILDING 

DEPARTMENT CONDENSING UNIT REPLACEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,949.39

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with Robe Construction, Inc. a true and correct copy of 

such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 30AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) WITH ROBE 
CONSTRUCTION, INC 

VILLAGE HALL BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
CONDENSING UNIT REPLACEMENT

Page | 31AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-093, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT 

(JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

FOR THE VILLAGE HALL BUILDING DEPARTMENT CONDENSING UNIT 

REPLACEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,949.39,” which was adopted by the President and 

Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 32AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

SERVICE CONTRACT

This contract is by and between the Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois home-rule municipal 
corporation (the “Village”), and Robe Construction, Inc (the “Contractor”), for the project or work 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

1. In consideration of the compensation stated in paragraph 2, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by reference.  The express terms of this Contract shall take precedence 
and control over any term or provision of the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) that in any way 
conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter the terms of this Contract.

2. Except in the event of a duly authorized change order approved by the Village as provided 
in this Contract, and in consideration of the Contractor’s final completion of all work in 
conformity with this Contract, the Village shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed 
Fifty Eight Thousand, Nine Hundred Forty Nine and 39/100 (58,949.39). One Hundred 
Twenty Eight Thousand, Five Hundred Fifty Two and 06/100 Dollars(128,552.06). 
Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion of the work, the Contractor shall submit his 
application for payment to the Village, and the Village shall pay Contractor for the work 
performed no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the Village's receipt and 
the Village’s approval of the work and the application for payment.  No payment shall be 
made by the Village until the Contractor has submitted to the Village (i) a Contractor’s 
Affidavit listing all subcontractors and material suppliers utilized on the project and (ii) final 
waivers of lien from the Contractor, all subcontractors and all material suppliers.

3. No changes shall be made, nor will invoices for changes, alterations, modifications, 
deviations, or extra work or services be recognized or paid except upon the prior written 
order from authorized personnel of the Village.  The Contractor shall not execute change 
orders on behalf of the Village or otherwise alter the financial scope of the Project.

4. Written change orders may be approved by the Village Manager or his designee provided 
that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 2 of this Contract 
to more than $10,000.00.  Changes in excess of this amount must be approved by the Village 
Board prior to commencement of the services or work. If a requested change causes an 
increase or decrease in the cost of or time required for the performance of the 
contract, Contractor will agree to an equitable adjustment in the contract price or 
performance schedule, or both.  Neither party is obligated to comply with requested 
changes unless and until both parties execute a written change order. 

5. Time is of the essence on this Contract.  The Contractor shall complete all work under this 
Contract by the dates set forth below:

6. No “Notice to Proceed” may be given nor any work commenced until this Contract is fully 
executed and all exhibits and other attachments are completely filled out and attached hereto.

7. It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Contractor is an independent contractor 
retained for the above-mentioned purpose.  The Village shall not control the manner nor 
the means of the Contractor's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as 
described herein.  The term "subcontractor" shall mean and include only those hired by and 

Page | 33AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



having a direct contract with Contractor for performance of work on the Project.  The 
Village shall have no responsibility to any subcontractor employed by a Contractor for 
performance of work on the Project, and all subcontractors and material suppliers shall 
look exclusively to the Contractor for any payments due.  The Village will not be 
responsible for reporting or paying employment taxes or other similar levies that may be 
required by the United States Internal Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. 
Every subcontractor shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract as far as 
applicable to their work.  The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Village for the 
acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and shall ensure that any subcontractors perform 
in accordance with the requirements of this Contract.  Nothing contained herein shall create 
any contractual or employment relations between any subcontractor and the Village.  The 
Contractor is solely responsible for the safety procedures, programs and methods of its 
employees and agents and shall hold the Village harmless for any and all damages resulting 
from violations thereof.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State and 
local safety laws and regulations.

8. It is further agreed that the Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the 
Village, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, 
damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs, and attorneys’ fees, for injury to or death of any person or for 
damage to any property arising out of or in connection with the Contractor’s negligence 
under this Contract.  

9. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder 
and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the Village, its officers, agents, and 
employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, 
including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of any person and any 
loss of or damage to any property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out 
of, or in connection with the Contractor's  negligence in its work to be performed 
hereunder.  The Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage in an amount and from 
a carrier suitable to the Village, and the Village shall be named as an additional insured 
where required.  Certificates of Insurance are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

10. The Village is exempt from payment of state and local sales and use of taxes on labor and 
materials incorporated into the project.  If necessary, it is the Contractor's responsibility to 
obtain a sales tax permit, resale certificate, and exemption certificate that shall enable the 
Contractor to buy any materials to be incorporated into the project and then resale the 
aforementioned materials to the Village without paying the tax on the materials at the time 
of purchase.  In no event will the Village be liable for or pay any sales or use taxes incurred 
by the Contractor in performing the services under this contract.

11. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 
regulations, ordinances, and other laws, including but not limited to the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act (IRCA).  The Contractor may not knowingly obtain the labor or 
services of an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor, not the Village, must verify eligibility 
for employment as required by IRCA.

12. At any time, the Village may terminate this Contract for convenience, upon written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Contractor shall cease work immediately upon receipt of such notice.  
The Contractor shall be compensated for services performed and accepted by the Village up 
to the date of termination.

Page | 34AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



13. No waiver or deferral by either party of any term or condition of this Contract shall be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver or deferral of any other term or condition or subsequent 
wavier or deferral of the same term or condition.

14. This Contract may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by the 
parties.

15. This Contract and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval of Village.

16. The parties hereby state that they have read and understand the terms of this Contract and 
hereby agree to the conditions contained herein.

17. This Contract has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.  
The parties agree that performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Cook County, 
Illinois.

18. Contractor, its employees, associates or subcontractors shall perform all the work hereunder.  
Contractor agrees that all of its associates, employees, or subcontractors who work on this 
Project shall be fully qualified and competent to do the work described hereunder.  Contractor 
shall undertake the work and complete it in a timely manner.

19. If any provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 
the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  If a court of competent 
jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by 
limiting such provision it may become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be 
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

20. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Village and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  

21. This Contract will be effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
Contract fully executed.

22. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, if the work to be 
performed under this Contract is covered by said Act.

23. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Substance Abuse Prevention on Public 
Works Projects Act.

Page | 35AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATIONS BY CONTRACTOR

Affidavit of Compliance

Contractor and all subcontractors shall complete this Affidavit of Compliance (“Affidavit”) and 
submit supporting documentation as required pursuant to Responsible Bidder Requirements on 
Public Work Projects.  Contractor must submit this Affidavit and all related evidence with its bid.  
Contractor shall be responsible for providing this Affidavit to all subcontractors who will perform 
work on the project.  All subcontractors’ Affidavits and supporting documentation must be 
submitted no later than the date and time of the contract award.  Failure to comply with all 
submission requirements may result in a determination that the Contractor is not a responsible 
bidder.

For the remainder of this Affidavit, “Contractor” refers to the general contractor and all 
subcontractors.   Each item must be answered.  If the question is not applicable, answer “NA.”  If 
the answer is none, answer “none.”

The certifications set forth in this Affidavit and all documents attached hereto shall become a part 
of any contract awarded to the Contractor.  Furthermore, Contractor shall comply with these 
certifications during the term and/or performance of the contract. 
 

The undersigned ___________________________, as ______________________ and on behalf 
       (Name) (Title)

of _Robe Construction, Inc._ having been duly sworn under oath certifies that:
(Contractor)

Business Organization

The form of business organization of the Contractor is (check one):

__ Sole Proprietor or Partnership __ LLC
__ Corporation __ Independent Contractor (Individual)

If contractor/subcontractor is a corporation, indicate the state and the date of incorporation:

________________________________________________________________________

Authorized to do business in the State of Illinois: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached: ___________________________________

Federal Employer I.D. #: _____________________ 

Social Security # (if an individual or sole proprietor): _____________________

Page | 36AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Registered with Illinois Department of Revenue: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Registered with Illinois Department of Employment Security: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Tax liens or tax delinquencies

Disclosure of any federal, state or local tax liens or tax delinquencies against the contractor of any 
officers of the contractor in the last five (5) years Yes [ ]  No [ ]

“No” means “not applicable.”  If “yes,” describe lien/delinquencies and resolution: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

EOE Compliance

Contractor is in compliance with provisions of Section 2000e of Chapter 21, Title 42 of the United 
States Code and Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended by Executive Order No. 11375 
(known as the Equal Opportunity Employer provisions). Yes [ ] No [ ]

Employee Classification

Contractor’s employees who will perform work on the project are properly classified as an 
employee or independent contractor under all applicable state and federal laws and local 
ordinances (Form B). N/A [ ]Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Professional or Trade Licenses

Contractor will possess all applicable professional and trade licenses required for performing the 
Contract work: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

License Number
Date 
Issued

Current 
Expiration Holder of License

Page | 37AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



If any of the above license(s) have been revoked or suspended, state the date and reason for 
suspension/revocation:

Documentation Attached (Contractor must initial next to each item):

_____ Form A: Name and address of subcontractors from whom Contractor has accepted a 
bid or intends to hire to perform work on any part of the project.  
NOTE: All subcontractors shall complete and submit an Affidavit of Compliance no later than the 
date the subcontractor commences work on the project. 

_____ Form B: List of individuals who will perform work on the project on behalf of the 
Contractor, verifying that each individual is properly classified as an employee or independent 
contractor.  Contractor also verifies that all Contractor’s employees are covered under a current 
workers’ compensation policy, properly classified under the workers’ compensation policy, and 
covered by a health and welfare and retirement plan.

_____ Form C Additional Information (if required)

_____ Certificate of Good Standing 
(or other evidence of compliance with laws pre-requisite to doing business in the state)

_____ Illinois Department of Revenue registration

_____ Illinois Department of Employment Security registration

_____ Standards of Apprenticeship/Apprentice Agreements

_____ Substance Abuse Prevention program (or applicable provision from CBA in effect)

_____ Written Safety Policy Statement signed by company representative

_____ OSHA cards evidencing 10-hour or greater safety program completed, if requested

_____ Workers’ Compensation Coverage

_____ Professional or Trade Licenses

Page | 38AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Eligibility to Contract

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is not barred from bidding on or 
entering into this contractor as a result of a violation of either the bid-rigging or bid-rotating 
provisions of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as amended.

_Robe Construction, Inc.                  _                                      
______________________________

Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Human Rights Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is in compliance with Title 7 of the 
1964 Civil Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act as amended.

_Robe Construction, Inc                            _                              
____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act

The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant to section 3 
of the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free 
workplace for all employees engaged in the performance of the work under the contract by 
complying with the requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further 
certifies, that it is not ineligible for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a 
violation of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act.

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                          
________________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Page | 39AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Certificate Regarding Sexual Harassment Policy

The undersigned does hereby certify pursuant to section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 
(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a 
minimum, the following information:  (i) the illegality of sexual harassment;  (ii) the 
definition of sexual harassment under State law;  (iii) a description of sexual harassment, 
utilizing examples;  (iv) an internal complaint process including penalties;  (v) the legal 
recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department of Human 
Rights and Human Rights Commission;  (vi) direction on how to contact the Department of 
Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; and  (vii) protection against retaliation.
 
__ Robe Construction, Inc                                                           
_____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

A. There is in place a written program which meets  or exceeds the program requirements of the 
Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635), and has provided 
a written copy thereof to the Village of Tinley Park.

B. There is in place a collective bargaining agreement which deals with the subject matter of 
the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635)

(Cross out either A or B depending upon which certification is correct)

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                        
_____________________________                       __________________________      
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Prevailing Wage Requirements

The undersigned hereby certifies that:
This contract calls for the construction of a “public work,” within the meaning of the Illinois 
Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”). The Act requires contractors and 
subcontractors to pay laborers, workers and mechanics performing services on public works 
projects no less than the current “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus amount for 
fringe benefits) in the county where the work is performed. The Department publishes the 
prevailing wage rates on its website at http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/rates/rates.HTM. The 

Page | 40AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Department revises the prevailing wage rates and the contractor/subcontractor has an obligation to 
check the Department’s web site for revisions to prevailing wage rates. For information regarding 
current prevailing wage rates, please refer to the Illinois Department of Labor’s website. All 
contractors and subcontractors rendering services under this contract must comply with all 
requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage requirements and notice and record 
keeping duties.

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                   
_____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance

The undersigned or the entity making the proposal or bid has reviewed and is in compliance with 
the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance No. 2022-O-032

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                         
____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

[Signature Page to Follow]

Page | 41AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Robe Construction, Inc   

BY:
Date

Printed Name:

Title:

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Michael W. Glotz, Village President Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

ATTEST:

Village Clerk Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Village Manager Date

Page | 42AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Attached Scope of work for the Village Hall Building Department Condensing Unit 
Replacement:

 Village of Tinley Park – Building Department condensing unit replacement .

Page | 43AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

(See Risk Manager for Insurance Requirements)

Page | 44AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form A

Subcontractors who will Perform Work on the Project

Name Address Work to be Performed

Page | 45AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form B

Individuals who will perform work on the project

List all individuals who will perform work on this project with the following information:

Individual is an employee (E) or independent contractor (I);
Individual’s trade classification (indicate apprenticeship status where appropriate);
Employee (E) is covered under Contractor’s current workers’ compensation (WC) policy;
Employee’s (E) county of residence.

Name E/I Trade WC - Y/N County of residence

Page | 46AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form C
Additional Information Required
If required in the bid specifications, Contractor shall complete items I and/or II below:

Statement of past three (3) years experience on public construction projects.

Public Body/
Project Name/Year

Reference Name/ 
Phone #

Original Price/
Final price Subcontractors

Page | 47AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



List any determinations by a court or governmental agency for violations of federal, state or local 
laws, including but not limited to violations of contracting or antitrust laws, tax or licensing laws, 
environmental laws, the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), the National Labor 
Relations Act (NLRA), or federal Davis-Bacon and related Acts.

Date Law Determination Penalty

Page | 48AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ROBEI-2 OP ID: CBE

08/01/2023

Bulow Group Certificate Team
The Bulow Group
18521 Spring Creek Road Unit B
Tinley Park, IL 60477
Robert Randick

708-258-5448 708-377-4178
coi@thebulowgroup.com

Auto- Owners Insurance
Nationwide

Robe, Inc.
6150 N. Northwest Hwy
Chicago, IL 60631

Cincinnati Insurance

A X 1,000,000
X X 07570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 50,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000

X X 2,000,000

1,000,000A
50570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024

X
X X

XX 10,000,000A
5057069602 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 10,000,000

0X
XA

07241050 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 1,000,000
Y 1,000,000

1,000,000
A 07570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 Rented 32,000
B Builders Risk CIM13152Z 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 Limit 500,000

Re: All Work Performed for the Village of Tinley Park                       
Additional Insured as respects General Liability as required by written &   
signed contract:Village of Tinley Park                                      
                                                                            

VOTINLE

Village of Tinley Park
16250 Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

708-258-5448

18988
23787
10677

Equipment Floater

Page | 49AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

Village Hall Condensing Unit ReplacementJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

19013

DPW-2023-005

July 15, 2023

$58,949.39

City of Naperville - Robe, Inc.

Village Hall Condensing Unit Replacement

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name:

01 - General Requirements: $11,579.96

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $47,240.45

26 - Electrical: $128.98

$58,949.39Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Page | 50AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

July 15, 2023

DPW-2023-005

19013

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Village Hall Condensing Unit Replacement

0.8315-Option 3 - Normal Working Hours, 1.0000-No AdjustmentAdjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Village Hall Condensing Unit Replacement

City of Naperville - Robe, Inc.

$58,949.39

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base cost to the actual 

Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, list each one 

separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warranty, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt shall be submitted with 

the Price Proposal.

1 $590.00EA

Installation =x x $590.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0000$1.00 590.00

User Note: P & P Bond Fee

01  22   20   00 0010 ElectricianFor tasks not included in the Construction Task Catalog® and as 

directed by owner only.

2 $633.07HR

Installation =x x $633.07
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$95.17 8.00

User Note: Disconnect power to old unit

Reconnect power to new unit once installed

01  22   20   00 0031 Steam / Pipe FitterFor tasks not included in the Construction Task Catalog® and 

as directed by owner only.

3 $3,208.92HR

Installation =x x $3,208.92
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$96.48 40.00

User Note: Disconnect gas to old unit 

Reconnect gas to new unit once installed.

Disconnect existing rooftop unit

Set and reconnect new roof top unit

01  22   20   00 0031 For Foreman, Add4 Mod $32.06HR

Installation =x x $32.06
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$4.82 8.00

01  22   23   00 0683 90 Ton Lift, Truck Mounted Hydraulic Crane With Full-Time Operator5 $2,314.51DAY

Installation =x x $2,314.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$2,783.53 1.00

01  22   23   00 1053 13 CY Rear Dump Truck With Full-Time Truck Driver6 $1,440.99DAY

Installation =x x $1,440.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$1,733.00 1.00

User Note: Disposal of existing unit

 2.00

Page 1 of 3

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 51AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village Hall Condensing Unit Replacement

DPW-2023-005Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  71   13   00 0003 Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A Tractor 

Trailer With Up To 53' BedIncludes loading, tie-down of equipment, delivery of 

equipment, off loading on site, rigging, dismantling, loading for return and 

transporting away. For equipment such as bulldozers, motor scrapers, hydraulic 

excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, heavy duty construction 

loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, straight mast construction 

forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction forklifts, telescoping and 

articulating boom man lifts with >40' boom lengths, etc.

7 $1,161.04EA

Installation =x x $1,161.04
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$698.16 2.00

User Note: Mobilization

01  71   13   00 0008 70 To 100 Ton Lift Move On/Off Cost, Hydraulic CraneIncludes delivery and 

pickup.

8 $2,199.37EA

Installation =x x $2,199.37
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$1,322.53 2.00

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $11,579.96

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  01   20   91 0002 Up To 1", Lock Out/Tag Out Valve9 $20.29EA

Installation =x x $20.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$24.40 1.00

23  01   60   71 0002 Recovery Of Refrigerant10 $763.32LB

Installation =x x $763.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$7.65 120.00

23  01   60   71 0003 Recovery And Recharging Of RefrigerantIncludes cleaning refrigerant gas prior 

to recharging.

11 $1,431.84LB

Installation =x x $1,431.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$14.35 120.00

23  09   23   00 0014 EMCS Field Checkout And StartupPriced per point.12 $838.35PNT

Installation =x x $838.35
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$126.03 8.00

User Note: Start & check operation.

23  74   16   13 0097 450 MBH Electric Heating Only Self Contained Package Rooftop Unit13 $40,837.55EA

Installation =x x $39,600.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$47,625.33 1.00

Demolition x x = $1,237.09 0.8315$1,487.78 1.00

User Note: Furnish & Install One (1) new Carrier 20-ton Air Cooled Condensing unit with low ambient kit for operation in 

mild conditions.

23  74   16   13 0097 For Gas Heat, Add14 Mod $3,349.10EA

Installation =x x $3,349.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$3,274.62 1.23

Subtotal for 23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $47,240.45

26 - Electrical

26  01   20   91 0002 Lock Out/Tag Out Local Disconnect15 $19.96EA

Installation =x x $19.96
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$24.00 1.00

Page 2 of 3

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 52AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village Hall Condensing Unit Replacement

DPW-2023-005Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  01   20   91 0004 Lock Out/Tag Out Tags16 $3.45EA

Installation =x x $3.45
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$4.15 1.00

26  05   83   00 0136 1-1/2 HP AC Motor Single Phase, 230 Volt Motor/Equipment, Connection, 

Termination And Rotation Testing

17 $105.57EA

Installation =x x $75.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$91.01 1.00

Demolition x x = $29.89 0.8315$35.95 1.00

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $128.98

$58,949.39Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 3 of 3

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 53AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 54AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 55AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 56AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 57AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 58AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 59AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 60AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 61AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 62AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 63AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 64AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 65AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 66AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 67AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 68AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 69AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 70AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 71AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 72AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 73AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 74AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 75AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 76AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 77AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 78AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 79AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 80AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 81AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 82AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 83AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 84AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 85AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 86AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 87AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 88AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 89AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 90AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 91AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 92AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 93AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 94AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 95AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 96AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 97AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 98AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 99AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 100AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 101AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 102AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 103AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 104AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 105AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 106AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 107AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 108AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 109AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 110AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 111AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 112AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 113AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 114AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 115AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 116AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 117AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 118AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 119AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 120AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 121AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 122AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 123AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 124AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 125AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 126AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 127AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 128AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 129AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 130AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 131AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 132AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 133AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 134AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 135AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 136AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 137AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 138AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 139AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 140AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 141AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 142AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 143AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 144AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 145AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 146AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 147AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 148AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 149AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 150AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 151AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 152AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 153AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 154AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 155AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 156AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 157AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 158AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 159AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 160AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 161AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 162AGENDA - 8/15/2023, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 9, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water & Sewer Superintendent

Subject: Post 2 Check Meter Replacement

Presented for Committee of Whole and Village Board consideration and action.

Description:  Replace existing propeller meters (prop meters) with new magnetic flow meters (mag 
meters).  Install concrete vaults with testing ports on both outbound watermains feeding the distribution 
system.

Background:  The current meters were installed when the pumping station was built in 1998.  These 
meters are used to compare consumption to the master meters used by Oak Lawn for billing purposes.  
The current meters are prop meters and are not able to be tested for accuracy using the pitot testing 
procedure.  The new meters will be magnetic flow meters, which will improve consumption accuracy 
and are also able to be tested using the pitot testing procedure.  A bid opening was held on August 7, 
2023 at Village Hall with the Clerks’ Office, Water & Sewer Superintendent, and consulting engineer 
present.  The following bids were received:

Contractor: Location: Bid:
Steve Spiess Construction, Inc. Frankfort, IL $79,036.10
Airy’s Inc. Joliet, IL $80,850.00

Budget/Finance:  Funding is available for use in the Operation and Maintenance budget line item 60-
74175.

Staff Direction Request:  Approve a contract with Steve Spiess Construction, Inc. to install two new 
check meters at Post 2 in the amount of $79,036.10.

Attachments:
1) Bid Tab
2) Letter of Recommendation
3) Service Contract

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 163AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-094

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR POST 2 CHECK METER 

REPLACEMENT

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 164AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-094

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
AND STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR POST 2 CHECK METER REPLACEMENT

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into contract with Steve Spiess Construction, Inc., a true and correct copy 

of such Contract being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Contract be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Contract” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Contract to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Contract.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 165AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

CONTRACT WITH STEVE SPIESS 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

POST 2 CHECK METER REPLACEMENT

Page | 166AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-094, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR POST 2 

CHECK METER REPLACEMENT,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 167AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Item No. Unit Price Unit Cost Total Unit Cost

R6001014 $200.00 $254.00 $5,080.00 $175.00

44000500 $125.00 $163.00 $4,075.00 $110.00

21101615 $15.00 $11.00 $440.00 $20.00

X2520700 $50.00 $52.00 $2,080.00 $60.00

R1004145.01 $3,500.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $1,415.00

X1000 $20,000.00 $15,288.00 $30,576.00 $21,555.00

X1001 $8,000.00 $8,800.00 $17,600.00 $9,055.00

R2004015 $7,272.50 $7,185.10 $7,185.10 $7,350.00

TOTAL: $80,850.00

CONTINGENCY PCT 1 $7,272.50 $7,350.00

$79,997.50 $79,036.10

1 INCH CORPORATION STOP IN 6 
FOOT DIAMETER VAULT, TYPE 1 
FRAME, CLOSED LID

EACH 2 $40,000.00 $43,110.00

WATER METER INSTALLATION EACH 2 $16,000.00 $18,110.00

SODDING, SPECIAL SQ YD 40 $2,000.00 $2,400.00

WATER METER REMOVAL EACH 2 $7,000.00 $2,830.00

COMBINATION CURB AND 
GUTTER REMOVAL LF 25 $3,125.00 $2,750.00

TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE,  
4" SQ YD 40 $600.00 $800.00

Airy's Inc.

CLASS D PATCHES, 6 INCH SQ YD 20 $4,000.00 $3,500.00

Frankfort, IL 60423

10284 Vans Drive
Steve Spiess Construction Inc.

Total

Joliet, IL 60433

21825 Cherry Hill Rd.

Attended By: Van Calombaris

Item Description Unit QTY Total

Approved Engineer's   
Estimate

Address of Bidder:
Name of Bidder:

Time:

Date: 8/7/2023

10:01 AM

Tabulation of Bids
23-R0524

Local Public Agency:

County:

Section:

Estimate:

Village of Tinley Park

$79,997.50

 Printed 8/7/2023 3:40:42 PM  1 of 1  BLR 12315 (Rev. 07/16/13)

Page | 168AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



  

10045 West Lincoln Highway, Frankfort, Il 60423 l phone: (815) 806-0300 l fax: (815) 806-0301 l www.reltd.com 

 
August 7, 2023 

To:  Village of Tinley Park 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 

 
Attn:  Mr. Michael G. Mueller – Public Works Committee Chair  

        
RE:     Post 2 Water Meter Replacement and Valve Vaults 

Contract Award Recommendation 
(REL Project #23-R0524) 

 
Dear Mr. Mueller: 
 
We have reviewed the bids received on August 7, 2023, for the referenced project and find them to be as follows: 

  
Contractor As-Read Bid 
Steve Spiess Construction, Inc. – Frankfort, IL $79,036.10 
Airy’s, Inc. – Joliet, IL $80,850.00 
Engineer’s Estimate $79,997.50 

 
We have reviewed the bids and found them to be correct and in order; therefore, at this time, we recommend that 
the Village award the contract to the low responsive responsible bidder, Steve Spiess Construction, Inc., in the 
amount of Seventy-Nine Thousand, Thirty-Six Dollars and Ten Cents ($79,036.10).   

 
Should you have any questions or require further information, please contact me at your convenience. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

  
Van Calombaris, PE      
Director of Operations    
(815) 412-2014           
vcalombaris@reltd.com 
  
R:\2020-2024\2023\23-R0524.TP\_Bid and Contract Documents\23-R0524 Award Recommendation Letter.docx 
 
Encl.   
 

 

Page | 169AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

SERVICE CONTRACT

This contract is by and between the Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois home-rule municipal 
corporation (the “Village”), and Steve Spiess Construction, Inc. (the “Contractor”), for the project 
or work described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

1. In consideration of the compensation stated in paragraph 2, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by reference.  The express terms of this Contract shall take precedence 
and control over any term or provision of the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) that in any way 
conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter the terms of this Contract.

2. Except in the event of a duly authorized change order approved by the Village as provided 
in this Contract, and in consideration of the Contractor’s final completion of all work in 
conformity with this Contract, the Village shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed 
Seventy Nine Thousand Thirty Six and 10/100 Dollars ($79,036.10).  Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of completion of the work, the Contractor shall submit his application for 
payment to the Village, and the Village shall pay Contractor for the work performed no later 
than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the Village's receipt and the Village’s 
approval of the work and the application for payment.  No payment shall be made by the 
Village until the Contractor has submitted to the Village (i) a Contractor’s Affidavit listing 
all subcontractors and material suppliers utilized on the project and (ii) final waivers of lien 
from the Contractor, all subcontractors and all material suppliers.

3. No changes shall be made, nor will invoices for changes, alterations, modifications, 
deviations, or extra work or services be recognized or paid except upon the prior written 
order from authorized personnel of the Village.  The Contractor shall not execute change 
orders on behalf of the Village or otherwise alter the financial scope of the Project.

4. Written change orders may be approved by the Village Manager or his designee provided 
that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 2 of this Contract 
to more than $10,000.00.  Changes in excess of this amount must be approved by the Village 
Board prior to commencement of the services or work. If a requested change causes an 
increase or decrease in the cost of or time required for the performance of the 
contract, Contractor will agree to an equitable adjustment in the contract price or 
performance schedule, or both.  Neither party is obligated to comply with requested 
changes unless and until both parties execute a written change order. 

5. Time is of the essence on this Contract.  The Contractor shall complete all work under this 
Contract by the dates set forth below:

6. No “Notice to Proceed” may be given nor any work commenced until this Contract is fully 
executed and all exhibits and other attachments are completely filled out and attached hereto.

7. It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Contractor is an independent contractor 
retained for the above-mentioned purpose.  The Village shall not control the manner nor 
the means of the Contractor's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as 
described herein.  The term "subcontractor" shall mean and include only those hired by and 
having a direct contract with Contractor for performance of work on the Project.  The 

Page | 170AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village shall have no responsibility to any subcontractor employed by a Contractor for 
performance of work on the Project, and all subcontractors and material suppliers shall 
look exclusively to the Contractor for any payments due.  The Village will not be 
responsible for reporting or paying employment taxes or other similar levies that may be 
required by the United States Internal Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. 
Every subcontractor shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract as far as 
applicable to their work.  The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Village for the 
acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and shall ensure that any subcontractors perform 
in accordance with the requirements of this Contract.  Nothing contained herein shall create 
any contractual or employment relations between any subcontractor and the Village.  The 
Contractor is solely responsible for the safety procedures, programs and methods of its 
employees and agents and shall hold the Village harmless for any and all damages resulting 
from violations thereof.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State and 
local safety laws and regulations.

8. It is further agreed that the Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the 
Village, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, 
damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs, and attorneys’ fees, for injury to or death of any person or for 
damage to any property arising out of or in connection with the Contractor’s negligence 
under this Contract.  

9. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder 
and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the Village, its officers, agents, and 
employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, 
including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of any person and any 
loss of or damage to any property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out 
of, or in connection with the Contractor's  negligence in its work to be performed 
hereunder.  The Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage in an amount and from 
a carrier suitable to the Village, and the Village shall be named as an additional insured 
where required.  Certificates of Insurance are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

10. The Village is exempt from payment of state and local sales and use of taxes on labor and 
materials incorporated into the project.  If necessary, it is the Contractor's responsibility to 
obtain a sales tax permit, resale certificate, and exemption certificate that shall enable the 
Contractor to buy any materials to be incorporated into the project and then resale the 
aforementioned materials to the Village without paying the tax on the materials at the time 
of purchase.  In no event will the Village be liable for or pay any sales or use taxes incurred 
by the Contractor in performing the services under this contract.

11. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 
regulations, ordinances, and other laws, including but not limited to the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act (IRCA).  The Contractor may not knowingly obtain the labor or 
services of an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor, not the Village, must verify eligibility 
for employment as required by IRCA.

12. At any time, the Village may terminate this Contract for convenience, upon written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Contractor shall cease work immediately upon receipt of such notice.  
The Contractor shall be compensated for services performed and accepted by the Village up 
to the date of termination.

Page | 171AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



13. No waiver or deferral by either party of any term or condition of this Contract shall be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver or deferral of any other term or condition or subsequent 
wavier or deferral of the same term or condition.

14. This Contract may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by the 
parties.

15. This Contract and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval of Village.

16. The parties hereby state that they have read and understand the terms of this Contract and 
hereby agree to the conditions contained herein.

17. This Contract has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.  
The parties agree that performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Cook County, 
Illinois.

18. Contractor, its employees, associates or subcontractors shall perform all the work hereunder.  
Contractor agrees that all of its associates, employees, or subcontractors who work on this 
Project shall be fully qualified and competent to do the work described hereunder.  Contractor 
shall undertake the work and complete it in a timely manner.

19. If any provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 
the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  If a court of competent 
jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by 
limiting such provision it may become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be 
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

20. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Village and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  

21. This Contract will be effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
Contract fully executed.

22. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, if the work to be 
performed under this Contract is covered by said Act.

23. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Substance Abuse Prevention on Public 
Works Projects Act.

Page | 172AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATIONS BY CONTRACTOR

Affidavit of Compliance

Contractor and all subcontractors shall complete this Affidavit of Compliance (“Affidavit”) and 
submit supporting documentation as required pursuant to Responsible Bidder Requirements on 
Public Work Projects.  Contractor must submit this Affidavit and all related evidence with its bid.  
Contractor shall be responsible for providing this Affidavit to all subcontractors who will perform 
work on the project.  All subcontractors’ Affidavits and supporting documentation must be 
submitted no later than the date and time of the contract award.  Failure to comply with all 
submission requirements may result in a determination that the Contractor is not a responsible 
bidder.

For the remainder of this Affidavit, “Contractor” refers to the general contractor and all 
subcontractors.   Each item must be answered.  If the question is not applicable, answer “NA.”  If 
the answer is none, answer “none.”

The certifications set forth in this Affidavit and all documents attached hereto shall become a part 
of any contract awarded to the Contractor.  Furthermore, Contractor shall comply with these 
certifications during the term and/or performance of the contract. 
 

The undersigned ___________________________, as ______________________ and on behalf 
       (Name) (Title)

of ____________________________________ having been duly sworn under oath certifies that:
(Contractor)

Business Organization

The form of business organization of the Contractor is (check one):

__ Sole Proprietor or Partnership __ LLC
__ Corporation __ Independent Contractor (Individual)

If contractor/subcontractor is a corporation, indicate the state and the date of incorporation:

________________________________________________________________________

Authorized to do business in the State of Illinois: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached: ___________________________________

Federal Employer I.D. #: _____________________ 

Social Security # (if an individual or sole proprietor): _____________________

Page | 173AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Registered with Illinois Department of Revenue: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Registered with Illinois Department of Employment Security: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Tax liens or tax delinquencies

Disclosure of any federal, state or local tax liens or tax delinquencies against the contractor of any 
officers of the contractor in the last five (5) years Yes [ ]  No [ ]

“No” means “not applicable.”  If “yes,” describe lien/delinquencies and resolution: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

EOE Compliance

Contractor is in compliance with provisions of Section 2000e of Chapter 21, Title 42 of the United 
States Code and Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended by Executive Order No. 11375 
(known as the Equal Opportunity Employer provisions). Yes [ ] No [ ]

Employee Classification

Contractor’s employees who will perform work on the project are properly classified as an 
employee or independent contractor under all applicable state and federal laws and local 
ordinances (Form B). N/A [ ]Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Professional or Trade Licenses

Contractor will possess all applicable professional and trade licenses required for performing the 
Contract work: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

License Number
Date 
Issued

Current 
Expiration Holder of License

Page | 174AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



If any of the above license(s) have been revoked or suspended, state the date and reason for 
suspension/revocation:

Documentation Attached (Contractor must initial next to each item):

_____ Form A: Name and address of subcontractors from whom Contractor has accepted a 
bid or intends to hire to perform work on any part of the project.  
NOTE: All subcontractors shall complete and submit an Affidavit of Compliance no later than the 
date the subcontractor commences work on the project. 

_____ Form B: List of individuals who will perform work on the project on behalf of the 
Contractor, verifying that each individual is properly classified as an employee or independent 
contractor.  Contractor also verifies that all Contractor’s employees are covered under a current 
workers’ compensation policy, properly classified under the workers’ compensation policy, and 
covered by a health and welfare and retirement plan.

_____ Form C Additional Information (if required)

_____ Certificate of Good Standing 
(or other evidence of compliance with laws pre-requisite to doing business in the state)

_____ Illinois Department of Revenue registration

_____ Illinois Department of Employment Security registration

_____ Standards of Apprenticeship/Apprentice Agreements

_____ Substance Abuse Prevention program (or applicable provision from CBA in effect)

_____ Written Safety Policy Statement signed by company representative

_____ OSHA cards evidencing 10-hour or greater safety program completed, if requested

_____ Workers’ Compensation Coverage

_____ Professional or Trade Licenses

Page | 175AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Eligibility to Contract

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is not barred from bidding on or 
entering into this contractor as a result of a violation of either the bid-rigging or bid-rotating 
provisions of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as amended.

_________________________       ______________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Human Rights Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is in compliance with Title 7 of the 
1964 Civil Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act as amended.

______________________________      ____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act

The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant to section 3 
of the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free 
workplace for all employees engaged in the performance of the work under the contract by 
complying with the requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further 
certifies, that it is not ineligible for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a 
violation of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act.

_________________________       ________________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Page | 176AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Certificate Regarding Sexual Harassment Policy

The undersigned does hereby certify pursuant to section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 
(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a 
minimum, the following information:  (i) the illegality of sexual harassment;  (ii) the 
definition of sexual harassment under State law;  (iii) a description of sexual harassment, 
utilizing examples;  (iv) an internal complaint process including penalties;  (v) the legal 
recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department of Human 
Rights and Human Rights Commission;  (vi) direction on how to contact the Department of 
Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; and  (vii) protection against retaliation.
 
___________________________          _____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

A. There is in place a written program which meets  or exceeds the program requirements of the 
Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635), and has provided 
a written copy thereof to the Village of Tinley Park.

B. There is in place a collective bargaining agreement which deals with the subject matter of 
the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635)

(Cross out either A or B depending upon which certification is correct)

_____________________________ _____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Prevailing Wage Requirements

The undersigned hereby certifies that:
This contract calls for the construction of a “public work,” within the meaning of the Illinois 
Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”). The Act requires contractors and 
subcontractors to pay laborers, workers and mechanics performing services on public works 
projects no less than the current “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus amount for 
fringe benefits) in the county where the work is performed. The Department publishes the 
prevailing wage rates on its website at http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/rates/rates.HTM. The 
Department revises the prevailing wage rates and the contractor/subcontractor has an obligation to 
check the Department’s web site for revisions to prevailing wage rates. For information regarding 

Page | 177AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



current prevailing wage rates, please refer to the Illinois Department of Labor’s website. All 
contractors and subcontractors rendering services under this contract must comply with all 
requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage requirements and notice and record 
keeping duties.

_________________________ _____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance

The undersigned or the entity making the proposal or bid has reviewed and is in compliance with 
the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance No. 2019-O-079

_________________________ ____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

[Signature Page to Follow]

Page | 178AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CONTRACTOR NAME

BY:
Date

Printed Name:

Title:

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Michael W. Glotz, Village President Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

ATTEST:

Village Clerk Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Village Manager Date

Page | 179AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Attached Scope of work for Post 2 Meter Replacement as detailed below:

 This project shall consist of the removal and installation of two pre-purchased water 
meters with all necessary appurtenances, and two corporation stops with valve vaults, as 
according to the plans and special provisions.  

Page | 180AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

(See Risk Manager for Insurance Requirements)

Page | 181AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form A

Subcontractors who will Perform Work on the Project

Name Address Work to be Performed

Page | 182AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form B

Individuals who will perform work on the project

List all individuals who will perform work on this project with the following information:

Individual is an employee (E) or independent contractor (I);
Individual’s trade classification (indicate apprenticeship status where appropriate);
Employee (E) is covered under Contractor’s current workers’ compensation (WC) policy;
Employee’s (E) county of residence.

Name E/I Trade WC - Y/N County of residence

Page | 183AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form C
Additional Information Required
If required in the bid specifications, Contractor shall complete items I and/or II below:

Statement of past three (3) years experience on public construction projects.

Public Body/
Project Name/Year

Reference Name/ 
Phone #

Original Price/
Final price Subcontractors

Page | 184AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



List any determinations by a court or governmental agency for violations of federal, state or local 
laws, including but not limited to violations of contracting or antitrust laws, tax or licensing laws, 
environmental laws, the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), the National Labor 
Relations Act (NLRA), or federal Davis-Bacon and related Acts.

Date Law Determination Penalty

Page | 185AGENDA - 8/15/2023, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 186AGENDA - 8/15/2023, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 187AGENDA - 8/15/2023, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 188AGENDA - 8/15/2023, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 189AGENDA - 8/15/2023, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 190AGENDA - 8/15/2023, F -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 191AGENDA - 8/15/2023, F -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village Clerk 

Village of Tinley Park 

16250 Oak Park Avenue 

Tinley Park, IL 60477 

Email: clerksoffice@tinleypark.org 

 

July 28, 2023 

 

Dear Clerk:  

 

Included with the Raffle Application, the UChicago Medicine Ingalls Development Foundation Board 

submits this letter in response to the fidelity bond requirement, for the Annual Benefit Gala (A 

Centennial Celebration) fundraising event, concluding on September 9, 2023.  

 

The UChicago Ingalls Development Foundation Board is aware of the risks and has unanimously voted in 

favor or waiving the fidelity bond.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact Paul Donohue at .  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Name: Sam Cutrara  

Title: Chairman  

 

Name: Brad Gnade 

Title: Treasurer  

 

Page | 192AGENDA - 8/15/2023, F -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org


Page | 193AGENDA - 8/15/2023, F -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 194AGENDA - 8/15/2023, F -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 195AGENDA - 8/15/2023, G -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 196AGENDA - 8/15/2023, G -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 197AGENDA - 8/15/2023, G -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203253 8/4/2023 013709  3E CO ENVIR.ECOLOG.ENG. INV-US-112487 SAFETY DATA MANAGEMENT
01-26-023-73845 341.00VTP-020189
01-26-024-73845 170.50VTP-020189
60-00-000-73845 214.83VTP-020189
63-00-000-73845 23.87VTP-020189
64-00-000-73845 102.30VTP-020189

Total : 852.50

203254 8/4/2023 010318  ADVOCATE CHRIST MEDICAL CNTR 061923 10 HEALTHCARE PROVIDER E-CARDS
01-19-020-73606 35.00

Total : 35.00

203255 8/4/2023 019563  AEP ENERGY INC 3013134248 ACCT#3013134248 UTIL#4384028017 6815 HIC
01-26-024-72510 154.84
ACCT#3013134259 UTIL#4623055116 19620 883013134259
08-00-000-72510 165.53
01-26-024-72510 12,568.30
ACCT#3013134260 UTIL#6771163043 87TH AVE3013134260
01-26-024-72510 201.01

Total : 13,089.68

203256 8/4/2023 002734  AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 196135 NATIONAL FOAM, UNIVERSAL GREEN 5 GALLON
01-19-000-73555 900.00

Total : 900.00

203257 8/4/2023 002856  AIRY'S, INC 27929 POST 5 IMPROVEMENTS - PAY ESTIMATE #7
61-00-000-75324 192,200.40VTP-018759
LAGRANGE ROAD WATERMAIN EXTENSION PROJEC27944
26-00-000-75708 339,286.72VTP-020124

Total : 531,487.12

203258 8/4/2023 019532  ALADTEC LLC INV00283676 ALADTEC SUBSCRIPTION
01-17-220-72655 9,900.00VTP-020184

Total : 9,900.00

203259 8/4/2023 002655  AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE MG076 1ST QUARTER FY24 ANCILLARY CRITICAL INSU

1Page:

Page | 198AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203259 8/4/2023 (Continued)002655  AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE
01-14-000-72430 2,069.91VTP-020016

Total : 2,069.91

203260 8/4/2023 019036  AMERICAN LIBERTY SCHOOL BUS CO INV1009904 SHUTTLE RENTAL FOR THE TWO-DAY  BLOCK PA
01-35-000-72923 1,688.44VTP-020061
SHUTTLE RENTAL FOR THE TWO-DAY  BLOCK PAINV1009905
01-35-000-72923 1,638.00VTP-020061

Total : 3,326.44

203261 8/4/2023 002628  AMERICAN WATER 080123 SEWER TREATMENT SERVICE - BROOKSIDE GLEN
64-00-000-73225 131,359.60

Total : 131,359.60

203262 8/4/2023 010026  ANDERSON PUMP SERVICE RH-16274 SVI; BP-1394 3/4" HOSE CLAMP FOR NON VAP
01-26-025-72530 21.70

Total : 21.70

203263 8/4/2023 002665  APPLE CHEVROLET 363339CVW CORE RETURN GM23490005
01-19-000-72540 -50.00
NEW WHEELS401925
01-19-000-72540 3,828.40VTP-020091

Total : 3,778.40

203264 8/4/2023 021107  AZBILL, BRANDI 052023 REIM:  EXPENSES FROM GFOA CONFERENCE 5/2
01-15-000-72170 359.86

Total : 359.86

203265 8/4/2023 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV230073 SEMI TRUCK TIME FOR HAULING SPOILS TO CH
01-26-023-72890 281.25
60-00-000-73681 413.44
63-00-000-73681 45.94
64-00-000-73681 196.87
SEMI TRUCK TIME FOR HAULING SPOILS TO CH230074
01-26-023-72890 281.25
60-00-000-73681 413.44
63-00-000-73681 45.94

2Page:

Page | 199AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203265 8/4/2023 (Continued)002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV
64-00-000-73681 196.87

Total : 1,875.00

203266 8/4/2023 020603  BILL FIGEL PUBLIC RELATION LLC 014 PR ACTIVITIES JULY  '23
01-14-000-72790 1,500.00

Total : 1,500.00

203267 8/4/2023 002923  BLACK DIRT INC. 5366 BLACK DIRT FOR LAWN RESTORATIONS -
01-26-023-73680 375.00VTP-020161

Total : 375.00

203268 8/4/2023 003304  CARLIN-MORAN LANDSCAPE INC 6553 6801 180TH CT - LAWN MAINTENANCE - CUT &
01-33-300-72744 225.00
LAWN MAINTENANCE 4 PROPERTIES - CUT & WE6554
01-33-300-72744 2,050.00
6143 LAURA LANE - LAWN MAINTENANCE - 6576558
01-33-300-72744 1,200.00

Total : 3,475.00

203269 8/4/2023 003406  CDS OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES INV1543745 ROUTER AND ANTENNAS FIRE VEHICLES
01-16-000-74128 2,295.00VTP-020104

Total : 2,295.00

203270 8/4/2023 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC KH64950 BRIDGEWAVE POE SURGE PROTECTOR
01-16-000-74128 360.08

Total : 360.08

203271 8/4/2023 003229  CED/EFENGEE 1028-1228754 STREET LIGHT BULBS
01-26-024-73570 954.00VTP-020171

Total : 954.00

203272 8/4/2023 014026  CHANDLER SERVICES CORPORATION 29432 PIERCE VELOCITY T48 OIL FILTER, CREASE,
01-19-000-72540 3,814.71
PIERCE VELOCITY - T48 - HYDRAULIC OIL, A29433
01-19-000-72540 11,299.14
PIERCE DASH TRUCK E46 - BEARING TRANS, O29447
01-19-000-72540 18,434.53

3Page:

Page | 200AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 33,548.38203272 8/4/2023 014026 014026  CHANDLER SERVICES CORPORATION

203273 8/4/2023 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC 1-0371955 TUBE ASY - STREET UNIT #40
01-26-023-72540 72.46
TPMS SENSOR ASSY - FIRE #15033-0056719
01-19-000-72540 130.76
BRAKE PAD SET - FIRE #15033-0056730
01-19-000-72540 29.34
SPARK PLUGS - FIRE #15013-0056773
01-19-000-72540 7.90
MOTOR OIL - WATER #183-0056852
60-00-000-72540 22.60
63-00-000-72540 7.53
64-00-000-72540 12.91
AIR FILTER - UNITE 88/843-0056882
60-00-000-72540 18.78
63-00-000-72540 6.26
64-00-000-72540 10.74
AIR FILTER - BUILDING DEPT - 722/793-0056883
01-33-300-72540 35.78
AIR FILTER - STREET3-0056889
01-26-023-72540 115.40
MOTOR OIL - POLICE UNIT #2R3-0056890
01-17-205-72540 79.67
FREON 30LB TANK3-0056897
60-00-000-72540 58.59
63-00-000-72540 19.53
64-00-000-72540 33.48
01-26-023-72540 111.60
01-26-024-72540 55.80

Total : 829.13

203274 8/4/2023 017298  COMCAST BUSINESS 176863718 ACCT 930890410 VILLAGE HALL FIBER INTERN
01-16-000-72125 1,013.11

Total : 1,013.11

203275 8/4/2023 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810170142 ACCT#8771401810170142 16250 OPA 6/21-8/2

4Page:

Page | 201AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203275 8/4/2023 (Continued)012057  COMCAST CABLE
01-16-000-72125 505.70
ACCT#8771401810784702 7825 167TH ST 7/208771401810784702
01-19-000-72517 203.02

Total : 708.72

203276 8/4/2023 013892  COMED 6771163052 ACCT#6771163052 TRAFFIC SIGNALS 6/15-7/1
01-26-024-72510 930.59

Total : 930.59

203277 8/4/2023 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 0519019106 ACCT#0519019106 6750 SOUTH ST 6/20-7/20/
12-00-000-72510 9.33
ACCT#2587063010 17311 OPA  6/20-7/20/232587063010
12-00-000-72510 29.79
ACCT#4329016037 17238 OPA 6/20-7/20/234329016037
12-00-000-72510 23.87
ACCT#6483053261 17495 S LAGRANGE RD 6/226483053261
01-26-023-72510 72.19
ACCT#7090006006 17231 OPA  6/20-7/20/237090006006
12-00-000-72510 19.76
ACCT#8363023007 179TH ST & 82ND AVE 6/278363023007
60-00-000-72510 180.00
63-00-000-72510 180.00

Total : 514.94

203278 8/4/2023 018311  CONNECTION 74119499 HP 78A BLACK TONER
01-16-000-74128 83.94
1814202H WIRELESS DT MK320 KEYBOARD/MOUS74225310
01-16-000-74128 226.72
APPLE DEFENDER IPHONE XR BLACK74246618
01-16-000-74128 145.68
3FT 1M VESA CERTIFIED DISPLAY, 16FT USB74251353
01-16-000-74128 87.80
20S IPHONE 12 USB-C POWER ADAPT74255929
01-16-000-74128 86.28
HDMI TO DP ACTIVE ADAPTER74255962
01-16-000-74128 73.48

5Page:

Page | 202AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 703.90203278 8/4/2023 018311 018311  CONNECTION

203279 8/4/2023 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 66055062 CONSERV LHRP OPEN BACK, #2 STEEL SCOOP
60-00-000-73680 62.14
63-00-000-73680 6.90
64-00-000-73680 29.60

Total : 98.64

203280 8/4/2023 018234  CORE & MAIN LP S915000 METER ANTENNAS
60-00-000-74175 5,934.60VTP-020020
64-00-000-74175 2,543.40VTP-020020

Total : 8,478.00

203281 8/4/2023 018152  CORE INTEGRATED MARKETING 127423 BLOCK PARTY STAGE BANNERS "EAST STAGE" "
01-35-000-72923 424.00

Total : 424.00

203282 8/4/2023 020267  CORNERSTONE GOVERNMENT AFFAIRSVTP-092023 GOVT RELATIONS AND CONSULTING SVC 8/18-9
01-14-000-72790 4,000.00

Total : 4,000.00

203283 8/4/2023 020338  DACRA TECH LLC DT2023-05-112 E-TICKETING SUBSCRIPTION FY23 - MAY '23
01-16-000-72655 2,000.00
E-TICKETING SUBSCRIPTION FY23 - JUNE '23DT2023-06-102
01-16-000-72655 2,000.00

Total : 4,000.00

203284 8/4/2023 019781  DREAMSCAPE PONDS INV-003974 FOUNTAIN
01-26-023-72790 12,002.78VTP-020034
01-26-023-72790 352.33

Total : 12,355.11

203285 8/4/2023 017073  DYNEGY ENERGY SERVICES LLC 3613125002 INV# 146561323071 164TH & HARLEM AVE POS
64-00-000-72510 582.54
INV#146561323071 16296 S 84TH AVE POST 63670129006
64-00-000-72510 223.91
INV#146561323071- 8301 S RIDGELAND POST3784068018
60-00-000-72510 9,376.36

6Page:

Page | 203AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203285 8/4/2023 (Continued)017073  DYNEGY ENERGY SERVICES LLC
63-00-000-72510 9,376.36
INV#146561323071-  6640 W 167TH ST 5/26-4373166015
60-00-000-72510 5,048.56
63-00-000-72510 5,048.56
INV#146561323071 171STST & 80TH AVE 5/265095140029
64-00-000-72510 2,511.96

Total : 32,168.25

203286 8/4/2023 004152  ECOLAB PEST ELIMINATION INC. 9987723 COCKROACH/RODENT PROGRAM
01-26-025-72790 607.85
COCKROACH/RODENT PROGRAM9987724
01-26-025-72790 86.48

Total : 694.33

203287 8/4/2023 011176  ELEMENT GRAPHICS & DESIGN, INC 20101 2014 TAHOE - REPAIRS UNIT #4605 - CHIEF
01-19-000-72540 144.78
TAHOE DECAL INSTALL - BATTALION #14621273
01-19-000-72540 182.04
CHEVY TAHOE - FULL KIT - SIDE TPFD, SCRA21288
01-19-000-72540 1,071.98
TAHOE - BLACK ROOF WRAP21305
01-19-000-72540 1,136.47
POLICE GRAPHICS KITS - K9 UNIT21330
01-17-205-72540 186.80

Total : 2,722.07

203288 8/4/2023 017807  EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICE INC. 13199 UNIT #T-46 - BATTERIES REPLACED, CHECKED
01-19-000-72540 2,793.94
UNIT T-46 - STARTER WAS BAD, REPLACED, R33127
01-19-000-72540 3,894.17

Total : 6,688.11

203289 8/4/2023 019561  ENDLESS COMMUNICATIONS USA LLC DG-2122 PUSH TO TALK LTE DATA RADIO SVC 8/1-8/31
01-42-000-72550 45.74

Total : 45.74

7Page:

Page | 204AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203290 8/4/2023 004019  EVON'S TROPHIES & AWARDS 061923 PORT BG980 BLK GYM BAG - EMB TP LOGO IN
60-00-000-73870 62.16
63-00-000-73870 62.16
64-00-000-73870 53.28
01-26-023-73870 177.60
01-26-025-73870 88.80
2X8 STAFF JASON ENGBERG - PLANNING MANAG071723
01-26-025-73110 48.70

Total : 492.70

203291 8/4/2023 004176  FEDEX (FEDERAL EXPRESS) 8-203-24303 ACCT#2022-6845-2 SHIPPING COSTS FROM 7/2
01-17-205-72110 14.55

Total : 14.55

203292 8/4/2023 012484  FERGUSON FACILITIES #3400 7325103 3 MNPT X 2-1/2 DOUBLE  MALE HEX NIPPLE -
60-00-000-73630 205.37
63-00-000-73630 22.82
64-00-000-73630 97.79

Total : 325.98

203293 8/4/2023 011611  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO. IN0002095KL RADIO INSPECTIONS WITH REPAIRS, INSPECTI
14-00-000-72550 788.00

Total : 788.00

203294 8/4/2023 020347  FUN FUN FUN DJS 081523 DJ FOR CRUISE NIGHTS - AUGUST 15, 2023
01-35-000-72923 200.00VTP-019970

Total : 200.00

203295 8/4/2023 018387  GBJ SALES, LLC 4969 1/4 #POWDERED ENZYME PAKS - 50
60-00-000-73550 106.73
63-00-000-73550 106.73
64-00-000-73550 91.49
 BLACK NITRILE 6 MIL. GLOVES - 104984
01-26-025-73580 177.95

Total : 482.90

203296 8/4/2023 019609  GIS PLANNING INC 2120860552 RENEWAL ZOOM PROSPECTOR ENTERPRISE 9/22/

8Page:

Page | 205AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203296 8/4/2023 (Continued)019609  GIS PLANNING INC
84-00-000-20432 6,900.00

Total : 6,900.00

203297 8/4/2023 020781  GORDON ELECTRIC SUPPLY S2630193.001 LIGHT FIXTURES
60-00-000-72520 1,104.02VTP-020138
63-00-000-72520 1,104.02VTP-020138
64-00-000-72520 946.30VTP-020138

Total : 3,154.34

203298 8/4/2023 004438  GRAINGER 9731010378 URINAL SCREEN, ROUND BLUE, WINDOW SQUEEG
01-19-000-73580 60.98
01-19-000-73870 533.88

Total : 594.86

203299 8/4/2023 000863  GRAPHIC SCREEN PRINTING 18790 DUTY T-SHIRTS
01-19-000-73610 318.00VTP-020087

Total : 318.00

203300 8/4/2023 014491  HANSEN DOOR INC. 12119 WEST GATE - TROUBLESHOOT ISSUE W/PHOTO E
01-26-025-72520 260.00
WEST GATE: REPLACED PHOTO EYE, GROUNDING12123
01-26-025-72520 445.00

Total : 705.00

203301 8/4/2023 021108  HAYDEN, DESEAN 072623 REIM:  EMA TRAINING - HEARTSAVER FIRST A
01-21-000-72140 16.00

Total : 16.00

203302 8/4/2023 019784  HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS LLC 615728-H FIRE DEPARTMENT SHAREPOINT SITE
30-00-000-74159 92.50VTP-019473
FIRE DEPARTMENT SHAREPOINT SITE615729-H
30-00-000-74159 92.50VTP-019473

Total : 185.00

203303 8/4/2023 012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS 5977593070823 ACCT#32542175977593 JUNE '23 WATER COOLE
01-21-210-73110 395.60

9Page:

Page | 206AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 395.60203303 8/4/2023 012281 012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS

203304 8/4/2023 021109  HOFFMEISTER, JOHN 073123 DUPLICATE PAYMENT FOR 2023 CRIME FREE HO
01-00-000-43025 50.00

Total : 50.00

203305 8/4/2023 010238  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 69190003434685 ****2304 MKBRASSKY - MINUTE KEY BRASS KE
01-26-025-73410 332.97

Total : 332.97

203306 8/4/2023 005160  ILLINOIS STATE POLICE 20230604004 CC4004 TINLEY FINGERPRINT VILLAGE 6/1-6/
01-14-000-72848 56.50

Total : 56.50

203307 8/4/2023 005186  INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM 30001042 M-65HC BATTERY - MT-34, ATCORE
60-00-000-72540 64.58
63-00-000-72540 21.53
64-00-000-72540 36.89

Total : 123.00

203308 8/4/2023 005022  ISAWWA 200082727 REGISTRATION FOR 9/6/23 WATER DISTRIBUTI
60-00-000-72140 80.50
63-00-000-72140 80.50
64-00-000-72140 69.00

Total : 230.00

203309 8/4/2023 005212  J S R  ENTERPRISES INC 26717 PLUMBING EMERGENCY - WATER ISSUE, VALVES
01-26-025-72520 2,090.84

Total : 2,090.84

203310 8/4/2023 005266  J.M.D. SOX OUTLET, INC. 20230418 WORK CLOTHES/CARILO NOVOA
01-26-023-73610 84.89
WORK CLOTHES/CAMILO NOVOA20230425
01-26-023-73610 180.76

Total : 265.65

203311 8/4/2023 019630  JOTFORM, INC. 06272307 WEBFORM SOFTWARE
01-16-000-72655 4,740.00VTP-020128

10Page:

Page | 207AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 4,740.00203311 8/4/2023 019630 019630  JOTFORM, INC.

203312 8/4/2023 020955  KALEIDOSCOPE EYES 032323 BAND FOR 9/9 MUSIC IN THE PLAZA
01-35-000-72923 2,000.00VTP-020194

Total : 2,000.00

203313 8/4/2023 021114  KREYDICH, ADELYNN 072823 REIM:  HEARTSAVER FIRST AID ONLINE CLASS
01-21-000-72140 16.00

Total : 16.00

203314 8/4/2023 020794  LEGALSHIELD 0025407 1ST QUARTER FY24 ANCILLARY LEGAL BENEFIT
01-14-000-72430 74.80VTP-020009

Total : 74.80

203315 8/4/2023 019370  LIBIDO FUNK CIRCUS 032323 BAND FOR 9/23 MUSIC IN THE PLAZA
01-35-000-72923 3,850.00VTP-020195

Total : 3,850.00

203316 8/4/2023 019023  M & F SERVICES ONE INC 3088 TESTING, REPAIR, CERTIFICATION BOILER FE
01-26-025-72790 195.36
TESTING OF BACKLOW DEVICES -VILLAGE HALL3093
01-26-025-72790 428.50

Total : 623.86

203317 8/4/2023 001439  M & M AUTO GLASS & UPHOL.SERV. 524299 TINTED WINDSHEILD 2016 INTERNATIONAL
01-26-023-72540 425.00

Total : 425.00

203318 8/4/2023 020518  MARIO'S EVENT RENTALS QB122224 ADDITIONAL GENERATOR FOR BOUNCE HOUSES A
01-35-000-72923 733.35

Total : 733.35

203319 8/4/2023 005765  MARTIN WHALEN O.S. INC. IN4538746 CONTRACT INVOICE #18232-01 PUBLIC WORKS
01-16-000-72756 941.46
CONTRACT INVOICE #19681-01 6/29/22-6/28/IN4545389
01-16-000-72756 8,741.36

Total : 9,682.82

11Page:

Page | 208AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203320 8/4/2023 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY 15030-133342 AIR FILTER - HD, AIR FILTER - HD - STREE
01-26-023-72540 377.32
SWAY BAR, SWAY BAR LNK KIT, BUSHING UNIT15030-133394
01-17-205-72540 94.89
CALIPER15030-133421
01-17-205-72540 142.46

Total : 614.67

203321 8/4/2023 005645  MEADE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC. 705283 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE - JULY 2023
01-26-024-72775 580.94

Total : 580.94

203322 8/4/2023 006074  MENARDS 42100 ACCT#30860355 - RAIN-X SILICONE 22"
01-19-000-72540 53.92
ACCT#30860257 - FEBREZE AIR, STAINLESS L42446
60-00-000-73870 0.59
63-00-000-73870 0.59
64-00-000-73870 0.50
01-26-023-73870 1.68
01-26-024-73870 0.84
01-26-025-73580 31.35
01-26-025-73870 33.98
ACCT# 30860257 2PK RETRACTABLE TDOWNS, M42523
01-26-024-73410 114.79
ACCT# 30860257 - COUNTERSINK BIT 1/2", 542585
01-26-025-72520 8.36
ACCT# 30860355 - 4X8 RTD SHTG, 2X6-8' ST42648
01-19-000-72140 427.10

Total : 673.70

203323 8/4/2023 021110  MI FLUID POWER SOLUTIONS N14637-001 BRENNAN FITTING - 45 DEGREE ELBOW FORGED
01-26-023-72540 89.52

Total : 89.52

203324 8/4/2023 020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC 112142559 SERVICE CALL #2306-3087 SITE CODE: 001 C
01-26-025-72520 1,475.65

12Page:

Page | 209AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 1,475.65203324 8/4/2023 020938 020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC

203325 8/4/2023 019316  MINUTEMAN SECURITY, & LIFE SAFETY 92677 LICENSE RENEWAL ANNUAL MST LPR DATA SHAR
01-16-000-72655 2,000.00

Total : 2,000.00

203326 8/4/2023 018026  MUNICIPAL FLEET MANAGERS ASSOC 080823 DAN QUINN ATTENDANCE - 8/8/23 BREAKFAST
01-26-023-72170 35.00

Total : 35.00

203327 8/4/2023 015386  MUNICIPAL GIS PARTNERS, INC 7037 GIS STAFFING SERVICE JUNE '23
01-16-000-72652 9,270.00
60-00-000-72652 5,840.10
63-00-000-72652 648.90
64-00-000-72652 2,781.00

Total : 18,540.00

203328 8/4/2023 015723  NICOR 01981510009 ACCT#01981510009 METER#3968968 7780 W 18
01-26-025-72511 70.11
ACCT#06821610000 METER 2769335 6640 167T06821610000
60-00-000-72511 19.08
63-00-000-72511 19.08
64-00-000-72511 16.34
ACCT#53463710003 METER 2912216 18241 S 853463710003
01-26-025-72511 51.60
ACCT#54072310003 METER 5420864 16250 OAK54072310003
01-26-025-72511 822.40
ACCT#73675410002 METER 3561300 7800 183R73675410002
01-26-025-72511 809.78
ACCT#74433410003 METER 3575402 7700 W 1874433410003
01-26-025-72511 49.75
ACCT#83523710008 METER#3026205 7980 183R83523710008
01-26-025-72511 205.48
ACCT#90223493009 METER 5080735 6700 SOUT90223493009
01-26-025-72511 70.74
ACCT#96019958527 METER#4582666 7999 W TI96019958527
01-26-025-72511 157.48

13Page:

Page | 210AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 2,291.84203328 8/4/2023 015723 015723  NICOR

203329 8/4/2023 006221  NORTHERN SAFETY CO. INC. 905608013 NINJA FLEX SERIES LATEX COATED BLV
60-00-000-73845 157.97
63-00-000-73845 17.55
64-00-000-73845 75.23
01-26-023-73845 62.11
01-26-024-73845 31.06

Total : 343.92

203330 8/4/2023 010135  ONSITE COMMUNICATIONS USA, INC 52714 RADIOS FOR EOC AT RIBFEST
11-00-000-72750 850.25

Total : 850.25

203331 8/4/2023 016869  OPTO SOLUTIONS INC 13459 CONNECTOR, RIPEX, RIPEX2, M!DGE3, POWER
60-00-000-72528 12.50
63-00-000-72528 12.50
60-00-000-72528 19.26
63-00-000-72528 19.26

Total : 63.52

203332 8/4/2023 021106  P4 SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC 11591 OFF DUTY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER - RIB F
01-35-000-72923 65,610.00

Total : 65,610.00

203333 8/4/2023 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 070926/1 CUST#9404 - DOUBLE HOOK BN 4LB, KEY ID T
01-19-000-72540 30.85
CUST#891431 - PLASTIC PAIL, DAWN ULTRA,070996/1
60-00-000-73410 33.98
63-00-000-73410 3.78
64-00-000-73410 16.17
CONNECTOR2 WIRE ORANGE, EXCHANGE LP TANK70845/1
01-19-000-72524 13.98
01-19-000-73585 39.98
CUST#9404 - CLOROX CLEAN UP, DISHWASHER70918/1
01-19-000-73585 252.19
01-19-000-73530 316.51

14Page:

Page | 211AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203333 8/4/2023 (Continued)006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE
01-19-000-73870 658.79
01-19-000-73845 89.94
CUST#891432 - LIQUID CHLORINATOR 1 GAL,70971/1
01-26-023-73550 62.98
CUST#89143 - RAID WASP & HORNET70992/1
01-26-025-72520 9.98

Total : 1,529.13

203334 8/4/2023 017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY 139922 4130.0001 LEGAL SVC VTP GENERAL MATTER T
01-14-000-72850 13,263.43
4130.0003 LEGAL SVC FOIA THRU 6/30//23139923
01-14-000-72857 4,558.00
4130.0022 LEGAL SVC NEW BREMEN TIF THRU139924
27-00-000-72850 9,480.00
4130.0025 LEGAL SVC TP 2019 NO CASH BID139925
01-14-000-72850 2,042.50
4130.0031 LEGAL SVC TP EMINENT DOMAIN TH139926
27-00-000-72850 1,935.00
4130.0037 SVC FOR BRIXMOOR DEDEVELOPMENT139927
28-00-000-72850 3,420.00
4130.0039 LEGAL SVC VOLLMER HARLEM ANNEX139928
01-14-000-72850 180.00
4130.0050 LEGAL SVC LINCOLN WAY 191 PROP139929
01-14-000-72850 210.00
4130.0001 LEGAL SVC VTP GENERAL MATTER T139930
01-14-000-72855 3,311.00
4160.0001 LEGAL SVC VPT PROSECUTIONS THR139931
01-14-000-72858 4,988.00
4173.0007 LEGAL SVC J&J VENTURES GAMING139932
01-14-000-72850 43.00
4173-0008 LEGAL SVC J&J VENTURES GAMING139933
01-14-000-72850 623.50
4173-0009 LEGAL SVC J&J GAMING TP (2022-139934
01-14-000-72850 258.00

Total : 44,312.43

15Page:

Page | 212AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203335 8/4/2023 006498  POLICE CHIEFS ASSC OF WILL CO 072623 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL - JACK TOUHY
01-17-205-72720 50.00

Total : 50.00

203336 8/4/2023 006780  POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC 411042612 TIRES FOR UNIT 1503
01-19-000-72570 541.24VTP-020136
TIRES FOR UNIT 66411045791
01-26-024-73560 615.08VTP-020181

Total : 1,156.32

203337 8/4/2023 013587  PROSHRED SECURITY 1210879 SERVICE 27" EXEC CONSOLEM 96 GALLON BIN
01-17-205-72750 97.03

Total : 97.03

203338 8/4/2023 018110  PROVEN BUSINESS PRODUCTS 1060665 MONTHLY CONTRACT SVC AGREEMENT #10365-01
01-16-000-72756 888.96

Total : 888.96

203339 8/4/2023 010575  PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING COUNCIL 268542 SEARCH WARRANT MAJOR CASE INVESTIGATION
01-17-220-72140 350.00

Total : 350.00

203340 8/4/2023 006850  QUILL CORPORATION 33645872 2.8MIL TOPLOADING SHT PROTECT, BOOKENDS
01-35-000-73110 21.18
STARBUCKS GIFT CARDS, SCOTCH SHIP TAPE,33722873
01-35-000-73110 43.55

Total : 64.73

203341 8/4/2023 006361  RAY O' HERRON CO INC 2279828 LW REV RAINCOAT BLK/YEL 4XLL
01-21-000-73610 195.99
GOLD PLATE BADGE PLAIN SEAL2286173
01-17-205-73610 466.51

Total : 662.50

203342 8/4/2023 012095  RECORD A HIT INC 232083 BOUNCE HOUSES FOR BOO BASH - DEPOSIT
01-35-000-72923 1,145.00VTP-020196

Total : 1,145.00

16Page:

Page | 213AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203343 8/4/2023 006870  RELIABLE FIRE EQUIPMENT 89534 FUEL SURCHAGE, ON LOCATOIN SERVICE, 6YR
01-26-025-72535 656.50

Total : 656.50

203344 8/4/2023 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 23070312 19-R0866.04 TP 191ST ST & 80TH AVE - CE
26-00-000-75706 2,196.50
21-R0306 TP CRANA HOMES DEV 80TH AVE & 123070313
01-14-000-72840 7,097.25
22-R0503 TP MARRIOTT HOTEL 183RD ST THRU23070315
01-14-000-72840 884.75
22-R0644.01 TP OAK RIDGE CONSTRUCTION EN23070316
16-00-000-72840 10,671.00
22-R0644.02 PT PETE'S FRESH MARKET CONST23070317
28-00-000-72840 3,799.00
23-R0486 - TP PARK PLAZA - PHASE II - MA23070319
28-00-000-72840 2,741.00
19-R0866.03 TP 191ST ST & 80TH AVE - PHA23070324
26-00-000-75706 6,750.00
22-R0633 TP GAS N WASH (LAGRANGE &183RD)23070325
01-14-000-72840 3,213.50

Total : 37,353.00

203345 8/4/2023 019092  RORY GROUP, LLC 4059 BUSINESS CONSULTING AUGUST 2023
01-11-000-72790 3,500.00

Total : 3,500.00

203346 8/4/2023 016334  RUSH TRUCK CENTERS 3033486374 DRUM, FRT WHEEL BRK, KT SHOE KIT BRAKE S
01-26-023-72540 906.34

Total : 906.34

203347 8/4/2023 007260  SAUTTER, SHARON 080123 RETIREE BENEFITS ENDED ROBERT G SAUTTER
84-00-000-20199 150.72

Total : 150.72

203348 8/4/2023 007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 8564199 FARMER'S MARKET PORT-A-POTTY 7/22/23
01-35-000-72923 369.00

Total : 369.00

17Page:

Page | 214AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203349 8/4/2023 007224  STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY P44501 STREET SWEEPER BRUSHES
01-26-023-72530 1,179.84VTP-020183
01-26-023-72530 117.65

Total : 1,297.49

203350 8/4/2023 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S007399687.001 WATERTIGHT INLINE FUSEHOLDER W/CRIMP TER
01-26-024-73570 489.12
V2000BC RACEWAY BASE & CVR P/FTS007401783.001
01-26-025-72552 35.20
LEV 86014 IG IV BLANK PLATES007402324.001
01-26-025-72520 0.51
WM V2048 SW/RCPT BOXS007402324.002
01-26-025-72520 13.23
CENTIUM 2 LAMPS007403221.001
01-26-025-72520 48.64
RE-WIRE CONTROL BOX AT 76TH AVE TO COMEDS007404064.001
01-26-024-73570 499.02

Total : 1,085.72

203351 8/4/2023 011038  STEVE SPIESS CONSTRUCTION INC. 5260 NEW LENOX METER VAULT PROJECT - PAY REQU
26-00-000-75706 240,934.37VTP-019966

Total : 240,934.37

203352 8/4/2023 007205  SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC. 216506 DISINFECTANT BY PRODUCTS
60-00-000-72865 1,249.50
64-00-000-72865 535.50

Total : 1,785.00

203353 8/4/2023 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 583651 KIT JET - 7D & STOCK - POLICE
01-17-205-72540 25.76
MOULDING - #98 - STREET583818
01-26-023-72540 94.46
MOULDING WINDSHEILD UNIT #40 - STREET584158
01-26-023-72540 89.53

Total : 209.75

203354 8/4/2023 020790  TEXAS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY SB0DBM20230716001 1ST QUARTER FY24 ANCILLARY LIFE INS BENE

18Page:

Page | 215AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203354 8/4/2023 (Continued)020790  TEXAS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
01-14-000-72430 870.52VTP-020011

Total : 870.52

203355 8/4/2023 017520  THE COP FIRE SHOP 212525 EMB L/C LOGO (TINLEY PARK LIFE AMPLIFIED
01-33-000-73610 144.00

Total : 144.00

203356 8/4/2023 007886  THEODORE POLYGRAPH SERVICE 8269 PRE-EMPLOYMENT DOUGLAS CURLEE - POLICE
01-41-040-72846 200.00

Total : 200.00

203357 8/4/2023 007777  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION 1846 5 NEW CONSTRUCTION PERMIT REINSPECTIONS
01-33-300-72853 375.00

Total : 375.00

203358 8/4/2023 019712  TM TIRE CO INC 151847 POLICE UNIT 2M TIRES
01-17-205-73560 412.88VTP-020187
01-17-205-73560 15.00

Total : 427.88

203359 8/4/2023 012187  TOTAL AUTOMATION CONCEPTS, INC C015661 BUILDING AUTOMATION  MAINTENANCE AND INS
01-26-025-72790 9,504.00VTP-020114

Total : 9,504.00

203360 8/4/2023 020793  TRANSAMERICA LIFE INSURANCE 2505064244 1ST QUARTER FY24 ANCILLARY LIFE INS BENE
01-14-000-72430 89.50VTP-020010

Total : 89.50

203361 8/4/2023 014510  TRUGREEN 179950720 LAWN TREATMENT - 76TH ST MEDIAN 161ST-16
01-26-023-72881 250.00VTP-019985
LAWN TREATMENT - CHAS POWERS PUBLIC WORK179960438
01-26-023-72881 90.00VTP-019985
LAWN TREATMENT - 179TH BERM - 84TH & 179180214345
01-26-023-72881 225.00VTP-019985
LAWN TREATMENT - FIRE HOUSE #3 - 9191 17180216519
01-26-023-72881 40.00VTP-019985

19Page:

Page | 216AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 605.00203361 8/4/2023 014510 014510  TRUGREEN

203362 8/4/2023 002176  UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 080123 AUGUST WATER BILLS
60-00-000-72110 2,344.52
64-00-000-72110 1,004.79

Total : 3,349.31

203363 8/4/2023 020715  VANTAGE AV 12435-3 STAGE AND SOUND PRODUCTION FOR SEPT. MIP
01-35-000-72923 5,975.00VTP-020197

Total : 5,975.00

203364 8/4/2023 020715  VANTAGE AV 12437-3 STAGE AND SOUND PRODUCTION FOR SEPT. MIP
01-35-000-72923 5,975.00VTP-020197

Total : 5,975.00

203365 8/4/2023 021112  VILLAGE OF CHANNAHON 0000002135 ILEAS - RIBFEST DETAIL - OFR NELLI & OFR
01-35-000-72923 1,980.00

Total : 1,980.00

203366 8/4/2023 021111  VILLAGE OF PLAINFIELD 00000001 PLAINFIELD OFC# 167 R ROBLES ILEAS RIBFE
01-35-000-72923 733.01

Total : 733.01

203367 8/4/2023 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC 5534447-0 BOARD 6' X 4' MAGNETIC
01-26-025-73110 482.50

Total : 482.50

203368 8/4/2023 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1579044 N.I., GAS USED 7/1-7/21/32
01-17-205-73530 11,559.57
01-19-000-73530 743.81
01-19-020-73530 41.43
01-21-000-73530 1,995.90
60-00-000-73530 868.93
63-00-000-73530 217.23
64-00-000-73530 465.50
01-26-023-73530 1,717.41
01-26-024-73530 834.22
01-33-300-73530 259.65

20Page:

Page | 217AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203368 8/4/2023 (Continued)011055  WARREN OIL CO.
01-12-000-73530 76.34
01-14-000-73532 97.68
01-14-000-73531 961.54
01-42-000-73530 414.16
DIESEL FUEL USED 6/15/23-7/21/23W1579045
01-19-000-73545 2,133.18
60-00-000-73545 274.75
63-00-000-73545 68.68
64-00-000-73545 147.19
01-26-023-73545 2,407.03
01-26-024-73545 232.66
01-21-000-73530 33.33
01-14-000-73531 223.26
01-17-205-73530 44.92

Total : 25,818.37

Bank total : 1,346,007.12116 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

21Page:

Page | 218AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4643 8/1/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
60-00-000-72542 151.76
63-00-000-72542 28.91
64-00-000-72542 77.42

Total : 258.09

4644 8/1/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-1 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
60-00-000-72542 151.76
63-00-000-72542 28.91
64-00-000-72542 77.42

Total : 258.09

4645 8/1/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-2 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
60-00-000-72542 151.76
63-00-000-72542 28.91
64-00-000-72542 77.42

Total : 258.09

4646 8/1/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ENCOMPASS SPECIALTY NETWORK
01-14-000-72542 146.50

Total : 146.50

Bank total : 920.774 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

1,346,927.89Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report120

22Page:

Page | 219AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/03/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
23

 2:20:41PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount
The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

23Page:

Page | 220AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203370 8/8/2023 021118  RAINBOW CONE LLC 080823 SENIOR CENTER LUNCHEON 8/9/23
01-41-056-72937 139.98

Total : 139.98

203371 8/11/2023 012659  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 6717321489472 OIL FILTER, FUEL FILTER - EMA #673
01-21-000-72540 16.07

Total : 16.07

203372 8/11/2023 002734  AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 196547 STREAMLIGHT; VULCAN CLUTCH 120V AC & 12V
01-19-000-73410 420.00

Total : 420.00

203373 8/11/2023 016616  AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE 10972 EMS SERVICE AGREEMENT 7/1-7/31/23
01-21-000-72856 44,504.58

Total : 44,504.58

203374 8/11/2023 002470  AMPEST EXTERMINATION LLC 6128 BALD FACED HORNETS NEST REMOVAL 6628 164
01-26-023-72790 195.00

Total : 195.00

203375 8/11/2023 002665  APPLE CHEVROLET 402947 NUT,CAP PK TAHOE -FD
01-19-000-72540 539.68
FD- CAP PKG TAHOE403280
01-19-000-72540 136.00

Total : 675.68

203376 8/11/2023 004223  ARC ILLINOIS / ARC IMAGING 941071 36X150 24# COLOR INKJET BOND
01-35-000-73110 168.89

Total : 168.89

203377 8/11/2023 020986  ARIES CHARTER TRANSPORTATION 99311 ALE TRAIL TROLLEY - 8-23-23
01-35-100-72790 2,800.00VTP-020199

Total : 2,800.00

203378 8/11/2023 020986  ARIES CHARTER TRANSPORTATION 99310 ALE TRAIL TROLLEY 8-16-23
01-35-100-72790 2,800.00VTP-020200

1Page:

Page | 221AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 2,800.00203378 8/11/2023 020986 020986  ARIES CHARTER TRANSPORTATION

203379 8/11/2023 020536  AVANT CALIBRATION SERVICES LLC 7252023-01 NIST CALIBRATION FIRE TOWER
01-19-000-72750 430.00

Total : 430.00

203380 8/11/2023 003166  B & J TOWING AND AUTO REPAIR 23156 SAFETY INSPECTION 7/24/23
01-26-023-72266 333.00
60-00-000-72266 12.25
63-00-000-72266 12.25
64-00-000-72266 10.50

Total : 368.00

203381 8/11/2023 021113  BANNER SOLUTIONS 11118044 ABUS 1 3/4 BR - SCH C-L
01-26-025-72520 452.55

Total : 452.55

203382 8/11/2023 002923  BLACK DIRT INC. 5391 BLACK DIRT FOR LAWN RESTORATIONS - TICKE
01-26-023-73680 250.00VTP-020161

Total : 250.00

203383 8/11/2023 021122  CANDELERO, VINCENT 080823 EMD RECERTIFICATION
01-21-210-72140 30.00

Total : 30.00

203384 8/11/2023 003304  CARLIN-MORAN LANDSCAPE INC 6566 LAWN MAINT 18401 MAPLE CREEK,16836 OPA,8
01-33-300-72744 900.00

Total : 900.00

203385 8/11/2023 014026  CHANDLER SERVICES CORPORATION 29462 E-ONE FIRE APPARATUS T47 CONNECTION,CLAM
01-19-000-72540 8,750.10

Total : 8,750.10

203386 8/11/2023 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC 2j0004330 EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT FOR (5) NEW POLICE S
30-00-000-74220 13,961.00VTP-019833
CERAMIC BRAKE PADS, GEOSPEC ROTOR - EMA3-0056907
01-21-000-72540 114.33
PD STOCK - BRAKE PADS AND ROTORS3-0056908

2Page:

Page | 222AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203386 8/11/2023 (Continued)015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUND LLC
01-17-205-72540 175.10
5W30 BLEND OIL STREETS UNIT 213-0056974
01-26-023-72540 41.16

Total : 14,291.59

203387 8/11/2023 018325  CHICAGO TRIBUNE COMPANY LLC 166164234 ACCT#166164234 CHICAGO RIBUNE THRU 10/22
01-14-000-72720 114.99

Total : 114.99

203388 8/11/2023 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 4163819188 MATS - PD
01-26-025-72790 190.40
MATS - PW4163819218
01-26-025-72790 440.21

Total : 630.61

203389 8/11/2023 020609  CLASSY FLOWERS 1000011497 SYMPATHY FLOWERS - P.WALLRICH
01-14-000-73870 78.50

Total : 78.50

203390 8/11/2023 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 2777112019 ACCT#2777112019 175TH & SANDALEWOOD DR 6
01-26-023-72510 442.84
ACCT#3214011009 16853 LAKEWOOD DR 6/27-73214011009
64-00-000-72510 189.59

Total : 632.43

203391 8/11/2023 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 66054972 SUNNY GLAMOUR COATED, 13-13-13 AM CONSER
60-00-000-73680 194.04
63-00-000-73680 21.56
64-00-000-73680 92.40

Total : 308.00

203392 8/11/2023 003635  CROSSMARK PRINTING, INC 91884 PD BUSINESS CARD K.SCHUTT
01-17-205-72310 38.95

Total : 38.95

203393 8/11/2023 018379  DM INDUSTRIAL JANITORIAL SERV 7595 POLICE STATIONAL JANITORIAL SERVICES
01-26-025-72525 3,720.00VTP-020154

3Page:

Page | 223AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 3,720.00203393 8/11/2023 018379 018379  DM INDUSTRIAL JANITORIAL SERV

203394 8/11/2023 017073  DYNEGY ENERGY SERVICES LLC 3613125002 ACCT#3613125002 INV#146561323081 164TH &
64-00-000-72510 1,140.86
ACCT#3670129006 INV#146561323081 16296 S3670129006
64-00-000-72510 375.18
ACCT#3784068018 INV#146561323081 18301 S3784068018
60-00-000-72510 6,446.89
63-00-000-72510 6,446.89
ACCT#4373166015 INV#146561323081 6640 W4373166015
60-00-000-72510 4,176.60
63-00-000-72510 4,176.59
ACCT#5095140029 INV#146561323081 171ST &5095140029
64-00-000-72510 6,001.44

Total : 28,764.45

203395 8/11/2023 004152  ECOLAB PEST ELIMINATION INC. 2262181 EXTERIOR INSECT
01-26-025-72790 300.00

Total : 300.00

203396 8/11/2023 017807  EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICE INC. 13246 UNIT I-49 INSPECTION OF BRAKES AND ADJUS
01-19-000-72540 375.00
UNIT E-48 SERVICE13352A
01-19-000-72540 7,791.65

Total : 8,166.65

203397 8/11/2023 020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK 061323 ****2177 MILITARY LAW ENFORCEMENT K SWEE
01-17-220-72170 -585.00
****2177 WATER063023.
01-14-000-73115 26.16
01-26-023-73115 20.93
60-00-000-73115 7.33
63-00-000-73115 7.33
64-00-000-73115 6.28
01-26-024-73115 10.45
****2177 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL070323
60-00-000-72720 6.30

4Page:

Page | 224AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
63-00-000-72720 6.30
64-00-000-72720 5.40
01-26-023-72720 18.00
01-26-024-72720 9.00
****2177 BAND TRANSPORTATION FOR RIB FES070323
01-35-000-72923 476.52
****2177 COOLER070323.
60-00-000-73870 12.60
63-00-000-73870 12.60
64-00-000-73870 10.79
01-26-023-73870 35.99
01-26-024-73870 18.00
****2177 HOT DOGS, BUNS, CHIPS070323..
60-00-000-72220 20.10
63-00-000-72220 20.10
64-00-000-72220 17.23
01-26-023-72220 57.43
01-26-024-72220 28.71
****2177 WATER FOR STAFF AT RIBFEST070323...
01-35-000-72923 313.92
*****2177 AMAZON DISPUTE CHARGE070423
01-14-000-73110 45.99
****2177 PLATES, DRINKS, FRUIT070523
01-33-000-72220 38.09
****2177 J ENGBERG WELCOME BREAKFAST070523
01-33-000-72220 97.48
****2177 CHICAGO TRIBUNE MONTHLY RECURRI071023
01-35-000-72720 34.00
****2177 WATER AND GATORADE FOR BLOCK PA071023
01-35-000-72923 196.14
****2177 PLATES. CUTLERY, POP, CUPS071323
01-14-000-73115 65.32
60-00-000-73115 12.22
63-00-000-73115 12.22
64-00-000-73115 10.48
01-14-000-73115 73.92

5Page:

Page | 225AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
01-26-023-73115 34.92
01-26-024-73115 17.46
****2177 SENIOR CENTER071323
01-41-056-72937 173.57
****2177 PAPER TOWEL, WATER, COFFEE, CUT071723
01-26-025-73580 93.52
01-17-205-73315 128.00
****2177 POSTAGE HEALTHCARE SERVICES071923
01-14-000-72110 57.50
****2177 PAPER TOWL, FOIL, TRAYS, COFFEE071923
60-00-000-73115 40.25
63-00-000-73115 40.25
64-00-000-73115 34.51
01-26-023-73115 115.01
01-26-024-73115 57.50
01-26-025-73580 93.52
01-14-000-72974 110.96
****2177 VENDING MACHINE SNACKS072023
01-14-000-73115 152.62
01-26-025-73580 23.48
****2177 EMPLY PICNIC - SIDE DISH CONTES072123
01-14-000-72974 40.00
****2177 MAYORS OFFICE LUNCH072423.
01-12-000-72220 70.38
****2177 CAMPAIGN DESIGN ONE TIME FEE072523
01-35-000-72720 79.00
****2177 EMPLY PICNIC GENERAL SUPPLIES -072523
01-14-000-72974 687.51
01-14-000-73115 78.86
****2177 ICE072623
01-14-000-72974 30.96
****2177 JOB POSTING072723
01-14-000-72448 219.36
****2177 WATER FOR STAFF AT RIBFEST10077314598
01-35-000-72923 317.92
****2177 BLOCK PARTY TIE DYE EQUIPMENT111-1947270-9928211

6Page:

Page | 226AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
01-35-000-72923 200.18
****2177 GEL PEN REFILLS, PRINTER PAPER,111-2101332-8297802
60-00-000-73110 18.18
63-00-000-73110 2.02
64-00-000-73110 8.66
01-26-023-73110 28.87
01-26-024-73110 9.44
****2177 MICROFIBER DUSTER111-3650942-5046647
01-26-025-73680 30.96
****2177 SHIRTS111-3780123-1910643
01-33-000-73610 56.95
****2177 CAMERA CARDS FOR INVESTIGATIONS111-3881617-9862615
01-19-020-73615 119.92
****2177 PRESSBOARD HANGING DATA BINDER111-4448601-8655421
01-19-000-73110 135.63
****2177 RECEIVER111-5183829-0249032
01-26-025-72520 52.69
****2177 PRESSTEX HANGING DATA BINDER111-6192660-7613022
01-19-000-73110 76.05
****2177 KEYBOARD111-6469665-1068247
01-26-025-73110 39.99
****2177 BUSINESS RETENTION BOOK111-6771375-1297010
01-33-000-73610 52.95
****2177 FLOOR SEALER111-6802966-5915455
01-26-025-73680 111.95
****2177 HEAVY DUTY EXAM GLOVES112-1747012-5977845
01-26-025-73580 86.99
****2177 FLOOR STRIPPER TOOL112-1933082-4302650
01-26-025-73580 31.56
****2177 BLANK TAB FILE GUIDES112-2120371-1544206
01-12-000-73110 141.63
****2177 CRAYONS112-4487537-3873850
60-00-000-73590 10.91
63-00-000-73590 2.08
64-00-000-73590 5.57
01-26-023-73590 18.53

7Page:

Page | 227AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 FOOD COVER, INFLATABLE SERVING112-8204723-6980229
01-14-000-72974 70.98
****2177 GAME SETS FOR SENIOR CENTER113-9287074-3646602
01-41-056-72937 90.98
****2177 DRIVEWAY CURB RAMPS114-0876082-0588267
01-26-023-73870 275.96
****2177 PRESSTEX COVERS W/ STORAGE HANG114-5442709-6329043
01-19-000-73110 -120.80
****2177 HANGING DATA BINDER114-8216397-7634642
01-19-000-73110 -70.05
****2177 LEGAL PADS. POST ITS, PERMANENT114-9254747-2265065
01-19-000-73110 46.20
****2177 ASSESSMENT STRATERGY TRAINING C1417-4123
01-17-220-72140 2,695.00VTP-020177
****2177 IPSTA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION M1419-7878
01-21-210-72170 175.00
****2177 WORK BOOTS - DUPLICATE CREDIT1438363
60-00-000-73610 -88.41
63-00-000-73610 -16.84
64-00-000-73610 -45.10
****2177 PROSENSE SIGNAL CONDITIONER, VO15337540
60-00-000-72528 238.00
63-00-000-72528 238.00
 ****2177 IPSTA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION1787-6344
01-21-210-72170 175.00
****2177 ASSESSMENT STRATERGY TRAINING C1890-9641
01-17-220-72140 2,695.00VTP-020177
****2177 IPSTA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION C1927-0490
01-21-210-72170 175.00
****2177 CFM-IL DUES RENEWAL - C ZEMAITI19553
01-26-023-72720 25.00
60-00-000-72720 14.70
63-00-000-72720 2.80
64-00-000-72720 7.50
****2177 TERMINAL OPERATOR HEARING LUNCH19659333348720641
01-11-000-72220 64.17

8Page:

Page | 228AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 MEMBERSHIP19706
01-41-040-72330 214.00
****2177 L KOSMATKA MEMBERSHIP200021091218
01-33-310-72720 388.00
****2177 ADOBE STOCK2195241668
01-35-000-72720 79.99
****2177 SITE SIGNS AND VINYL2358-2970
01-35-000-72923 274.80
****2177 PRINT POWDER, LATENT POWDER2444
01-17-225-73550 83.71
****2177 AICP PRORATED DUES L. KOSMATKA3382081
01-33-310-72140 100.00
****2177 LATERAL PATROL OFFICER A245198
01-41-040-72330 298.00
****2177 POLO SHIRTS6353054473
01-33-000-73610 95.52
****2177 POLO SHIRTS6353054473.
01-33-000-73610 113.73
****2177 APA CONF D RITTER74792630
01-33-000-72170 400.00
****2177 APA CONF J ENGBERG74794106
01-33-310-72170 400.00
****2177 APA CONF L KOSMATKA74794944
01-33-310-72170 400.00
****2177 BAP SUBMISSION FEE D. ADAMSKI764112
01-14-000-72790 575.00
****2177 EMPLY BBQ SUPPLIES768200158
01-14-000-72974 94.43
****2177 JOB BOARD POST LATERAL PATROL O8558665235
01-41-040-72330 215.00
****2177 IL BASIC ECON DEV COURSE C MITE98CD7281
01-33-320-72140 500.00
****2177 PROMOTINGBFDHWPXG62
01-35-000-72653 109.60
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 17136 BRIARE2319833202
01-14-000-72355 112.57

9Page:

Page | 229AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203397 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 8019 174TH PE2319833218
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 6505 W 163RDE2320216030
01-14-000-72355 112.57
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 9101 LETTERKER2023036931
01-14-000-72355 75.81
****2177 SIMPLIFILE SYSTEMS 890 CHEYENNEER2023037389
01-14-000-72355 75.81
****2177 ZOLL AED PLUS RECERTIFIEDINV3218980
01-19-020-73606 794.00VTP-020135
****2177 PROMOTINGNNXBQPXG62
01-35-000-72653 175.00
****2177 INSITE PRO SOFTWARE UPDATEO-0000394690
01-26-023-72540 770.00
****2177 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWALSO00277790
01-26-023-72540 540.00
****2177 JOB PROMOTION USAGE 062123-0720US-INV-00032695
01-14-000-72448 105.30
****2177 PROMOTINGX2CE7PPH62
01-35-000-72653 125.00

Total : 19,075.60

203398 8/11/2023 020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK 070623 ****2177 INTERNET PHOTO
01-35-000-73110 9.84
****2177 DOCUMENT FRAMES071423
01-35-000-73870 26.07
****2177 EMPLY PICNIC - SIDE DISH CONTES072123
01-14-000-72974 20.00
 ****2177 EMPLY PICNIC - SIDE DISH CONTE072123
01-14-000-72974 25.00
****2177 EMPLY PICNIC - SIDE DISH CONTES072123
01-14-000-72974 25.00
****2177 MAYORS OFFICE LUNCH072423
01-12-000-72220 2.07
****2177 LATE FEE CHARGED BY BANK072623
01-14-000-72315 29.00

10Page:

Page | 230AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203398 8/11/2023 (Continued)020246  FIFTH THIRD BANK
****2177 FEATHER DUSTER111-2522445-3495421
01-26-025-73580 13.98
****2177 USB CONNECTOR ADAPTER - SEC CAM111-2948299-5925069
01-26-024-73570 13.98
****2177 ALUMINUM CAPACITOR111-4266947-9367444
01-26-024-73570 17.75
****2177 TAPE FOR FIRE STATION 49111-4323295-5800235
01-19-000-73110 15.80
****2177 STICKY TABS112-9860578-0010629
60-00-000-73110 4.28
63-00-000-73110 0.48
64-00-000-73110 2.03
01-26-023-73110 6.79
01-26-024-73110 3.40
****2177 BALLOON STICKS WITH CUPS113-0697480-9277818
60-00-000-73590 8.52
63-00-000-73590 1.62
64-00-000-73590 4.35
01-26-023-73590 14.48
****2177 LENS CAP COVER FOR CANON113-3628038-5501022
01-35-000-73870 17.48
****2177 FEATHER DUSTER114-1076462-2489841
01-26-025-73580 9.99
****2177 PRESSTEX HANGING DATA BINDER114-3543814-1208266
01-19-000-73110 15.21
****2177 PRESSBOARD HANGING DATA BINDER114-9455599-0173860
01-19-000-73110 15.07

Total : 302.19

203399 8/11/2023 020800  FIRST RESPONDERS WELLNESS 16878 WELLNESS CHECKS
01-17-220-72855 1,400.00

Total : 1,400.00

203400 8/11/2023 012941  FMP 52-543552 GPD 6512268 - EMA #9M - CROWN VICTORIA
01-21-000-72540 255.06
PD 3A CONTROL ARM52-543783

11Page:

Page | 231AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203400 8/11/2023 (Continued)012941  FMP
01-17-205-72540 138.96
GPD 6512268 - EMA #13M67-380782
01-21-000-72540 255.06

Total : 649.08

203401 8/11/2023 017794  FOSTER & FOSTER, INC. 26879 TRUE COST CALCULATION - JAKE THOMPSON
01-14-000-72851 300.00

Total : 300.00

203402 8/11/2023 011611  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO. IN00617015 RADIO INSTALLATION - WORSITE: 251043 TIN
14-00-000-72550 340.00
RADIO INSTALLATION WORKSITE: 273763: RESIN00617034
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO INSTALLATION - WORKSITE: 273765 REIN00617035
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO INSTALLATION WORSITE: 273764: RESIIN00617038
14-00-000-72800 1,009.00
RADIO MAINTENANCE FEES 7/1-7/31/23IN00618215
14-00-000-72750 9,081.75VTP-019960

Total : 12,448.75

203403 8/11/2023 020274  FRAME TECH 1 LLC 39446 FRONT ALIGNMENT UNIT 3A PD
01-17-205-72540 75.00

Total : 75.00

203404 8/11/2023 020347  FUN FUN FUN DJS 082223 DJ FOR CRUISE NIGHTS FOR 8/22/23
01-35-000-72923 200.00VTP-019970

Total : 200.00

203405 8/11/2023 002877  G. W. BERKHEIMER CO.,  INC. 7428584 KEY PLEASE MERV8
01-26-025-72520 73.20
KEY PLEAT MERV8 - VILLAGE ROOFTOP UNIT7428599
01-26-025-72520 42.84
KEY PLEAT MERV8 - POST 127429926
01-26-025-72520 43.60
KEY PLEAT MERV8 - POST 10 A/C7430391

12Page:

Page | 232AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203405 8/11/2023 (Continued)002877  G. W. BERKHEIMER CO.,  INC.
01-26-025-72520 23.44

Total : 183.08

203406 8/11/2023 004458  GATTO'S RESTAURANT & BAR 34573 CROSSING GUARD LUNCHEON 8/9/23 AND 8/15/
01-17-205-72220 306.00

Total : 306.00

203407 8/11/2023 004493  GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC. 768200538 PW BREAKFAST
01-14-000-72974 71.97

Total : 71.97

203408 8/11/2023 004438  GRAINGER 9771920627 EAR PLUGS,CORD REEL,FLUORESCENT BULB,DUC
01-19-000-73845 53.70
01-19-000-72540 148.46
01-19-000-73870 144.30

Total : 346.46

203409 8/11/2023 004741  HEARTS & FLOWERS 011017 FLOWERS - D. PETERSON
01-14-000-73870 71.99

Total : 71.99

203410 8/11/2023 020647  HILLGROVE TAP 071523 STAFF MEAL VOUCHERS FOR 2023 BLOCK PARTY
01-35-000-72923 88.00

Total : 88.00

203411 8/11/2023 012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS 5977593080523 ACCT#32542175977593 JULY'23 WATER COOLER
01-21-210-73110 100.44

Total : 100.44

203412 8/11/2023 020375  HODGE, JILL 071923 REIM: SHIRTS FOR EMBROIDERING PUCHASED 3
01-19-020-73610 60.00

Total : 60.00

203413 8/11/2023 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 8416030 HWD TSF GARBAGE TONS
01-26-023-72890 3,753.75

Total : 3,753.75

13Page:

Page | 233AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203414 8/11/2023 011425  IL EMERGENCY MGMT AGENCY 072823 IEMA-OHS TRAINING SUMMIT L.KORTUM
01-21-000-72170 75.00

Total : 75.00

203415 8/11/2023 004978  ILLINOIS ASSOC OF CHIEFS OF 13430 SAFE-T ACT TRAILER 3 TRAINING S.TENCZA
01-17-205-72140 20.00

Total : 20.00

203416 8/11/2023 012013  ILLINOIS LAW ENFORCEMENT DUES12503 ILEAS 2023 MEMBERSHIP DUES 7/1/23-6/30/2
01-17-205-72720 240.00

Total : 240.00

203417 8/11/2023 005276  J.C.M. UNIFORMS 795329 FD GRECO UNIFORM
01-19-000-73610 136.40

Total : 136.40

203418 8/11/2023 011466  JEWEL OSCO 080123 ****8778 SLIM JIM, M&M,RITZ CRACKERS,TOO
01-14-000-73115 113.40

Total : 113.40

203419 8/11/2023 005379  KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD 235372 LEGAL SVC ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS  MATTE
01-14-000-72876 1,139.50

Total : 1,139.50

203420 8/11/2023 003440  M. COOPER WINSUPPLY CO. 15193301 SUPPLIES TO REPAIR OPA TRAIN STATION TOI
01-26-025-72520 30.91

Total : 30.91

203421 8/11/2023 013969  MAP AUTOMOTIVE OF CHICAGO 40-726197 BATTERY- PD 5M,2R,1W
01-17-205-72540 417.00
BATTERY PD 120240-726198
01-17-205-72540 139.00

Total : 556.00

203422 8/11/2023 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY 15030-133573 FORD CROWN VICTORIA - OXYGEN SENSOR #12M
01-21-000-72540 46.25
CHRGR DOE PD 1W15030-133728
01-17-205-72540 49.99

14Page:

Page | 234AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 96.24203422 8/11/2023 020322 020322  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY

203423 8/11/2023 006074  MENARDS 39736 ACCT#30860257 75W PAR30S 5K TW DLED
01-26-025-72520 7.49
ACCT#30860257 BASIN PLUG,SPOUT EXT42778
64-00-000-73800 10.83
ACCT#30860257 MED FIELD BOX,HEX KEY SET,42852
60-00-000-73410 61.65
63-00-000-73410 6.85
64-00-000-73410 29.36
ACCT#30860257 2PK RETRACTABLE TDOWNS42889
01-26-025-72520 27.99
ACCT#30860257 INV#42905 VINYL TUBING,RIS42905
01-26-023-73630 107.51
ACCT#30860257 INV#42907 DURACLN PAINT42907
01-26-023-73620 67.38
ACCT#30860257 CAT5E CABLE R GRAY42967
60-00-000-75812 119.00
ACCT#30860355 INV#42970 STORAGE TRUNK,MO42970
01-19-000-72540 31.94
01-19-000-73540 40.42
01-19-000-73870 61.06
ACCT#30860257 4X4 COVER,EXTENTION,1G PVC42981
01-26-025-72520 9.79
ACCT#30860257 RAID ANT BAITS 4 PK43018
01-26-025-72520 11.97

Total : 593.24

203424 8/11/2023 020938  MIDWEST MECHANICAL GROUP LLC 112142883 SVC#2306-3087 MATERIAL FOR VH
01-26-025-72520 152.25

Total : 152.25

203425 8/11/2023 020497  MIDWEST PUBLIC SAFETY LLC 142593648 BODY WORN CAMERAS FOR PD
30-00-000-74603 363,879.22VTP-020075

Total : 363,879.22

203426 8/11/2023 021121  MOORE, EARL 080423 UNCLE EARLS BBQ FARMERS MARKET - UNABLE

15Page:

Page | 235AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203426 8/11/2023 (Continued)021121  MOORE, EARL
01-00-000-54160 300.00

Total : 300.00

203427 8/11/2023 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 6276155002 FUS 48 VDC LIMITER 250 A STUD MOUNT - UN
60-00-000-72540 17.29
63-00-000-72540 5.76
64-00-000-72540 9.89
SILVER GRADE ANTI-SEIZE 16 OZ BRUSH TO L6329931001
01-26-024-72540 107.94
01-26-023-72540 215.87
60-00-000-72540 113.33
63-00-000-72540 37.78
64-00-000-72540 64.76

Total : 572.62

203428 8/11/2023 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 6329938001 HOSE ISO - STREETS
01-26-023-72540 433.52
FEMALE SWIVEL,MALE RIGID FITTING - STREE6329959001
01-26-023-72540 130.92

Total : 564.44

203429 8/11/2023 010810  MUNICIPAL SERV. CONSULTING INC TPCN-07-23 CONS SVC CIMP FOR VTP JULY  '23
30-00-000-75112 19,729.74
11-00-000-72750 680.40
30-00-000-75812 804.37

Total : 21,214.51

203430 8/11/2023 012301  MVP FIRE SYSTEMS,INC 16240 DROP HEADS IN CEILING
30-00-000-75110 3,568.00VTP-019921

Total : 3,568.00

203431 8/11/2023 015723  NICOR 09977410001 ACCT#09977410001 METER#5146885 7801 W 19
01-26-025-72511 196.26
ACCT#12213610004 METER#5031396 7825 W 1612213610004
01-26-025-72511 201.39

Total : 397.65

16Page:

Page | 236AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203432 8/11/2023 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 071026/1 ACCT#89143 BRASS HOSE W/SHUTOFF
60-00-000-73410 7.05
63-00-000-73410 0.78
64-00-000-73410 3.36
ACCT#891431 INV#071042/1 RISR REMVL TOOL071042/1
01-26-023-73410 9.59
ACCT#89143 INV#71041/1 SOFTSOAP,LAUNDRY71041/1
01-26-025-73580 29.73

Total : 50.51

203433 8/11/2023 019583  PRECISE MRM LLC 200-1043945 5MB FLAT DATA PLAN US WITH NAF JUNE '23
01-26-023-72655 189.00

Total : 189.00

203434 8/11/2023 013587  PROSHRED SECURITY 1215749 PURGE 96 GALLON BIN, SERVICE 26" EXECUTI
01-14-000-72790 404.70

Total : 404.70

203435 8/11/2023 018454  R.C.WEGMAN CONSTRUCTION CO 2023-23-3 HARMONY SQUARE INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMEN
30-00-000-75905 23,881.25VTP-019922

Total : 23,881.25

203436 8/11/2023 006361  RAY O' HERRON CO INC 2269713 GAS MASK CARRIER
01-17-220-73610 38.94
UNIFORM - STAMBAUGH3152553
01-17-220-73610 53.95

Total : 92.89

203437 8/11/2023 007092  SAUNORIS 080723 CREDIT MEMO WAS APPLIED TWICE
01-26-023-73680 168.00

Total : 168.00

203438 8/11/2023 007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 8612678 DEL EVENT BASIC PORT REST, HANDICAP REST
01-17-215-73600 213.00

Total : 213.00

203439 8/11/2023 020680  SPEEDWAY LLC 3000009517 JULY '23 PD CAR WASH
01-17-205-72540 276.00

17Page:

Page | 237AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 276.00203439 8/11/2023 020680 020680  SPEEDWAY LLC

203440 8/11/2023 011767  STALEY, JENNIFER 080923 EMD RECERTIFICATION
01-21-210-72140 30.00

Total : 30.00

203441 8/11/2023 012238  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3543744142 BINDER CLIP,AVERY LABELS
01-14-000-73110 142.13
LABEL,PAPER CLIPS,MEMO BOOK3543744144
01-17-205-73110 82.57

Total : 224.70

203442 8/11/2023 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S007404692.001 MATERIAL FOR COMED DROP 159-76TH AVE
01-26-024-73570 24.93
WIRENUT 72B BLUE 100PC BOX - UNIT #37 STS007404867.001
01-26-025-73570 28.31
POST 12 SCADA - PUBLIC SAFETY MOCS007405329.001
64-00-000-75812 288.61

Total : 341.85

203443 8/11/2023 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 584417 TUBE ASY - CAR #9M - EMA
01-21-000-72540 157.55
ARM ASY FRONT CSO 2584682
01-17-205-72540 341.55

Total : 499.10

203444 8/11/2023 018024  THE PRIMAL CUT STEAKHOUSE 080323 BLOCK PARTY MEAL VOUCHERS LESS ICE
01-35-000-72923 517.00

Total : 517.00

203445 8/11/2023 019192  TINLEY PARK CONVENTION CENTER 071423 RIB FEST MEAL VOUCHERS
01-35-000-72923 1,540.00

Total : 1,540.00

203446 8/11/2023 019192  TINLEY PARK CONVENTION CENTER 072423 BLOCK PARTY MEAL VOUCHERS LESS ICE
01-35-000-72923 112.00

Total : 112.00

18Page:

Page | 238AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203447 8/11/2023 007930  TRANS UNION 07300251 CREDIT SUMMARY,EMPLOYMENT CRD REPORT, ID
01-17-225-72852 90.00

Total : 90.00

203448 8/11/2023 013203  TRIA ARCHITECTURE, INC. 4651 22-037 VOTP OAK PARK AVE TRAIN STATION W
01-26-025-72520 78.60

Total : 78.60

203449 8/11/2023 014510  TRUGREEN 180515013 LAWN TREATMENT PD 7/27/23
01-26-023-72881 70.00VTP-019985

Total : 70.00

203450 8/11/2023 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9940253777 ACCT#442345192-00001 WATER REPEATER 6/23
60-00-000-72127 17.79
63-00-000-72127 17.79
64-00-000-72127 15.25

Total : 50.83

203451 8/11/2023 008085  VERMEER MIDWEST/VERMEER IL PK6979 GAUGE FUEL MAX
01-26-023-72540 137.19

Total : 137.19

203452 8/11/2023 017446  VETERINARY CLINIC OF TINLEY PK 080323 EUTHANASIA FERAL CAT 8/2/23
01-17-220-72240 99.00

Total : 99.00

203453 8/11/2023 006362  VILLAGE OF OAK LAWN 1-9990015-00 ACCT#1-9990015-00 7/1-8/1/23
60-00-000-73220 917,370.51
63-00-000-73220 846,803.54

Total : 1,764,174.05

203454 8/11/2023 006429  VILLAGE OF ORLAND HILLS 080723 26TH IGA PAYMENT FEB-APR'23
01-97-000-79125 25,046.64

Total : 25,046.64

203455 8/11/2023 010278  VILLAGE PIZZA 080123 NATIONAL NIGHT OUT PIZZA
01-17-215-73600 575.00
MEAL VOUCHERS FOR 2023 BLOCK PARTY LESS080723

19Page:

Page | 239AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

203455 8/11/2023 (Continued)010278  VILLAGE PIZZA
01-35-000-72923 35.00

Total : 610.00

203456 8/11/2023 008095  VISSERS COLLISION CENTER 160004580 REPAIR TO TAILGATE
01-26-023-72540 454.20VTP-020192

Total : 454.20

203457 8/11/2023 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC 5543812-0 POST ITS
01-26-024-73110 3.20
01-26-023-73110 6.39
60-00-000-73110 4.03
63-00-000-73110 0.45
64-00-000-73110 1.91
MARKER FLAIR5546130-0
01-26-024-73110 30.48
01-26-023-73110 60.97
60-00-000-73110 38.41
63-00-000-73110 4.27
64-00-000-73110 18.29

Total : 168.40

203458 8/11/2023 011057  WEX BANK 071523 ACCT#0496-00-813434-8 GAS USE 7/15/23 -
01-19-000-72530 73.30

Total : 73.30

Bank total : 2,372,620.9289 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

20Page:

Page | 240AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4647 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 191.24

Total : 191.24

4648 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
60-00-000-72542 151.76
63-00-000-72542 28.91
64-00-000-72542 77.42

Total : 258.09

4649 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-1 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
60-00-000-72542 171.94
63-00-000-72542 32.75
64-00-000-72542 87.72

Total : 292.41

4650 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006-1 PAYEE-ENCOMPASS SPECIALTY NETWORK
01-14-000-72542 153.79

Total : 153.79

4651 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210421W008 PAYEE-ILLINOIS BONE AND JOINT
01-14-000-72542 105.92

Total : 105.92

4652 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210421W008-1 PAYEE-ILLINOIS BONE AND JOINT
01-14-000-72542 95.43

Total : 95.43

4653 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210421W008-2 PAYEE-ILLINOIS BONE AND JOINT
01-14-000-72542 95.43

Total : 95.43

4654 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-2 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
60-00-000-72542 147.88
63-00-000-72542 28.17
64-00-000-72542 75.45

Total : 251.50

21Page:

Page | 241AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4655 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP220811W019 PAYEE-PETERSON, JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 322.50

Total : 322.50

4656 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP220112W046 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 817.00

Total : 817.00

4657 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP190326W026 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 1,128.75

Total : 1,128.75

4658 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP191105W030 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 150.50

Total : 150.50

4659 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200219W023 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 172.00

Total : 172.00

4660 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200505W003 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 129.00

Total : 129.00

4661 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210902W013 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 43.00

Total : 43.00

4662 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP210731W002-3 PAYEE-VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
60-00-000-72542 961.09
63-00-000-72542 183.06
64-00-000-72542 490.35

Total : 1,634.50

4663 8/8/2023 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP2107|2105|2008|2104* PAYEE-GENEX SERVICES, LLC
60-00-000-72542 88.12
63-00-000-72542 16.79
64-00-000-72542 44.96

22Page:

Page | 242AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
23

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4663 8/8/2023 (Continued)018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP
60-00-000-72542 6.54
63-00-000-72542 1.25
64-00-000-72542 3.33
60-00-000-72542 6.54
63-00-000-72542 1.25
64-00-000-72542 3.33
60-00-000-72542 5.30
63-00-000-72542 2.35
64-00-000-72542 3.58
01-14-000-72542 105.39
64-00-000-72542 2.71
63-00-000-72542 0.95
64-00-000-72542 2.53
60-00-000-72542 6.54
63-00-000-72542 1.25
64-00-000-72542 3.33
60-00-000-72542 6.12
63-00-000-72542 1.16
64-00-000-72542 3.12
60-00-000-72542 7.03
63-00-000-72542 1.34
64-00-000-72542 3.58
60-00-000-72542 15.08
63-00-000-72542 2.87
64-00-000-72542 7.70
60-00-000-72542 15.38
63-00-000-72542 2.93
64-00-000-72542 7.84
60-00-000-72542 20.37
63-00-000-72542 2.93
64-00-000-72542 7.86
60-00-000-72542 6.79
63-00-000-72542 1.29
64-00-000-72542 3.47
60-00-000-72542 7.03
63-00-000-72542 1.34

23Page:

Page | 243AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/11/2023
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
24

10:24:23AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

4663 8/8/2023 (Continued)018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP
64-00-000-72542 3.58
60-00-000-72542 7.03

Total : 441.88

Bank total : 6,282.9417 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

2,378,903.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report106

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

24Page:

Page | 244AGENDA - 8/15/2023, H -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
 
 
Date:        August 11, 2023 

To:  Village Board 

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager 

CC:  Hannah Lipman, Asst. Village Manager 

Subject: Teehans  

Staff is recommending approval of the Teehans asset purchase and relocation agreement. The 
village recently purchased the Teehans property and is also purchasing assets including 
naming rights and certain equipment and fixtures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Interoffice   

Memo 

Page | 245AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE 
2023-O-043

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN ASSET PURCHASE AND 
RELOCATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN TEEHAN’S IRISH BAR AND 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS

(17329 S. Oak Park Avenue)

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT 
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DENNIS P. MAHONEY 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys

200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606

Page | 246AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, 
Illinois Will 

County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-043

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN ASSET PURCHASE AND 
RELOCATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN TEEHAN’S IRISH BAR AND 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS

(17329 S. Oak Park Avenue)

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to enter into purchase agreements with third parties; and 

WHEREAS,  the Village has the authority, pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois, to 
promote the health, safety and welfare of the Village and its inhabitants, to prevent the presence 
of blight, to encourage private development in order to enhance the local tax base, to increase 
additional tax revenues realized by the Village, foster increased economic activity within the 
Village, to increase employment opportunities within the Village, and to enter into contractual 
agreements with third parties for the purpose of achieving the aforesaid purposes, and otherwise 
take action in the best interests of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Village is authorized under the provisions of the Tax Increment 
Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq., as amended (the “Act”), to finance 
redevelopment in accordance with the conditions and requirements set forth in the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Village has or shortly will enter into a First Amendment and Restatement 
of the Harmony Square Development Agreement, which authorizes a Developer to undertake the 
development of approximately 89 acres (the “Project”) at North Street and Oak Park Avenue; and

WHEREAS, as part of that Project, the Village intends to renovate Teehan’s Irish Bar 
located at 17329 S. Oak Park Avenue (Teehan’s), or to arrange for the renovation of said Teehan’s; 
and

WHEREAS, in order to renovate or arrange for renovation of Teehan’s, the Village and 
Teehan’s have negotiated an Asset Purchase and Relocation Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
attached as Exhibit A hereto; and 

Page | 247AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



WHEREAS, the Village has determined that it is desirable and in the best interest of the 
Village and residents thereof, to enter into the Asset Purchase and Relocation Agreement as may 
be supplemented and amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as finding of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein.  

SECTION 2: The Village President or his designees are hereby authorized to execute the Asset 
Purchase and Relocation Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A, and to do all things and take all 
actions to enter into said Agreement with the Seller, and to fulfill the intentions of said Agreement 
and this Ordinance, including but not limited to expenditures of such sums as detailed in said 
Agreement. 

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval.  If any portion of this Ordinance is held to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, that portion shall be stricken from this Ordinance and the remainder of this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect to the extent possible.    

SECTION 5: The Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

Page | 248AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PASSED THIS  15th day of August, 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 249AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



  STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY O’ CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance 2023-O-043, “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN ASSET PURCHASE 

AND RELOCATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN TEEHAN’S IRISH BAR AND THE 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS (17329 S. Oak 

Park Avenue),” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park on the 15th day of August, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal 

of the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

         VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 250AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT A

TEEHAN’S IRISH BAR

ASSET PURCHASE AND RELOCATION AGREEMENT

Page | 251AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

1 
TEEHAN’S IRISH BAR 

 
ASSET PURCHASE AND RELOCATION AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

 THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made and entered into as of 

this _____ day of July, 2023, by and among TEEHAN’S INC., doing business as Teehan’s Irish 

Bar, an Illinois corporation (herein called “Seller”), REGIS TEEHAN, an Illinois resident (herein 

called “Teehan”), and the VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, an Illinois municipal corporation 

(herein called “Purchaser”) jointly referred to as (“Parties”); 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Seller is engaged in the business of operating a liquor establishment at       

17329 S. Oak Park Avenue, in the Village of Tinley Park, County of Cook, and State of Illinois;  

 WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from 

Seller, certain assets of Seller relating to the business and goodwill of Seller being conducted in 

the Tinley Park, Illinois, in accordance with all the terms and subject to all the conditions herein 

set forth, including Purchaser is not assuming any liabilities and obligations of Seller associated 

with the assets being purchased. 

       WHEREAS, the Seller is a month-to-month tenant in the premises located at 17329 S. Oak 

Park Avenue; 

 WHEREAS. Teehan resides at the premises and is a long-time resident of Tinley Park, 

and is in need of relocation from the residential premises above the Seller’s liquor establishment. 

 WHEREAS, Teehan is the principal stockholder, the President, and a director of Seller, 

and is currently employed by Seller and fully familiar with the business and operations of Seller; 

Page | 252AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

2 
and 

 WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from 

Seller, certain assets of Seller relating to the business and goodwill of Seller being conducted in 

the Tinley Park, Illinois, in accordance with all the terms and subject to all the conditions herein 

set forth, including Purchaser is not assuming any liabilities and obligations of Seller associated 

with the assets being purchased. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the forgoing recitals (which the parties agree 

are hereby incorporated into and made a part of their agreement herein) and of the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein set forth, it is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. ASSETS AND BUSINESS BEING SOLD. 

 

 1.1 Sale of Assets.  On the terms and subject to the conditions herein set forth, at the 

Closing, Seller shall sell, assign, transfer, and convey to Purchaser, and Purchaser shall purchase 

and acquire, all assets of the Seller, including, but not limited to, those assets on Exhibit A and the 

goodwill associated therewith, free, and clear of any liens and encumbrances (“Purchased Assets”), 

but excluding the excluded assets as set forth on Exhibit B.  The Purchased Assets shall be 

transferred and conveyed to the Purchaser by the Seller at the Closing.  Purchaser acknowledges 

that its agent will inspect the assets of the bar prior to closing and submit a list of fixtures it may 

want to include in the sale on or before August 31, 2023, and the list of assets attached as Exhibit 

B may be amended by agreement of the Parties. 

2.  NO ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES BY PURCHASER. 

Page | 253AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

3 
 Purchaser will not assume any liabilities of the Seller or Teehan, which shall be settled and 

discharged prior to Closing.  Seller and Teehan shall terminate the corporate entity known as 

TEEHAN’S INC., within 1 year of the Closing herein.   

3. PURCHASE PRICE AND PAYMENT. 

 3.1  Purchase Price.  In addition to the covenant not to compete hereunder, Purchaser 

agrees to pay to Seller, and Seller agrees to accept, as the aggregate purchase price hereunder, in 

consideration for the Purchased Assets and the relocation of the Seller and Teehan, the aggregate 

amount of Two Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($200,000.00) (herein called the “Purchase 

Price”). 

 3.2  Payment.  The Purchase Price shall be paid as follows: 

  3.2.1 Purchaser shall deposit the sum of $5,000, as earnest money, in a strict joint 

order escrow, established and controlled by the attorneys for the parties.  The earnest money shall 

be credited to the Purchaser at closing or disposed of in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement. 

  3.2.2 At the Closing, Purchaser shall pay to Seller, in cash or by certified or bank 

check payable to the order of Seller or wire transfer of good funds to Seller’s account as directed 

by Seller, the Purchase Price, less the earnest money and plus or minus prorations. 

 3.3 Allocation of Purchase Price.  

  3.3.1.  Allocation of the Purchase Price.  The parties agree that the Purchase 

Price shall be allocated as follows: 

 a. Goodwill and certain fixtures. 

 b. Relocation Consideration. 

Page | 254AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

4 
  3.3.2.  Internal Revenue Form Execution.    The parties agree to allocate the 

Purchase Price paid to Seller (and all other costs that are capable of being capitalized relating 

thereto) among the Purchased Assets and the restrictive covenants set forth herein for all purposes 

(including financial accounting and tax purposes) in a manner consistent with the provisions of 

Section 1060 of the Internal Revenue Code, and all regulations promulgated thereunder.  Seller 

and Purchaser must jointly prepare Form 8594 and any similar allocation required under state, 

local, or foreign law, agree to report the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for federal 

Tax purposes in accordance with such Form 8594, and must not take any position or action 

inconsistent therewith.   

4.  REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF PURCHASER. 

 Purchaser represents, warrants, and covenants to Seller that Purchaser is a limited liability 

company duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of 

Illinois.  Purchaser has all requisite company power and authority to own, operate, and to carry 

on its business and to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder.   

5. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF SELLER AND 
TEEHAN. 

 
 Seller and Teehan jointly and severally represent, warrant, and covenant to Purchaser that 

the following statements are true and correct as of execution, and will be true and correct on the 

Closing Date: 

 5.1 Organization, Good Standing and Power.  Seller is a corporation duly 

organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Illinois and has all 

requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties, to carry on its 

business intended to be conducted, and to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations 

Page | 255AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

5 
hereunder. 

 5.2 Authority and Binding Obligation.  All corporate action necessary to authorize 

the execution and delivery by Seller of this Agreement and the other documents required to be 

executed by Seller hereunder, and the performance of its obligations hereunder and thereunder 

have been duly taken. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other documents 

required to be executed by Seller hereunder and the performance of Seller’s covenants and 

agreements herein and therein contained do not and will not constitute or result in any breach of 

any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, any provision of law or 

any indenture, agreement or other instrument of which Seller is a party or by which it may be 

bound, and do not and will not require the consent or approval of any other person. This Agreement 

is a legal, valid, and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 5.3 AS IS.  Purchaser and Seller represent, acknowledge, and agree that they are 

familiar with the business of Seller and with the Purchased Assets and that Seller has made no 

representations or warranties to Purchaser regarding value of the Purchased Assets or the value or 

viability of any business to be derived by Purchaser from the purchase of the Purchased Assets.  

Purchaser is relying only on its own investigation and assessment of the Purchased Assets and the 

value thereof. 

6. CLOSING. 

 6.1 Closing Date and Relocation.  

 The Closing shall be scheduled on October 2, 2023.  If the conditions of this Section 6 are 

not satisfied to the satisfaction of the Purchaser, Purchaser shall be entitled to terminate this 

Agreement upon written notice to the Seller, and the Seller shall have fourteen (14) business days 

Page | 256AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

6 
to cure the conditions of Section 6, and if not cured, all earnest money shall be returned to the 

Purchaser. 

 6.2 Purchaser’s Deliveries. At the Closing, Purchaser shall execute and deliver, 

or cause to be executed and delivered, the following: 

 6.2.1 Certified copy of the appropriate proceedings of the Board of Managers of 

Purchaser authorizing and approving this Agreement and the transactions and documents 

contemplated herein. 

 6.2.2  Certified or bank check(s) payable to the order of Seller, or wire transfer of funds, 

of monies due Seller at the Closing. 

 6.2.3 Such other documents as Seller’s counsel may reasonably request to carry out the 

terms and provisions of this Agreement more effectively. 

 6.3 Seller’s Deliveries. At the Closing, Seller shall execute and deliver, or cause to 

be executed and delivered, the following: 

 6.3.1 Certified copy of the appropriate resolutions of the Board of Directors of Seller 

authorizing and approving this Agreement and the transactions and documents 

contemplated herein. 

 6.3.2 Assignments, and other instruments of conveyance as may be necessary or 

appropriate to transfer, assign and convey to Purchaser, as of the Closing Date, title to the 

Purchased Assets, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to counsel for Purchaser. 

 6.3.3 UCC and searches for pending litigation, federal and state tax liens, judgments, and 

bankruptcies for the Seller and Teehan, satisfactory to the Purchaser. 

  

Page | 257AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

7 
 6.3.5 Termination of all employees and employment agreements pertaining to employees 

of the Seller. 

 6.3.6 An incumbency certificate showing all necessary corporate resolutions and actions 

of the Seller and its shareholders. 

 6.3.7 Proof of notice and compliance with the Illinois Bulk Sales Act and provision for 

deposit of funds required by the Illinois Department of Revenue and the Illinois 

Department of Employment Security, with holdbacks with Seller’s attorney as required by 

law. 

 6.3.8 Such other documents as Purchaser’s counsel may reasonably request to carry out 

the terms and provisions of this Agreement more effectively. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION AND SURVIVAL. 

 7.1.1 Indemnification by Purchaser. Purchaser agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 

Seller and Teehan  harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, obligations, 

judgments, actions, demands, suits, proceedings, claims, penalties, interest, costs and expenses, 

including reasonable legal fees and expenses relating thereto (herein collectively called “Losses”), 

arising out of or in connection with (i) any misrepresentation or breach of warranty made by 

Purchaser in this Agreement; (ii) any breach of covenant, agreement or undertaking of Purchaser 

in this Agreement; (iii) any matter related to the business of Purchaser after the Closing and any 

matter related to the Purchased Assets occurring after the Closing. 

 7.1.2 Indemnification by Seller and Teehan.  Seller and Teehan, jointly and severally, 

hereby agree to defend, indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from and against any and all 

losses, liabilities, damages, obligations, judgments, actions, demands, suits, proceedings, claims, 

Page | 258AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

8 
penalties, interest, costs and expenses, including reasonable legal fees and expenses relating 

thereto (herein collectively called “Losses”), arising out of or in connection with (i) any 

misrepresentation or breach of warranty made by Seller or Teehan in this Agreement; (ii) any 

breach of covenant, agreement or undertaking of Seller or Teehan in this Agreement; (iii) any 

matter, debt, claim or judgment related to the business of Seller or Teehan occurring prior to the 

Closing. 

 7.2 Survival. All the respective representations, warranties and covenants 

contained in this Agreement or in any other document or instrument delivered by or on behalf of 

any party hereunder or pursuant hereto, shall survive the Closing Date. 

8 SELLER AND TEEHAN’S COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE. 

 Seller, Teehan Inc., on behalf of itself, its shareholders, directors and officers, and Teehan 

covenant and agree that they shall not, for a period of five (5) years following the Closing Date, 

either individually or as owner, partner, shareholder, agent, employee, consultant or otherwise, 

alone or in conjunction with any other corporation, firm, partnership, person, venture or other 

entity, directly or indirectly, engage in the bar or restaurant business within a five (5) mile radius 

of 17329 S. Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.  It is the desire and intent of the parties that 

the terms and provisions of this Article be fully enforced, permissible under the law and public 

policy applied by any jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.  Accordingly, if and to the 

extent that any portion of this Article shall be adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable because 

it covers too extensive a geographical area or too long a period, then said portion shall be deemed 

reformed to the least extent necessary to make such portion valid and enforceable.  Because any 

violation of the restrictions set forth in this section would cause irreparable damage to the 

Page | 259AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

9 
respective parties, it is agreed that upon proof of the existence of such a violation of these 

restrictions, the applicable party will be entitled to injunctive relief by any court of competent 

jurisdiction having authority to grant such relief. 

9. ASSIGNMENT. 

 Neither this Agreement nor the rights or obligations contained herein shall be assignable 

by any party except with the written consent of all the other parties hereto. This Agreement shall 

be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, 

personal representatives, successors, and assigns, subject to the foregoing sentence. 

10. NOTICES. 

 All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing, 

and shall be deemed to have been given when delivered in person or received by first class, 

registered or certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage and registration or certification 

fees prepaid, or delivered by reliable overnight delivery service, providing a receipt evidencing 

delivery, or by facsimile with a copy also delivered by any of the foregoing means: 

 If to Purchaser to:  Village of Tinley Park 
     16250 S. Oak Park Avenue  
     Tinley Park, IL 60477 
     Attn: Michael W. Glotz 
 
  with a copy to:  Peterson, Johnson & Murray Chicago, LLC 

200 West Adams St., Suite 2125 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Attn: Peter M. Murphy 

 
 If to Seller or Teehan:  Teehan’s Inc. 
     17329 S. Oak Park Avenue 
     Tinley Park, IL. 60477 
     Attn:  Regis Teehan 
 
  with a copy to:  Noonan & Lieberman 

Page | 260AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

10 
     33 N. LaSalle 
     Suite 1150 
     Chicago, IL 60602 
     Attn:  Mitchell Lieberman  
 
or at such other address as hereafter shall be furnished by a notice sent in like manner by such 

addressee to the others. 

11. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 11.1 Severability.  Every provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable, and, 

if any term or provision is determined to be illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such 

illegality or invalidity shall not affect the legality or validity of the remainder of this Agreement. 

 11.2 Exhibits and Headings.  The Exhibits to this Agreement are hereby made a part 

hereof and shall be construed with and as an integral part of this Agreement. The headings of the 

various Articles and paragraphs of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience only, are 

not a part of this Agreement, and shall not be deemed in any manner to modify, explain, enlarge, 

or restrict any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 11.3 Waiver.  Failure or delay on the part of any of the parties hereto to exercise any 

right, power, or privilege hereunder, or under any instrument executed pursuant hereto, shall not 

operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege 

preclude any other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power, or privilege. All waivers 

hereunder must be in writing. 

 11.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto and other 

documents referred to herein as having been delivered or furnished by either party to the other) 

constitutes the entire Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral and 

written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

Page | 261AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

11 
 11.5 Amendments.  This Agreement may not be modified or changed except by an 

instrument or instruments in writing signed by both of the parties hereto. 

 11.6 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed and enforced 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois without regard to its conflicts of law provisions. 

 11.7 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in as many counterparts as may 

be deemed necessary or convenient, each of which when so executed shall be deemed an original, 

but all such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 11.8 Confidentiality.  The Seller and Purchaser agree that the terms of this Agreement 

shall not be disclosed or otherwise made available to the public or any third party and that copies 

of this Agreement shall not be made available to the public or any third party, except where such 

disclosure, is required by applicable law, and only to the extent required by such law and except 

to the parties’ respective attorneys and accountants where necessary. The obligations contained 

herein shall continue after the Closing.  

 

Page | 262AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

12 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and delivered this 

Agreement as of the date first above written. 

SELLER:      PURCHASER: 
 
TEEHAN’S INC.,     VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 
an Illinois corporation     an Illinois municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:        By:       
 Regis Teehan      Michael W. Glotz 
Its: President     Its: President 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 Regis Teehan, Individually  
        
        

Page | 263AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

13 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Listed Purchased Assets 
 
 

All restaurant , tables, chairs,  excluding liquor bar equipment, machinery, tin roof and coolers. 
 

All Leasehold improvements 
 

All signage, excluding the “Family Motto” sign hanging over the bar 
 

The names "Teehan’s” and “Teehan’s Irish Bar”, including the exclusive rights to license, 
copyright, use, trade, sell, or advertise these names in connection with Harmony Square Plaza or 

any other such development in the vicinity of the Plaza. 
 

Seller’s operating phone numbers, email addresses, websites, and associated domains 
 

All goodwill associated with the above 
 
 
 

ALL SUCH ASSETS TO BE SOLD FREE AND CLEAR OF ANY LIENS AND 
ENCUMBRANCES. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page | 264AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

14 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Excluded Assets 
 
 

All cash, accounts receivable, employee benefit plans, and leases 
 

Page | 265AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date:  August 15, 2023

To: Board of Trustees and Village President

CC:                  Daniel Ritter, Community Development Director 

From: Carolyn Mitera, Business Retention & Marketing Specialist 

Subject:  Hawaii Fluid Art − Sign Grant

Background
David King and Patrice O’Toole (Applicants) are the owners of Hawaii Fluid Art, a painting studio located at 17200 Oak 
Park Avenue, Unit 104 (PIN 28-30-301-056-1004). Hawaii Fluid Art opened their studio on Oak Park Avenue in 
June 2023. The Applicants plan to install new exterior signage to help advertise the location to pedestrians and 
vehicles. The proposed exterior signage includes a custom laser cut aluminum sign and a double-sided projecting 
sign. The proposed exterior signage has been reviewed and approved by James Baxter (Property Owner) and the 
condominium HOA.

Page | 266AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Request

The Applicants are requesting funds under the Sign Grant Program to promote and advertise the business. 
The intent of the Sign Grant Program is to provide an incentive for business owners to introduce creative 
and attractive signs that will complement the downtown. The program provides a matching grant of 50%, 
with a maximum reimbursement of $5,000 per tax paying business.  One site can use up to $70,000 in 
matching grants between the different types of grants every three years. 

The proposed wall sign is a 14.62 square foot custom laser cut aluminum sign that features graphics 
printed with UV protection ink on 3M premium outdoor vinyl and covered in 3M UV protection 
lamination. The wall sign will be mounted into the bricks using top-con screws. The second proposed 
sign is a 7.06 square foot round double-sided projecting sign. The projecting sign will feature UV printed 
and laminated graphics that will be mounted with 15” black aluminum arms anchored to the wall. The 
Applicant has chosen to utilize HJ Design Inc, Hawaii Fluid Art corporate sign coordinator and 
contractor, for the sign design and fabrication and Quantum Graphics for the sign installation. The 
Applicant submitted proposals for the grant requested as required. The proposal amount is as follows:

Scope of Work HJ Design/ Quantum Graphics
Wall sign design and installation
Projecting sign design and installation

$4,940.00 total cost estimate
$2,655.00 total cost estimate
$7,595.00 total cost estimate

$2,470.00 eligible cost
$1,327.50 eligible cost
$3,797.50 eligible costs

Staff Recommendation – C.O.W.
Move the item to the Village Board meeting later this evening.

Staff Recommendation – Village Board
Staff is seeking a motion for approval of a matching Sign Grant not to exceed $3,797.50 for David King and 
Patrice O’Toole (Applicants), owners of Hawaii Fluid Art at 17200 Oak Park Avenue, Unit 104.

Page | 267AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-095

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AWARDING AN OAK PARK 
AVENUE SIGN GRANT TO HAWAII FLUID ART AT 

17200 OAK PARK AVENUE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 268AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-095

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AWARDING AN OAK PARK 
AVENUE SIGN GRANT TO HAWAII FLUID ART AT 

17200 OAK PARK AVENUE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, and 
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 25,000 
is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article VII, may 
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including, but 
not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) has adopted the Oak Park Playbook 
(“OPA Playbook”), which is a series of grants designed to encourage development in downtown 
Tinley Park; and    

WHEREAS, an application has been filed with the Community Development Department 
by David King and Patrice O’Toole, on behalf of Hawaii Fluid Art (“Petitioners”), lease certain real 
estate, located at 17200 Oak Park Avenue, Unit 104 (“Subject Property”), P.I.N. #28-30-301-056-
1004 legally described in the attached Exhibit 1, and has applied for one (1) Oak Park Avenue Sign 
Grant (“Sign Grant”); and 

WHEREAS, the Committee Of The Whole reviewed the application on August 15, 2023 
and found that the application met the intent of the OPA Playbook standards and recommended 
approval of the grant. The Petitioners will utilize the funds received from the Sign Grant to install a 
new wall sign and a new projecting sign at the Subject Property (“Sign Improvement”); and 

WHEREAS, said Petitioners are eligible for the Sign Grant in an amount not to exceed 
$3797.50 as described in the estimated cost in the attached Exhibit 2; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of said Village of Tinley Park and its 
residents to award Petitioners said Sign Grant in an amount not greater than $3797.50; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, 
STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 
that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid Sign 

Page | 269AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Grant be awarded to Petitioners to install a new wall sign and projecting sign at the Subject Property 
and that said Sign Grant shall be in an amount not greater than $3,797.50. 

SECTION 3: That the Petitioners, prior to receipt of any monies from the Village, shall provide a 
complete and total accounting of all costs, payments, and invoices to the Village.    

SECTION 4: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law.

PASSED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15th day of August 2023.
____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 270AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 

of Resolution No. 2023-R-095, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AWARDING AN OAK 

PARK AVENUE SIGN GRANT TO HAWAII FLUID ART AT 17200 OAK PARK AVENUE,” 

which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 

15, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
       VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 271AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

UNIT C-104, TOGETHER WITH THEIR UNDIVIDED PERCENTAGE INTERESTS IN THE 
COMMON ELEMENTS IN SPRING FORT HALL CONDOMINIUM AS DELINEATED AND 
DEFINED IN THE DECLARATION RECORDED AS DOCUMENTS NO. 070471505, IN THE 
SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 28-30-301-056-1004 (UNIT C-104)

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:  17200 Oak Park Avenue, Unit C-104, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

Page | 272AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 2

Page | 273AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 274AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 275AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 276AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 277AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Quantum Graphics is the sign installer. Installation estimate ($1350.00) was included in the overall 
wall signage estimate ($4940.00) and projecting sign estimate ($2655.00) from Hjdesigns, sign 
designer and fabricator. 

Page | 278AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 279AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 280AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 281AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

   

Page | 282AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

   

Page | 283AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

  

Page | 284AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

  

Page | 285AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

NOTE: Quantum Graphics is the sign installer. The total cost of installation ($1350.00) for the 

wall sign and projecting sign has been added in the Hjdesign estimate for the wall sign 

($4940.00) and estimate for the projecting sign ($2655.00).   

Page | 286AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
August 3, 2023 – Public Hearing

Serdar – Corner Lot Fence Setback Variation
6648 174th Place

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Petitioner, Christina and Robert Serdar, is seeking a Variation from Section III.J (Fence Regulations) 
to replace an existing, dilapidated wood fence and allow for the installation of a four-foot (4’) high open 
style aluminum fence.  The proposed fence will be in the same location as the existing fence, which 
encroaches eight feet six inches (8’-6”) into the required secondary front yard.  Per the Zoning Ordinance, 
fences are required to be at or behind the at least ten feet from the property line in the secondary front 
yard. Therefore, the petitioner is requesting a variance to remove the legally nonconforming fence and 
erect a new fence in its place.

The fence setback Variation is requested due to the unique, narrow triangular shape and configuration of 
the lot and existing house.  Unlike other corner lot homes, the lot is irregularly shaped and has little depth 
to accommodate for the required ten foot (10’) setback.  Additionally, the property’s area is limited 
resulting in diminished contiguous land area otherwise not restricted by front yard requirements.

The proposed open style fence will not cause visibility concerns from intersections or private driveways. 

Petitioner
Christina & Robert Serdar

Property Location
6648 174th Place

PIN
28-30-417-011-0000

Zoning
R-5 Low Density Residential

Approvals Sought
Variation

Project Planner
Lori Kosmatka, AICP, 
Associate Planner

Page | 287AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Serdar – Corner Lot Fence Setback Variation – 6648 174th Place

Page 2 of 5

EXISTING SITE & HISTORY
The subject property is a single family detached home 
at the northeast corner of 67th Avenue and 174th Place.  
The property is generally located southeast of The 
Boulevard development. This neighborhood is one of 
the older areas of Tinley Park, annexed in 1892, and 
is part of the Vogt’s Addition to Tinley Park 
Subdivision. According to county GIS parcel data, the 
subject property’s approximate lot area listed as 5,733 
sq. ft.

The subject property is a nearly triangular-shaped 
corner lot with two front yards facing 67th Avenue and 
174th Place.  There is an existing house and a detached 
garage on the site, as well as an existing wood picket 
fence running adjacent to 67th Avenue (secondary 
front yard) to the rear of the property.
  
The existing fence, house, and detached garage all 
have portions that encroach within the required 
secondary front yard.  The house is situated 
approximately seven feet (7’) at its closest point to the 
property line, the detached garage approximately six 
feet (6’) at its closest point to the property line, and 
the fence is set 18 inches in from the property line. 
These encroachments are permitted as the structures 
are defined as legally nonconforming since they were 
established prior to the Village’s current Zoning 
Ordinance.

ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES
The subject property is located within the R-5 Low 
Density Residential Zoning District.   The table 
below indicates the surrounding zoning and land uses 
in the area:

Direction Zoning Land Use

North
R-5 Low Density Residential District

R-6 Medium Density Residential District
Downtown Core (Legacy)

Detached Single-Family Dwellings
The Boulevard at Central Station

East R-5 Low Density Residential District Detached Single-Family Dwellings

South R-5 Low Density Residential District
R-6 Medium Density Residential District Detached Single-Family Dwellings

West Downtown General District (Legacy)
Civic District (Legacy)

Detached Single-Family Dwellings
Tinley Park Historical Society

Location Map & Zoning Map showing Adjacency to Legacy District (purple)

Page | 288AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Serdar – Corner Lot Fence Setback Variation – 6648 174th Place

Page 3 of 5

Adjacent Legacy District
Across 67th Avenue the zoning district abruptly 
changes to the Legacy District’s DG (Downtown 
General) and CV (Civic) area.     These districts are 
regulated by the Legacy Code, identified as Section 
12 within the Zoning Ordinance.  The Legacy Code 
is a form-based code with inherent differences to the 
regulations of standard residential zoning districts.  

Within the Legacy Code, open-style decorative type 
fences on private frontages are permitted to extend to 
the property line along the required front yard and are 
limited to a minimum height of three feet (3’) and a 
maximum height of four feet (4’). Additionally, for 
corner lots of detached single-family residence, open 
or solid fencing with a maximum height of six feet 
(6’) along their secondary frontage is permitted 
provided that the fence is located no closer than 
fifteen feet (15’) to the property line, and does not 
extend past the front façade of the primary structure.   
Thus, the Legacy Code regulations are considerably 
more permissive compared to the R-5 Zoning District 
in terms of allowable fence locations.  

Due to the nearby Legacy District and the other older 
homes in the area, the neighborhood character reflects 
instances of fences within front yards.  The Petitioner 
has provided the following photo exhibits of some 
nearby properties (full exhibit is included as an 
attachment in their submittal):

VARIATION REQUEST
The Petitioner wishes to replace their existing dilapidated fence with a four-foot (4’) 
high open style fence in the same location. The Petitioner has made efforts to repair the 
existing fence, but now face structural challenges since the wood posts have 
deteriorated, making the fence unstable.  Their narrative states that by replacing the 
broken fence, they believe it will provide an investment not only to their home but also 
to the neighborhood since the fence is an eyesore on a prominent Tinley Park corner.

Per Section II.B. of the Zoning Ordinance, the primary front yard on a corner lot is 
determined by the street lot line with the smallest dimension. Since the lot line along 
174th Place is approximately eighty-five feet (85’) and the lot line along 67th Avenue is 

Sample Image of a Fence Similar to Proposed (by 
Petitioner)

Top: Photos of Existing Fence on Subject Property (by Petitioner); 
Bottom: Image from right-of-way (by Google Streetview)

17437 S. 67th Ct. 6657 South St.6639 174th St.

Page | 289AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Serdar – Corner Lot Fence Setback Variation – 6648 174th Place

Page 4 of 5

approximately one-hundred-thirty-three feet (133’), the frontage along 67th Avenue is defined as the secondary front yard.

Section III.J “Fence Regulations” of the Zoning Ordinance states that all fences located in the required secondary front yard must be 
located at least ten feet (10’) from the lot line. Although, if a residential structure is nonconforming to the required front yard setback(s), 
a fence may be permitted to encroach into the required front yard setback to align with the established setback of the structure.

Replacing the existing fence at its current location is not 
permitted by code since it is only one-foot six-inches (1’6”) 
from the property line. Since the structure is nonconforming 
with regards to the required front yard setbacks, the petitioner 
is permitted to install a fence that is aligned with the front of the 
existing house (see dashed red line in adjacent exhibit). The 
permitted location for a new fence will create two separate 
fenced yards and reduce the already limited space. Therefore, 
the Petitioner is requesting a variation from the zoning 
ordinance to allow a new fence to encroach eight feet six inches 
(8’-6”) into the required secondary front yard.

The property’s triangular lot shape and its minimal, narrow 
depth with the proximity of the existing house and garage pose 
a unique circumstance and illustrate a physical hardship to the 
property. Due to the height, style, location, and similarity to the 
existing fence, the proposed fence will not cause visibility 
concerns from intersections or private driveways.    

As illustrated in the exhibit to the right, the fence will begin at 
the detached garage, going out six feet, with a run of 15’-10”, 
followed by a 4’ gate over the walkway leading into the 
property, followed by 59 feet, a 4’-6” bend at the corner, and 
37 feet leading to the house.  

STANDARDS FOR A VARIATION
Section X.G.4. of the Zoning Ordinance states the Plan 
Commission shall not recommend a Variation of the regulations 
of the Zoning Ordinance unless it shall have made Findings of 
Fact, based upon the evidence presented for each of the 
Standards for Variations listed below. The Plan Commission 
must provide findings for the first three standards; the 
remaining standards are provided to help the Plan Commission 
further analyze the request. Staff draft Findings of Fact are provided below for the Commission’s review and approval. 

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the conditions allowed by the 
regulations in the district in which it is located.
 The proposed fence location creates a more useful property that utilizes limited available contiguous land area 

otherwise not restricted by front yard requirements.  Since the proposed fence will be in the same location at the 
existing fence, it will not increase the degree of encroachment into the secondary front yard.  

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.
 The property’s, nearly triangular lot shape and its minimal, narrow depth with the close proximity of the existing 

house and garage pose a unique circumstance, and illustrate a physical hardship.  
3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.

 The proposed fence location will not alter the essential character of the locality. Since the proposed fence will be 
in the same location at the existing fence, it will not increase the degree of encroachment into the secondary front 
yard. There is a variety of lot sizes and shapes in the neighborhood due to the angled configuration of 67th Avenue 
and resubdivisions and reconfigurations of lots over the years within this older neighborhood.  The four-foot open 
style fence is also similar to other fences in this older neighborhood, some of which are also located within front 
yards.

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission shall also, in making its determination whether there are practical difficulties or 
particular hardships, take into consideration the extent to which the following facts favorable to the Petitioner have been 
established by the evidence:

Page | 290AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Serdar – Corner Lot Fence Setback Variation – 6648 174th Place

Page 5 of 5

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific property involved would 
result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of 
the regulations were carried out;

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be applicable, generally, to other 
property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of the property;

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by a previous owner;

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property or 
improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent property, or substantially 
increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or 
substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.

MOTION TO CONSIDER

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, an appropriate wording of the motions would read: 

Variation:
“…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant a Variation to the Petitioner Christina & Robert Serdar a Variation from 
Section III.J. of the Zoning Code (Fence Regulations) at the property located at 6648 174th Place in the R-5 Low Density Residential 
Zoning District.  The proposed Variation will permit the petitioner to install a four-foot (4’) high open-style fence to encroach up to 
eight feet six inches (8’-6”) into the required secondary front yard. 

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared 
By

Date On 
Sheet

Application (Redacted) and Response to Standards Petitioner 6/29/23
Narrative Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Permit Application Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Plat Markup (Proposed Fence Location) Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Photos of Existing Fence to Replace on Subject Property Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Photos of Neighborhood Fences Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23

Page | 291AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2023-O-044

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION TO PERMIT A FENCE IN A 
SECONDARY FRONT YARD FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

6648 174TH PLACE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 292AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-044

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION TO PERMIT A FENCE IN A 
SECONDARY FRONT YARD FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

6648 174TH PLACE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois provides 
that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, and the Village of 
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 25,000 is, therefore, a home 
rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article VII, may exercise any power and 
perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to 
tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition has been filed with the Village Clerk of this Village and has been processed 
in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance by Robert & Christina Serdar (“Petitioner”), to 
grant a Variation to reduce the required setback for a fence in a secondary front yard from ten feet (10’) 
to one-foot six-inches (1’6”) to permit a four-foot (4’) tall open-style fence encroaching eight feet six 
inches (8’-6”) into the required secondary front yard (“Variation”); and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on the question 
of whether the Variation should be granted on August 3, 2023, at the Village Hall of this Village at which 
time all persons present were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and  

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said Public Hearing by 
publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said Public Hearing in 
the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley Park; and 

WHEREAS, after hearing testimony on the petition, the Plan Commission found that the petition 
met the requisite standards enumerated in the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance for granting the Variation 
and voted 6-0 to recommend to the Village President and Board of Trustees for the approval of the 
Variation; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission has filed its report of findings and recommendations regarding 
the Variation with this Village President and Board of Trustees, and this Board of Trustees has duly 
considered said report, findings, and recommendations; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 
Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents to 
approve said Variation; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, 
STATE AS FOLLOWS:

Page | 293AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as finding of fact as if said 
recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission are herein 
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete as if 
fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner have provided evidence establishing 
that he has met the standards for granting the Variation as set forth in Section X.G.4 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, and the proposed granting of the Variation as set forth herein are in the public good and in the 
best interest of the Village and its residents and are consistent with and fosters the purpose and spirit of 
the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 
conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.

 The proposed fence location creates a more useful property that utilizes limited available 
contiguous land area otherwise not restricted by front yard requirements.  Since the 
proposed fence will be in the same location at the existing fence, it will not increase the 
degree of encroachment into the secondary front yard.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.
 The property’s, nearly triangular lot shape and its minimal, narrow depth with the close 

proximity of the existing house and garage pose a unique circumstance, and illustrate a 
physical hardship.

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
 The proposed fence location will not alter the essential character of the locality. Since the 

proposed fence will be in the same location at the existing fence, it will not increase the 
degree of encroachment into the secondary front yard. There is a variety of lot sizes and 
shapes in the neighborhood due to the angled configuration of 67th Avenue and 
resubdivisions and reconfigurations of lots over the years within this older neighborhood.  
The four-foot open style fence is also similar to other fences in this older neighborhood, 
some of which are also located within front yards.

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission also considered the extent to which the following facts are not 
favorable to the Petitioner based on the established evidence:

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific 
property involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished 
from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money 
out of the property;

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by 
a previous owner;

Page | 294AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 
other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent 
property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood.

SECTION 3: The Variation set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following described 
property:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 27 IN VOGT’S ADDITION TO TINLEY PARK IN THE 
SOUTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 28-30-447-011-0000

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:  6648 174th Place, Tinley Park, Illinois

SECTION 4: A Variation from Section III.J (Fence Regulations) of the Zoning Ordinance, to decrease 
the minimum required setback for a fence in the secondary front yard from ten feet (10’) to one-foot six-
inches (1’6”) to permit the installation of a four-foot (4’) high open-style fence is hereby granted to the 
Petitioner in the R-5 Low Density Residential Zoning District at the above-mentioned Property, in 
accordance with the “List of Reviewed Plans” attached hereto as Exhibit A.

SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet 
form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 
publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 15TH day of August 2023.

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15TH day of August 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 295AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Ordinance No. 2023-O-044, “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION TO PERMIT A FENCE 

IN A SECONDARY FRONT YARD FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6648 174TH PLACE,” which 

was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
        VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 296AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit A

Per the August 3, 2023, Plan Commission Public Hearing Staff Report

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared 
By

Date On 
Sheet

Application (Redacted) and Response to Standards Petitioner 6/29/23
Narrative Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Permit Application Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Plat Markup (Proposed Fence Location) Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Photos of Existing Fence to Replace on Subject Property Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23
Photos of Neighborhood Fences Petitioner Rec’d 

6/29/23

Page | 297AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 3, 2023 REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1: PUBLIC HEARING –SERDAR FENCE SETBACK, 6648 174th PLACE – 
VARIATION APPROVAL

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant Christina and Robert Serdar 
(petitioner) a variation from Section III.J. of the Zoning Code (Fence Regulations) 
at the property located at 6648 174th Place in the R-5 Low Density Residential 
Zoning District. The proposed Variation will permit the petitioner to install a four-
foot (4’) high open-style fence to encroach up to eight feet six inches (8’-6”) into 
the required secondary front yard on a corner lot.

Present Plan Commissioners:  
Chairman Gray
Don Bettenhausen
James Gaskill
Angela Gatto
Terry Hamilton
Andrae Marak

Absent Plan Commissioners: Eduardo Mani
Steve Sepessy
Kurt Truxal

Village Officials and Staff:  Jason Engberg, Planning Manager
Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner

Petitioners: Christina Serdar
Robert Serdar

Members of the Public: None

CHAIRMAN GRAY introduced Item 1. He confirmed proof of publication.

COMMISSIONER GATTO made a motion to open the public hearing; COMMISSIONER 
GASKILL seconded the motion. All agreed.

Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, presented the staff report.

CHAIRMAN GRAY invited the Petitioner to speak. The Petitioner Robert Serdar was sworn in.

Mr. Serdar thanked the Plan Commission for considering the request.

Page | 298AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2

CHAIRMAN GRAY called on COMMISSIONER HAMILTON for comment.

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON asked if neighboring properties had similar fences. Mr. Serdar 
confirmed that neighboring properties have fences up to and on the property line.

COMISSIONERS GATTO, GASKILL, MARAK, and BETTENHAUSEN had no questions or 
comments. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY thanked staff for the detailed staff report that highlighted the nature of the 
property and thanked the Mr. Serdar for the photographs provided to staff.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak. None were present.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for a motion to close the public hearing. COMMISSIONER 
BETTENHAUSEN made a motion to close the public hearing; COMMISSIONER GATTO 
seconded the motion. All agreed.

Lori Kosmatka presented the standards for a Variation.

CHAIRMAN GRAY requested a motion regarding the Variation. 

COMMISSIONER GATTO made a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant Christina 
and Robert Serdar (petitioner) a variation from Section III.J. of the Zoning Code (Fence 
Regulations) at the property located at 6648 174th Place in the R-5 Low Density Residential Zoning 
District. The proposed Variation will permit the petitioner to install a four-foot (4’) high open-style 
fence to encroach up to eight feet six inches (8’-6”) into the required secondary front yard. 

COMISSIONER GASKILL seconded the motion. Lori Kosmatka called the role; all were in favor. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the motion carried. He noted that the item would go before Village 
Board on August 15, 2023.

Page | 299AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT  
August 3, 2023 – Public Hearing 
 
Oak Park Townes Development 
17822-17828 Oak Park Ave. (West Side of Oak Park Avenue, North of 179th Street) 
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC is requesting Variations 
to the Legacy Code, Site Plan/Architectural Approval, and Plat Approvals to develop a 31-
unit townhome development at the property located on vacant land at the west side of 
Oak Park Avenue, north of 179th Street, currently addressed as 17822-17828 Oak Park 
Avenue.   The property is zoned within the Legacy District’s Neighborhood General area.   
 
Two Variations have been requested:  

1) Increase the interior side yard setback from a five-foot maximum permitted by 
code to a maximum of 10.10 feet.  

2) Increase the private roadway’s maximum curb cut width from 20 feet permitted 
by code to a maximum of 31 feet.   

 
Six residential townhome buildings are proposed. One of the buildings is a three-story six-
unit building fronting Oak Park Avenue and five of the buildings are two-story five-unit 
buildings behind and west of the six-unit building. The development pattern and use is 
similar to the neighboring townhomes and generally in line with the Legacy Plan’s desire 
to increase density surrounding the Downtown Core while also creating attractive visuals 
along Oak Park Avenue. 
 
Plat approval requests include a proposed Plat of Subdivision and Plat of Vacation. The 
Petitioner anticipates starting construction in Spring 2024, with a construction timeline as 
8-10 months to be completed in a single phase. 
 

Updates from the July 20, 2023 Plan Commission Workshop staff report are in RED. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 
Oak Park by EEP, LLC 
 
Property Location 
17822-17828 Oak Park 
Ave. (West Side of Oak 
Park Ave., North of 179th 
St.) 
 
PIN 
28-31-105-010-0000 
28-31-105-026-0000 
28-31-105-027-0000 
 
Zoning 
Legacy District – NG 
(Neighborhood General) 
 
Approvals Sought 
• Variations 
• Site Plan & 

Architectural 
Approval 

• Final Plat Approvals 
 
 
 
 
 
Project Planner 
Lori Kosmatka, AICP 
Associate Planner 
 
Jason Engberg, AICP 
Planning Manager 
 

Front Entry of 6-Unit Building (Top); Front Entry of 5-Unit Building, typical (Bottom) 

Page | 300AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 2 of 15 

EXISTING SITE & HISTORY 
 
The subject property is vacant land, +-2.631 
acres (114,612 sq. ft.), consisting of multiple 
lots.  It is located on the west side of Oak 
Park Avenue, north of and adjacent to the 
existing Union Square residential 
development at the northwest corner of 
179th Street.  The lots have been vacant 
since the late 1990s when the former 
single-family homes were demolished. 
 
ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES 
 
The subject property is zoned within the 
Legacy District’s Neighborhood General 
(NG) area.  The Legacy Code was adopted in 
2011 reflective of the Legacy Plan, adopted 
in 2009.  The Legacy Plan’s goal has been to 
strengthen the aesthetics and economics of 
the downtown area, maximizing walkability 
and a variety of characteristics articulated 
in each of the six areas within the Legacy 
District.  The Legacy Code defines the 
character of the Neighborhood General 
area as “a variety of lot sizes and building 
scale, with multi-family dwellings as the 
primary use.  Street frontages have steady 
street tree plantings and can include lawns 
and buildings form a continuous street wall 
set close to sidewalks.”   
 
The developments to the north and south 
fronting Oak Park Avenue are in the same 
zoning classification (Legacy District – 
Neighborhood General).  The property to 
the north has three-story four-unit 
townhome residential buildings.  The 
property to the south is the recently 
constructed Union Square townhomes.  The 
Union Square development has a street 
frontage along Oak Park Avenue with three 
stories and front doors with walkways, with 
a variety of architectural detail, and is 
complementary to the Village’s Legacy Plan.  
 
The property to the south that is along 
179th Street, one development west of the 
northwest corner of 179th Street and Oak Google Streetview Showing Oak Park Avenue’s street frontage of Adjacent Existing 

Union Square residential development, June 2023 

Location Map & Zoning Map 

O
A

K
 PA

R
K

 A
V

E. 

179th ST. 

Page | 301AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 3 of 15 

Park Avenue, is in the R-6 (Medium Density Residential) Zoning District.   
 
To the rear (west) of the subject property are two differently zoned properties.  The property to the south fronting 
179th Street is zoned R-6 which is part of the Settler’s Pond regional retention pond and owned by the Village. The 
northern property is in the R-1 (Low Density Residential) Zoning District and is the Sunset Estates (Argos Court) 
development, previously approved as twelve townhome units, and currently under construction by the Petitioner. 
 
PROPOSED USE 
 
The Petitioner proposes to develop and improve the vacant land with a 31-unit residential townhome development 
as described in their narrative.  They proposed construction of the development in one phase, starting with the 
three-story (6-unit) building facing Oak Park Avenue and progressing toward the back of the development. They 
hope to start construction in Spring of 2024, and anticipate it will take 8-10 months from permit approval to 
completion.  Their submittal includes a narrative letter, architectural and geometric site plans, architectural plan 
drawings (elevations, floor plans), preliminary engineering, landscaping, lighting, proposed plats, CC&Rs, and 
physical material samples.  
 
VARIATIONS 
 
Two code variation requests have been identified:  

1) Increase the interior side yard setback from a five-foot maximum permitted by code to a maximum of 10.10 
feet.  

2) Increase the private roadway’s maximum curb cut width from 20 feet permitted by code to a maximum of 
31 feet.   

 
The Variation for interior side yard setback is referenced at the south side of the development, where the south end 
units range from 8.25 feet to 10.10 feet.  This Variation will allow for building separation to the adjacent 
development.  The Petitioner states the maximum distance by code would affect the property by not allowing 
enough area for stormwater detention along with enough space between property lines.  They identify that the 
intent is to provide a community living feel of housing based on desired size and price point for residents to keep 
the size of the units at a reasonable price.  
 
The Variation for the curb cut on the private roadway, is for the access running east-west connecting perpendicular 
to Oak Park Avenue.  This is classified per code as an “Alley” will allow for vehicles to ingress and egress. The three 
other alleys in the development running north-south to access the units remain proposed compliant with code at 20 
feet.   The Petitioner states that the 31 feet for the private road will allow the Village’s emergency vehicles including 
fire truck access to the development.  They further note that the widened access road will allow for residents to turn 
on and off Oak Park Avenue.   
 
The variance requests to permit an increase in the required side yard setback and increase the alley width were 
noted by the Commission as acceptable as it will provide space for a public utility easement and allow for fire access 
to the site, respectively. 
 
Open Item #1: Discuss the proposed Variation requests for #1) interior side yard setback from a five-foot 
maximum permitted by code to a maximum of 10.10 feet and #2) private roadway’s maximum curb cut width from 
20 feet permitted by code to a maximum of 31 feet.    
 
 
 

Page | 302AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 4 of 15 

SITE PLAN/CIRCULATION 
 
The Petitioner proposes 31 residential townhome units, comprised of one six-unit building fronting Oak Park 
Avenue, and five five-unit buildings behind it to the west.  The layout of the five-unit buildings has the garages and 
front doors face the alley (access to driveway), whereas the single six-unit building has the front door on the east 
side of the building along Oak Park Avenue (which provides a sense of frontage), with the garages on the building’s 
west side adjacent to the alley (access to driveways). 

The proposal has one point of access from Oak Park Avenue, via a 31-foot-wide proposed private roadway (referred 
to as 178th Place) to the east to perpendicularly meet Oak Park Avenue.  A white-striped crosswalk is proposed 
crossing the private roadway along Oak Park Avenue, with a stop bar for vehicles leaving the site.  At the entry to the 
development, a proposed sign indicates “no outlet, no thru traffic”.  The west end of 178th Place will have three triple 
diamond “dead end” signage with snow removal and a bioswale beyond.  A sidewalk is along Oak Park Avenue, and 
another sidewalk proposed running on the south side of the private roadway (178th Place) with bike racks placed in 
front of each building.  All units are further accessed from the proposed 178th Place via three 20-foot “Driveways” 
(classified as Alleys).  Unit addresses are proposed as an Oak Park Avenue address range, as 17882-17822 Oak Park 
Avenue.   
 
As with the Plat approval, the Site Plan/Architectural approval may be conditioned upon approval of final 
engineering plans at permit review.  Village Public Works has reviewed the currently submitted plans, including 
utilities and has provided comments that will assist with further final engineering review, including a note that 
restoration will be coordinated with the neighboring development to the north for sanitary sewer installation 
(located in an existing utility easement), with which the Petitioner has agreed. 
 
Staff has noted the site plan shows rectangular boxes on the rear of the six-unit building, which are not identified 
elsewhere in the elevations or other drawings.   
 
Boxes on the site plan were an error and have been removed (New plans dated July 26, 2023). 
 
Open Item #2: Clarify/remove rectangular boxes on the rear of the six-unit building per the site plans. 

Proposed Architectural Site Plan 

Page | 303AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 5 of 15 

LANDSCAPE 
 

The proposal largely meets landscaping code requirements.  Regarding bufferyard and perimeter plantings, canopy 
shade trees and other plantings are provided.  The Legacy Code does not require bufferyards on the north, east, 
and southeast.  On the north, a row of several shade trees are provided with seed & blanket in the space north of 
the private roadway.  To the east, along Oak Park Avenue, six shade trees are proposed between the entries of the 
six-unit building and the sidewalk.  They are centered at least 25 feet apart as per code, except approximately 30 
feet from between the 3rd & 4th units (middle of the building).  Code minimum requirement is 1 tree per 25 lineal 
feet, which at 200.11 feet, requires 7 trees.  Staff is supportive of this landscape waiver given there is limited space 
on the parkway only allowing for six and located within the private frontage.   
 
Prototypical foundational plantings are also provided on the east frontage of the six-unit building which, propose at 
100%, exceed the code minimum of at least 70% along public right-of-way. To the southeast, two canopy trees 
(counting toward interior landscaping) and one evergreen are provided though there is no code minimum.  On the 
southwest portion, code minimum is 15 canopy trees, eight understory trees, and 146 shrubs for the 363’ south 
bufferyard.  Though the Petitioner is not providing new plantings for the canopy and understory trees, they are 
preserving the 30 existing trees.  Also, at the northwest corner of the site, 40’x40’ bioswale is provided with deep 
rooted native plants at the northwest corner of the development (at the end of the proposed private roadway).  
Snow removal is provided on the east end of the bioswale.   

Landscape Plan 

Page | 304AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 6 of 15 

 
Further in the interior of the site, landscaping is 
distributed accordingly with trees and 
prototypical foundational plantings which meet 
and exceed code minimum.  There is at least 
one tree per unit, and shrub plantings are 
additionally provided both at unit front entries 
and also along the north edge of the buildings 
next to the private roadway, Shade trees are 
intentionally placed to avoid overlap with site 
lighting, bike racks, and other site constraints.   
Lastly, within the interior parkway there is at 
least one tree per 50 lineal feet, meeting code.   
 
Other landscape-related elements are 
proposed.  An infiltration trench with topsoil 
and sod (overlaying a stormwater management 
easement) and a 6-foot-high vinyl solid privacy 
fence is proposed between the rear of the two 
sets of five-unit buildings.  Also, a privacy vinyl 
screen wall is located between the rear patios 
of the 5-unit buildings, except for the southernmost end unit on these buildings, which orients the patios at the 
south end of the unit.   The CC&Rs also allow for the option of a landscaping hedge between units subject to the 
association’s Board approval.  Lastly, air conditioning units are located behind the units.  They are individually placed 
adjacent to the rear patio for the 5-unit buildings and grouped in two between the driveways of the 6-unit building.   
 
ARCHITECTURE 
 
The architecture for six-building development is illustrated in the proposed exterior elevations and identifies a 
consistent exterior design for the five-unit buildings as well as an upgraded, complementary exterior design for the 
six-unit building facing Oak Park Avenue.   All the five-unit buildings are proposed as two-stories, while the single 
six-unit building is proposed as three-stories.  These meet Legacy Code requirements (minimum 2 stories, 
maximum 3 stories).    
 
Several exterior design elements are proposed.  The six-unit building’s front includes nested gables and ridge lines, 
a variety of materials and colors, and covered entry overhangs with columns as shown on the exterior elevations.  
However, the site plan only appears to show the concrete stoops and walkways, and not the these overhangs or 
columns. On the six-unit frontage, windows have a variety of single and double size, and are positioned in an 
aligned manner with four dormers on the roof.  The front door entries have a subtle variety of planes shown on the 
exterior elevations and indicated as notches on the site plans. The building’s rear with the centered garages has a 
mirrored look with two large front gables on both ends, and window placement of one large 2nd floor window and 
two single windows arranged either toward the left or right sides of each unit. 
 
The five-unit buildings have a slightly different aesthetic since they do not face Oak Park Avenue.  The fronts include 
the front door and centered garage, with centered second story windows.  The end units have large front gables, 
and the interior units have window dormers.  There is a slight recessed plane change at (and above) the front door.  
The northern end units of the five-unit buildings also have a six-foot-deep porch along the side.  There is also a 
variation in the roof line.   

Prototypical Foundational Landscaping 

Page | 305AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 7 of 15 

Personal Outdoor Space 
Personal outdoor space is provided 
for the five-unit buildings.  The 
northernmost end-unit of the five-
unit buildings will have a long six-foot 
deep porch stretching the depth of 
the unit.  Secondly, all of the five-unit 
buildings will have rear 10’x12’ 
concrete patios.  Due to the 
difference in layout where the rear of 
the single six-unit building has a 
garage, it does not have a patio.  The 
six-unit building has its entry along 
Oak Park Avenue, but does not have 
any other hardscaped personal 
outdoor space. Staff previously 
discussed the possibility of a balcony 
at the rear of the six units to allow for 
some access to an outdoor area from 
the main living space and to improve 
the appeal of a flat rear façade 
design.  However, the Petitioner has 
declined to include balconies based 
on market feedback.  They believe the 
front yard is sufficient based on the 
townhome design and location of the 
development. 
 
The Commission discussed the 
necessity for balconies along the rear 
of the six-unit structure. Due to 
privacy concerns and the limited 
number of units affected as a whole, 
the Commission did not pursue 
requiring balconies. Therefore, the 
newly submitted plans continue to 
not show balconies on the rear. 
 
Open Item #3: Discuss the need for a 
balcony on the rear of the 3-story 
townhomes fronting Oak Park Ave to 
improve the appearance of the rear 
façade and provide outdoor living 
space. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exterior Color Elevations  of Five-Unit Building (5 total) 

Exterior Color Elevations  of Six-Unit Building (1 total) 

Page | 306AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 8 of 15 

Shingles on 
6-unit only 

Exterior Materials 

Additions/Alterations/Fences/Decks 
The Petitioner does not propose any additions, decks, or other fencing than described above.  The CC&Rs provided 
indicate that additions, alterations, improvements (including fences, privacy walls, and decks), and a landscaping 
hedge between units would require the association’s Board consent.  No plans have been provided for potential 
additions, decks, etc.  The Legacy Code’s Building Standards that a minimum of 75% of all facades must be 
comprised of: brick, stone, fiber cement siding, cedar, slate & asphalt (roof only), and copper &/or stainless steel.  
These standards also have Architectural Guidelines that state a consistent style of architectural composition should 
be applied throughout a structure.  Also, the Legacy Code’s private lot standards for Neighborhood General area 
stipulate that rear yards (where no alley is required) be at least five feet minimum which provides some allowance 
for future additions. However, uniformity through the development is important and part of the overall 
development proposal. Since none are proposed, staff has recommended a condition prohibiting these additions at 
this time. If the HOA or owners want to propose a specific change in the future, it would need to apply to all 
properties within the development (allow only one type of deck, addition, fence, etc.).  
 
Materials 
The Petitioner has provided physical exterior building 
material samples as well as a digital material board, echoing 
the appearance of the exterior elevation drawings. The 
materials meet the Legacy Code requirements of minimum 
75% facades and roof excluding glazing, and include but are  
not limited to brick, fiber cement siding, and asphalt 
shingles.  Accent materials up to 25% are also offered which 
include standing seam roofs.  Hardie fiber cement board, 
brick, asphalt roofs, standing seam metal roofs (only as an 
accent on the 6-unit), aluminum brackets/soffits/fascia, and 
vinyl windows are all proposed.  The types of proposed 
Hardie materials vary and appear complementary.  The five-
unit buildings have Hardie panel vertical siding and plank lap 
siding, while the six-unit building has an upgraded 
appearance additionally including Hardie shingle siding.   
 
The Plan Commission agreed on adding a condition to the 
architectural and site plan approval to prohibit additions but 
to allow for potential future additions as long as the designs 
will apply to all properties within the development. 
 
Open Item #4: Consider staff’s recommended condition 
limiting any additions, exterior alterations, improvements, 
and decks unless a uniform proposal for such change is 
proposed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 307AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 9 of 15 

SIGNAGE 
 
The Petitioner has stated that no subdivision signs are planned.  Any future proposed signage will need to meet 
Village zoning code requirements.   
 
PARKING 
 
The proposed development will meet and exceed the Legacy Code’s minimum parking requirements for the 
Neighborhood General area.  The Legacy Code requires a minimum of 1.5 spaces of vehicle parking and one bicycle 
parking space per dwelling unit.  The proposal includes a two-car garage and a two-car driveway per dwelling unit.  
Bike racks on pads serving a total of 32 bicycles are located at the north end of each alley.   
 
On the proposed private road, signage prohibiting parking is provided on the south side as well as an area along the 
north side.  The Village’s Fire Department reviewed the plans, including the Fire Truck Route, and previously noted 
and confirmed that at least a “No Parking” sign will be required for vehicles on at least one side of each of the three 
alleys to avoid any conflict with access.  Given the alleys are 20-foot wide and the narrow spacing between 
driveways, the Village may wish to consider signage to prohibit parking on both sides of the alleys to allow for 
smoother circulation.   
 
LIGHTING 
 
The proposal includes two types of lighting: Sternberg 
Decorative Light  (19 total tagged as “T3”) as site lighting and  
“access” lighting (93 total, tagged as “A1)) as building sconce 
lighting.  Only one type of access/building light specification 
cut sheet was provided (a code-compliant Dixon brand wall-
mounted fixture LED light with no visible light source).  The 
light placement is depicted on the site photometric plan, 
with the “access” lighting mounted 10’ high, and site lighting 
as 12’ poles with mounted 14’ high fixtures.  The Sternberg 
site lights are designed per previous Village-provided 
specifications and are located consistently in line with the 
existing light of the same design at the adjacent Union 
Square development to the south.  Per code requirements, 
they are located with a maximum average spacing of 60 
feet on center. 
 
The site geometric plan further confirms the site light locations, 
three of which are along Oak Park Avenue and aligned with the 
existing streetlight south of the property fronting the adjacent 
Union Square property.   
 
The access (building) lights are shown on the photometric plan 
on every front and rear of all buildings proposed (six-unit building 
having six on front, 12 on rear, while five-unit buildings have five on 
front, 10 on rear, summing 93 total).  However, plans require 
confirmation of fixture selection and location, as well as 
coordination.   
 

Rear Light/s  on Exterior Elevations,(6-unit top, 5-unit btm.) 

Dixon wall 
building light per 
fixture cut sheet Sternberg light Photometric excerpt 

Floor Plan Light 

Page | 308AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 10 of 15 

The exterior line drawings show building sconces flanking each garage on all buildings whereas the access (building) 
lights on the photometric appear approximately located and centered too far in per unit.  Additionally, some of the 
six-unit front lights fronting Oak Park Avenue appear irregularly placed.    Floor plans appear to show a light 
centered under a canopy, but the Dixon brand fixture specifies wall mounting.   Lights also are not consistently 
shown on the exterior color elevations and line drawings, and those depicted to have a straight, rectangular sconce 
shape versus the flared shape per the Dixon fixture cut sheet.   
 
Light spillage is noted in the Legacy Code as maximum 0.5 foot candles at the property line, unless  additional 
illumination is required for security or other use, and provided without negative impacts on adjacent properties, The 
foot candle light levels largely fall below 0.5 fc, apart from along Oak Park Avenue (max. 2.0 fc), one 10-foot 
increment of 0.7 fc on the west and central alleys’ south ends, and two 10-foot increments of 0.6 fc on the east 
alley’s south end.  Due to the pedestrian street sidewalk along Oak Park Avenue, and the safety and clear views 
provided on the alleys for access, these light levels are all deemed demonstrated satisfactory to the Village.   
 
The petitioner stated at the Plan Commission workshop that the light fixtures on the line drawings are a 
representation of the light fixtures. The actual light fixtures being installed will be the “Dixon” lighting fixture 
provided on the cut sheets. The front of the six-unit structure will not have light fixtures as the light will be provided 
by the undermount fixtures on the canopies over the front doors. The submitted photometric plan dated July 24, 
2023, has cleaned up the previous issues and appears to meet all standards. A final engineer approved photometric 
plan will be a condition of site plan approval. 
 
Open Item #5: Discuss exterior light selection, placement, and coordination among photometric plan, fixture cut 
sheet, exterior color elevations, line drawings, and floor plans. 
 
PLAT APPROVALS 
 
The Petitioner is proposing a Final Plat of Subdivision as well as Plat of Vacation.  The Plat of Vacation is a 100.05’ x 
10’ area on the east edge of the development adjacent to Oak Park Avenue.  The proposed “Final Plat of Oak Park 
Townes Subdivision” will resubdivide the existing three lots into 32 lots, the last of which being common ground for 
the private road which will not be dedicated.  Since the road will be private, the private road’s name is not included 
on the Plat.  The plat shows easement information.  The alleys have a 20-foot public ingress-egress and public utility 
easement and a ten-foot public utility and drainage easement on both sides.  The south and west property edges of 
the 5-unit buildings also have a ten-foot public utility and drainage easement.  Stormwater management is included 
as part of the ten-foot easement at the west property edge, as well as on the two infiltration trench areas at the 
rears of the 5-unit buildings.  Lastly, a 50’x53’ stormwater management easement is provided over the bioswale 
location.  Staff recommends a condition that the Plat is subject to final approval by the Village Engineer and Village 
Attorney, including final engineering approval of all plans by the Village Engineer and other jurisdictional approvals.   
  

Page | 309AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 11 of 15 

STANDARDS FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
 
Section III.T.2. of the Zoning Ordinance requires that the conditions listed below must be met and reviewed for Site 
Plan approval. Specific findings are not required but all standards shall be considered to have been met upon review 
from the Plan Commission. 
 
Architectural  
 

a. Building Materials: The size of the structure will dictate the required building materials (Section V.C. 
Supplementary District Regulations). Where tilt-up or pre-cast masonry walls (with face or thin brick inlay) 
are allowed vertical articulation, features are encouraged to mask the joint lines. Concrete panels must 
incorporate architectural finishes that comply with “Building Articulation” (Section III.U.5.h.) standards. Cast 
in place concrete may be used as an accent alternate building material (no greater than 15% per façade) 
provided there is sufficient articulation and detail to diminish it’s the appearance if used on large, blank 
walls.  

b. Cohesive Building Design: Buildings must be built with approved materials and provide architectural interest 
on all sides of the structure. Whatever an architectural style is chosen, a consistent style of architectural 
composition and building materials are to be applied on all building facades.  

c. Compatible Architecture:  All construction, whether it be new or part of an addition or renovation of an 
existing structure, must be compatible with the character of the site, adjacent structures and streetscape. 
Avoid architecture or building materials that significantly diverge from adjacent architecture.  Maintain the 
rhythm of the block in terms of scale, massing and setback. Where a development includes outlots they shall 
be designed with compatible consistent architecture with the primary building(s). Site lighting, landscaping 
and architecture shall reflect a consistent design statement throughout the development.  

d. Color: Color choices shall consider the context of the surrounding area and shall not be used for purposes 
of “attention getting” or branding of the proposed use. Color choices shall be harmonious with the 
surrounding buildings; excessively bright or brilliant colors are to be avoided except to be used on a minor 
scale for accents.  

e. Sustainable architectural design: The overall design must meet the needs of the current use without 
compromising the ability of future uses. Do not let the current use dictate an architecture so unique that it 
limits its potential for other uses (i.e. Medieval Times). 

f. Defined Entry:  Entrance shall be readily identifiable from public right-of-way or parking fields. The entry can 
be clearly defined by using unique architecture, a canopy, overhang or some other type of weather 
protection, some form of roof element or enhanced landscaping. 

g. Roof: For buildings 10,000 sf or less a pitched roof is required or a parapet that extends the full exterior of 
the building. For buildings with a continuous roof line of 100 feet of more, a change of at least five feet in 
height must be made for every 75 feet.  

h. Building Articulation: Large expanses of walls void of color, material or texture variation are to be avoided.  
The use of material and color changes, articulation of details around doors, windows, plate lines, the 
provision of architectural  details such as “belly-bands” (decorative cladding that runs horizontally around 
the building), the use of recessed design elements, exposed expansion joints, reveals, change in texture, or 
other methods of visual relief are encouraged as a means to minimize the oppressiveness of large expanses 
of walls and  break down the overall scale of the building into intermediate scaled parts. On commercial 
buildings, facades greater than 100 feet must include some form of articulation of the façade through the 
use of recesses or projections of at least 6 inches for at least 20% of the length of the façade. For industrial 
buildings efforts to break up the long façade shall be accomplished through a change in building material, 
color or vertical breaks of three feet or more every 250 feet.  

i. Screen Mechanicals: All mechanical devices shall be screened from all public views.  

Page | 310AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 12 of 15 

j. Trash Enclosures: Trash enclosures must be screened on three sides by a masonry wall consistent with the 
architecture and building material of the building it serves.  Gates must be kept closed at all times and 
constructed of a durable material such as wood or steel. They shall not be located in the front or corner side 
yard and shall be set behind the front building façade. 

 
Site Design 
 

a. Building/parking location:  Buildings shall be located in a position of prominence with parking located to the 
rear or side of the main structure when possible. Parking areas shall be designed so as to provide 
continuous circulation avoiding dead-end parking aisles. Drive-through facilities shall be located to the rear 
or side of the structure and not dominate the aesthetics of the building. Architecture for canopies of drive-
through areas shall be consistent with the architecture of the main structure.  

b. Loading Areas: Loading docks shall be located at the rear or side of buildings whenever possible and 
screened from view from public rights-of-way. 

c. Outdoor Storage:  Outdoor storage areas shall be located at the rear of the site in accordance with Section 
III.O.1. (Open Storage). No open storage is allowed in front or corner side yards and are not permitted to 
occupy areas designated for parking, driveways or walkways. 

d. Interior Circulation: Shared parking and cross access easements are encouraged with adjacent properties of 
similar use. Where possible visitor/employee traffic shall be separate from truck or equipment traffic. 

e. Pedestrian Access: Public and interior sidewalks shall be provided to encourage pedestrian traffic. Bicycle 
use shall be encouraged by providing dedicated bikeways and parking. Where pedestrians or bicycles must 
cross vehicle pathways a cross walk shall be provided that is distinguished by a different pavement material 
or color. 

 

  

Page | 311AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 13 of 15 

STANDARDS FOR A VARIATION 
 
Section X.G.4. of the Zoning Ordinance states the Plan Commission shall not recommend a Variation of the 
regulations of the Zoning Ordinance unless it shall have made Findings of Fact, based upon the evidence presented 
for each of the Standards for Variations listed below. The Plan Commission must provide findings for the first three 
standards; the remaining standards are provided to help the Plan Commission further analyze the request. Staff has 
prepared draft responses for the Findings of Fact below for the Plan Commission’s consideration, which may be 
amended however the Commission sees fit to represent the facts of the requests. 
 

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the 
conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located. 
The requirements for public utility easement locations and the need for fire department access limit the 
usable area on the elongated site. The property cannot yield a reasonable return if following the current 
regulations as the public utility easement would have insufficient space within the side yard and the fire 
department would only be able to access a structure that fronts Oak Park Avenue. 

 
2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances. 

The district regulations state a five foot (5’) maximum side yard and require the building to front Oak 
Park Avenue. The Village needs a ten foot (10’) wide public utility easement along the south of the 
property. These regulations conflict and are caused by the Village’s regulations and not the owners 
preference. The Fire Department needs a specific width for the alley for emergency vehicle access due to 
the unique depth of the property from Oak Park Avenue. 
 

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
The proposed attached housing structures will not alter the character of the location as the adjacent 
land uses to the south are also townhome structures and the adjacent land uses to the north are multi-
family dwellings. The architectural style and density are in line with the adopted Legacy Plan. 
 

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission shall also, in making its determination whether there are practical 
difficulties or particular hardships, take into consideration the extent to which the following facts 
favorable to the Petitioner have been established by the evidence: 
 

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific property 
involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out; 
 

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be applicable, 
generally, to other property within the same zoning classification; 
 

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of 
the property; 
 

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by a 
previous owner; 
 

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and 
 

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent 
property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood. 

Page | 312AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 14 of 15 

MOTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
If the Plan Commission wishes to take action on the Petitioner’s requests, the appropriate wording of the motions 
are listed below. The protocol for the writing of a motion is to write it in the affirmative so that a positive or negative 
recommendation correlates to the Petitioner’s proposal. By making a motion, it does not indicate a specific 
recommendation in support or against the plan. 
 
Motion 1 (Final Plat of Subdivision and Plat of Vacation):   
“…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant approval to the Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak 
Park by EEP, LLC, Final Plat of Subdivision and Final Plat of Vacation Approval for Oak Park Townes Subdivision located in 
the Legacy District’s Neighborhood General zoning district in accordance with the Final Plats (dated May 5, 2023) submitted 
and listed herein, subject to the condition that both the Final Plat and Plat of Vacation are subject to final approval by the 
Village Engineer and Village Attorney.” 
 
Motion 2 - Site Plan and Architectural Approval:  
“…make a motion to grant the Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC, Site Plan and Architectural 
approval for Oak Park Townes Subdivision to develop a 31-unit townhome development at the property located on vacant 
land at the west side of Oak Park Avenue, north of 179th Street, currently addressed as 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue in 
the Legacy District’s Neighborhood General zoning district, in accordance with the submitted plans in the August 3, 2023 
staff report and subject to the following conditions: 

1. Final engineering approval of all plans by the Village Engineer and any other jurisdictional approvals, including but 
not limited to Will County DOT, MWRD, and IEPA. 

2. Building additions (including any sunrooms and three season rooms) are not permitted unless a uniform design to 
the additions, incompliance with all codes is approved by Plan Commission. 

3. A final photometric plan shall be submitted and approved by Village planning and engineering staff with the final l 
permit. 

4. The project shall be completed in one phase and shall start with the 3-story townhome building fronting Oak Park 
Avenue to be completed first. At no point shall more than 10 other unit occupancies be approved before the 3-
story townhome building is completed with full occupancy. 

 
Motion 3 - Variation Approval:  
“…make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, 
LLC, a variation from Section XII.2.D.9 to increase the maximum required interior side yard setback from five feet (5’) to ten 
and one/tenth feet (10.1) and a variation from Section XII.3.E.4.c to increase the maximum width of a two-lane driveway 
from twenty feet (20’) to thirty-one feet (31’) consistent with the Submitted Plans and adopt Findings of Fact as proposed by 
Village Staff in the August 3, 2023 Staff Report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 313AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Oak Park Townes – 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 15 of 15 

 
LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS 
 
 

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared 
By 

Date On 
Sheet 

 Application and Response to Standards Petitioner 2/7/2023 
 Narrative Petitioner 6/8/2023 
 Plat of Survey JAS * 2020 
 Architectural Drawings & Photometric Plan (15 sheets) GDA 6/2/2023 
 Civil Drawings (14 sheets) JAS * 5/5/2023 
 Fire Truck Route Drawing JAS * 1/4/2023 
 Plat of Vacation JAS * 2023 
 Final Plat of Oak Park Townes Subdivision (2 sheets) JAS * 5/5/2023 
 Landscaping Drawings MC 7/24/2023 
 Tree Preservation & Removal Plan MC 5/19/2023 
 Exterior Material Boards (6 sheets GDA 6/6/2023 
 Building Access Lighting Fixture Specification Cut Sheet – Dixon brand 

wall sconce 
AL n/a 

 Stormwater Management Report JAS 2/2/2023 
 Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPCC) n/a 5/16/2023 
 Trustee’s Deed n/a n/a 
 Declaration / Covenants Conditions Restrictions (CC&Rs) Petitioner 7/24/2023 
 Site Improvement Plans (14 sheets) Petitioner 7/26/2023 
 Full Plan Submittal (43 sheets) Petitioner 7/26/2023 

 
* JAS - Joseph A Schudt & Associates 

   GDA – Goduco Design Architects 
   MC – Metz & Company Landscape Architecture / Site Planning 
   AL – Access Lighting 

Page | 314AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.2023-O-045

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TWO VARIATIONS FROM THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE FOR THE OAK PARK TOWNES DEVELOPMENT 

LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVENUE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 315AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-O-045

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TWO VARIATIONS FROM THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE FOR THE OAK PARK TOWNES DEVELOPMENT LOCATED 

AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVENUE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition for granting certain variations (“Variations”) to construct a thirty-
one unit townhome development within the NG (Legacy – Neighborhood General) zoning district 
located at 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 (“Subject Property”) has 
been filed by Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC (“Petitioner”) with the Village 
Clerk of this Village and has been referred to the Plan Commission of the Village and has been 
processed in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, said Plan Commission held a public hearing on the question of whether the 
Variations should be granted on August 3, 2023, at the Village Hall at which time all persons were 
afforded an opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said public hearing 
by publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said public 
hearing in the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley 
Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission voted 6-0 and has filed its report and findings and 
recommendations that the proposed Variations be approved with this President and Board of 
Trustees, and this Board of Trustees has duly considered said report of findings and 
recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to approve said Variations; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

Page | 316AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as 
if said recitals were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission are herein 
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete 
as if fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner has provided evidence 
establishing that they have met the standards for granting the Variations as set forth in Section 
X.G.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the proposed granting of the Variations as set forth herein is 
in the public good and in the best interest of the Village and its residents and is consistent with and 
fosters the purpose and spirit of the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance.

Section X.G.4. of the Zoning Ordinance states the Plan Commission shall not recommend a 
Variation of the regulations of the Zoning Ordinance unless it shall have made Findings of Fact, 
based upon the evidence presented for each of the Standards for Variations listed below. The Plan 
Commission must provide findings for the first three standards; the remaining standards are 
provided to help the Plan Commission further analyze the request. 

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under 
the conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.

 The requirements for public utility easement locations and the need for fire department 
access limit the usable area on the elongated site. The property cannot yield a reasonable 
return if following the current regulations as the public utility easement would have 
insufficient space within the side yard and the fire department would only be able to access 
a structure that fronts Oak Park Avenue.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.
 The district regulations state a five foot (5’) maximum side yard and require the building 

to front Oak Park Avenue. The Village needs a ten foot (10’) wide public utility easement 
along the south of the property. These regulations conflict and are caused by the Village’s 
regulations and not the owners preference. The Fire Department needs a specific width for 
the alley for emergency vehicle access due to the unique depth of the property from Oak 
Park Avenue. 

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
 The proposed attached housing structures will not alter the character of the location as the 

adjacent land uses to the south are also townhome structures and the adjacent land uses 
to the north are multi-family dwellings. The architectural style and density are in line with 
the adopted Legacy Plan.

4. Additionally, the Plan Commission shall also, in making its determination whether there 
are practical difficulties or particular hardships, take into consideration the extent to which 
the following facts favorable to the Petitioner have been established by the evidence:

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific 
property involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were 
carried out;

Page | 317AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be 
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more 
money out of the property;

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, 
or by a previous owner;

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious 
to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is 
located; and

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an 
adjacent property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or 
increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or 
impair property values within the neighborhood.

SECTION 3: That the Variations as set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following 
described property:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOT 4 IN BLOCK 2 IN ELMORE’S HARLEM AVENUE ESTATES, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, 
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS; AND

LOT 5 IN BLOCK 2 IN ELMORE’S HARLEM AVENUE ESTATES, (EXCEPT THAT 
PART TAKEN FOR WIDENING OF OAK PARK AVENUE AS SHOWN IN 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 23905184, BEING THE EAST 10 FEET OF THE LAND) 
BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.I.N.s: 28-31-105-010-0000, 28-31-105-027-0000 & 28-31-105-026-0000

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:  17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 

SECTION 4: That the following Variations are hereby granted to the Petitioner in the NG (Legacy 
– Neighborhood General) Zoning District at the above-mentioned property to construct a thirty-
one unit townhome development in accordance with the “List of Reviewed Plans” attached hereto 
as Exhibit A:

1. Variation from Section XII.2.D.9. to increase the interior side yard setback from a five-
foot maximum permitted by code to a maximum of 10.10 feet.

2. Variation from Section XII.3.E.4.c. to increase the private roadway’s maximum curb cut 
width from 20 feet permitted by code to a maximum of 31 feet.

Page | 318AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 319AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook 

and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct 

copy of Ordinance No. 2023-O-045, “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TWO VARIATIONS 

FROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR THE OAK PARK TOWNES DEVELOPMENT 

LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVENUE,” which was adopted by the President and 

Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
          VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 320AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit A

Per the August 3, 2023, Plan Commission Public Hearing Staff Report

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared 
By

Date On 
Sheet

Application and Response to Standards Petitioner 2/7/2023
Narrative Petitioner 6/8/2023
Plat of Survey JAS * 2020
Architectural Drawings & Photometric Plan (15 sheets) GDA 6/2/2023
Civil Drawings (14 sheets) JAS * 5/5/2023
Fire Truck Route Drawing JAS * 1/4/2023
Plat of Vacation JAS * 2023
Final Plat of Oak Park Townes Subdivision (2 sheets) JAS * 5/5/2023
Landscaping Drawings MC 7/24/2023
Tree Preservation & Removal Plan MC 5/19/2023
Exterior Material Boards (6 sheets GDA 6/6/2023
Building Access Lighting Fixture Specification Cut Sheet – Dixon brand 
wall sconce

AL n/a

Stormwater Management Report JAS 2/2/2023
Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPCC) n/a 5/16/2023
Trustee’s Deed n/a n/a
Declaration / Covenants Conditions Restrictions (CC&Rs) Petitioner 7/24/2023
Site Improvement Plans (14 sheets) Petitioner 7/26/2023
Full Plan Submittal (43 sheets) Petitioner 7/26/2023

* JAS - Joseph A Schudt & Associates
  GDA – Goduco Design Architects
  MC – Metz & Company Landscape Architecture / Site Planning
  AL – Access Lighting

Page | 321AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



1

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 3, 2023 REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 2: PUBLIC HEARING – OAK PARK TOWNES, 17822-17828 OAK PARK 
AVENUE – VARIATIONS, FINAL PLAT, AND SITE 
PLAN/ARCHITECTURAL APPROVAL

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf 
of Oak Park by EEP, LLC, (petitioner) two Variations from Section XII.D.9. 
(Private Lot Standards), Table 2.D.6. of the Zoning Code. The proposed Variations 
will increase the required interior maximum side yard setback from five feet (5’) to 
a ten and one/tenth feet (10.1’) and increase the private roadway’s maximum curb 
cut width from twenty feet (20’) to thirty-one feet (31’). The petitioner is requesting 
these Variations to permit new construction of a 31-unit townhome development 
located at 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue zoned within the NG (Legacy – 
Neighborhood General) zoning district. Site Plan and Final Plat approvals will also 
be considered at the meeting.

Present Plan Commissioners:  
Chairman Gray
Don Bettenhausen
James Gaskill
Angela Gatto
Terry Hamilton
Andrae Marak

Absent Plan Commissioners: Eduardo Mani
Steve Sepessy
Kurt Truxal

Village Officials and Staff:  Jason Engberg, Planning Manager
Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner

Petitioners: Ramsey Elshafei, RE Development Solutions
Jim Doyle, RE Development Solutions

Members of the Public: Lynn Moleck
Mark Furczon
Peggy Concannon
Keshia Garnett

CHAIRMAN GRAY introduced Item 2. He confirmed proof of publication.

Page | 322AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



2

COMMISSIONER GASKILL made a motion to open the public hearing; COMMISSIONER 
GATTO seconded the motion. All agreed.

Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, presented the staff report.

CHAIRMAN GRAY invited the Petitioners to speak. The Petitioners Jim Doyle and Ramsey 
Elshafei were sworn in.

Jim Doyle stated that he represents the future landlord of the property. He thanked Staff for helping 
navigate the Legacy district regulations. 

Ramsey Elshafei stated that his business has a long track record of developing and investing in 
commercial real estate. He said his team wants to get the project done quickly and efficiently.

CHAIRMAN GRAY called on COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN for comment; he had none.

COMMISSIONER MARAK said that he supports more density in the Legacy district, especially 
surrounding public transportation routes. 

COMMISSIONER GASKILL had no comment.

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON said the project looked nice. He had no further comment.

CHAIRMAN GRAY said many details were handled at the previous workshop. He said he 
appreciated the Petitioner working with Staff.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked if anyone in the audience wished to speak.

Lynn Moleck, the owner of 17814 Oak Park Avenue, was sworn in. Ms. Moleck said that she has 
owned 17814 Oak Park Avenue for 48 years. She said she has been in contact with the Petitioner 
and has a handful of concerns about the development. She said her first question was if a new street 
was proposed, or if the development was planning to use the existing driveway on her property for 
access; Jim Doyle confirmed that a new private street, 178th Place, will be constructed for access to 
the proposed units. Ms. Moleck said her second concern was about storage of plowed now; Jim 
Doyle and Ramsey Elshafei confirmed that there was adequate space on the subject site for snow 
storage. Ms. Moleck said her third concern was that the proposed private street, 178th Place, was 
too close to the northern property line; CHAIRMAN GRAY said that there would be tree planted 
on both sides of 178th Place to provide screening and that the trees were not mandated by the Zoning 
Ordinance. Mr. Elshafei said there was eight to ten feet between the proposed street and the northern 
property line. Ms. Moleck noted that the developer would attempt to retain existing mature trees 
along the northern property line. Mr. Elshafei said that the easement along the northern property 
line is a utility easement and would only be used to repair infrastructure for the development. Ms. 
Moleck asked if the properties would be rented or sold; Jim said they are proposed as rental but 
may be sold in the future. Ms. Moleck noted the property has been vacant for 50 years. Ms. Moleck 
mentioned a concern about shadows from the proposed three-story buildings on Oak Park Avenue 
but did not have a question.

Page | 323AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



3

Mark Furczon was sworn in. Mr. Furczon asked how wide the buffer between 178th Place and the 
northern property line would be. Mr. Elshafei said the width between the curb of the proposed street 
and northern property line will be eight to ten feet. Mr. Elshafei noted that the neighboring 
properties’ driveways are approximately two feet from their southern property line. Mr. Furczon 
said he was also concerned about snow removal. He said that two feet was not wide enough. 
CHAIRMAN GRAY noted that the two-foot distance referred to Mr. Furczon (and the other 
owners’ southern property line. Mr. Elshafei said the proposed 178th Place was further from the 
shared property line than the neighboring developments’ driveway and that if snow could not be 
stored within the proposed development, that it would be removed. Mr. Furczon had no additional 
comments.

Peggy Concannon was sworn in. Ms. Concannon said she lives in a townhouse to the south of the 
subject property and was happy the property was being developed. She said there is often garbage 
on the subject property that sometimes blows onto her property. She asked whether there would be 
a fence between the properties to the south and the subject property. She also asked about the 
existing vegetation on the shared property line. CHAIRMAN GRAY confirmed Ms. Concannon 
was referring to the southern property line of the subject property. Jason Engberg, Planning 
Manager, confirmed that there is existing vegetation on the development’s southern property line. 
Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, said there are thirty trees. Ms. Concannon said they are bushes 
not trees and that do not look good. Jason Engberg, Planning Manager, asked if the question was 
about retaining or replacing the existing vegetation. Ms. Concannon said yes and whether there 
would be a fence. Mr. Elshafei said landscaping would be planted along the southern property line 
and could not confirm whether a fence was planned. Ms. Concannon asked if the units would be 
rentals. Mr. Elshafei said they would be rental for now based on market conditions. Ms. Concannon 
said she would like to see a fence and the removal of existing vegetation. Jim Doyle said there 
would be a lot of landscaping added along the southern property line. He said dense shrubs and 
trees are proposed. Mr. Elshafei said a lot of the vegetation would likely be removed during the 
earthwork phase. Mr. Elshafei clarified stormwater would be handled entirely on the site or into the 
Village’s stormwater system. Ms. Concannon had no further questions. Jason Engberg, Planning 
Manager, reminded the audience that the Village cannot limit property ownership to being owned 
or rented.

Keshia Garnett was sworn in. Ms. Garnett thanked Peggy Concannon for her comments. Ms. 
Garnett asked where she could find the plans presented at the workshop meeting. Lori Kosmatka, 
Associate Planner, told Ms. Garnett where to find the documents on the Village website. 
CHAIRMAN GRAY also noted that the workshop discussion was recorded and could be found on 
the Village’s YouTube channel. Ms. Garnett asked for the Petitioner’s contact information.

COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN asked for clarification on the plans as to what was being 
shown on the northwest corner of the property. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, said that was a 
stormwater bioswale that would also be used to store snow. 

COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN asked about the current zoning of the property. Lori 
Kosmatka, Associate Planner, said it is zoned NG Neighborhood General. She noted that the Legacy 
District has different regulations than the rest of the Zoning Ordinance. COMMISSIONER 

Page | 324AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



4

BETTENHAUSEN asked what the permitted density of the NG zoning district was. 
COMMISSIONER MARAK noted that the Legacy District is intended to promote higher density. 
COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN asked if the project was requesting any sort of deviation to 
allow for greater density. Jason Engberg, Planning Manager, noted the only variances requested 
were a setback reduction and driveway width. 

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON asked what the correct street name was. Mr. Elshafei confirmed 
it is 178th Place. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, noted that, because it is a private street, the plat 
of subdivision does not need to include the street name. 

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON asked why the project needed a variance to utilize a greater side 
setback. Jason Engberg, Planning Manager, responded the five-foot side setback in the NG district 
to create a street wall of buildings and a variation was needed for the utility easement. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for a motion to close the public hearing. COMMISSIONER GASKILL 
made a motion to close the public hearing; COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN seconded the 
motion. All agreed.

Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, presented the standards for a Variation.

There were three motions for this item. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY requested a motion regarding the Plat of Subdivision and Plat of Vacation.

Motion 1 – Final Plat of Subdivision and Plat of Vacation

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON made a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant 
approval to the Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC, Final Plat of 
Subdivision and Final Plat of Vacation Approval for Oak Park Townes Subdivision located in the 
Legacy District’s Neighborhood General zoning district in accordance with the Final Plats (dated 
May 5, 2023) submitted and listed herein, subject to the condition that both the Final Plat and Plat 
of Vacation are subject to final approval by the Village Engineer and Village Attorney. 
COMMISSIONER GATTO seconded the motion. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, called the 
role; all were in favor.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the motion carried.

CHAIRMAN GRAY requested a motion regarding Site Plan and Architectural Approval.

Motion 2 – Site Plan and Architectural Approval

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON made a motion to grant the Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf 
of Oak Park by EEP, LLC, Site Plan and Architectural approval for Oak Park Townes Subdivision 
to develop a 31-unit townhome development at the property located on vacant land at the west side 
of Oak Park Avenue, north of 179th Street, currently addressed as 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue 
in the Legacy District’s Neighborhood General zoning district, in accordance with the submitted 

Page | 325AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



5

plans in the August 3, 2023 staff report and subject to the following conditions:
1. Final engineering approval of all plans by the Village Engineer and any other jurisdictional 

approvals, including but not limited to Will County DOT, MWRD, and IEPA.
2. Building additions (including any sunrooms and three season rooms) are not permitted 

unless a uniform design to the additions, incompliance with all codes is approved by Plan 
Commission.

3. A final photometric plan shall be submitted and approved by Village planning and 
engineering staff with the final permit.

4. The project shall be completed in one phase and shall start with the 3-story townhome 
building fronting Oak Park Avenue to be completed first. At no point shall more than 10 
other unit occupancies be approved before the 3-story townhome building is completed with 
full occupancy.

COMMISSIONER GASKILL asked why Will County DOT was mentioned in the motion. Jason 
Engberg, Planning Manager, said Cook County was the correct governing body.

COMMISSIONER HAMILTON corrected his motion to replace Will County with Cook County. 

COMMISSIONER MARAK asked about the sunroom condition. He asked if adding sunrooms 
would have to go to Village Board. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, confirmed the Plan 
Commission has final authority for Site Plan and Architectural Approval. Mr. Elshafei asked if he 
could ask a question. CHAIRMAN GRAY permitted him to do so. Mr. Elshafei asked if the 
occupancy condition required a certificate of occupancy or actual occupation by a resident. Jason 
Engberg, Planning Manager, confirmed that it was a certificate of occupancy that was needed. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY requested a second. 

COMMISSIONER GASKILL seconded the motion. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, called the 
role; all were in favor.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the motioned carried. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY requested a motion regarding the Variations. 

Motion 3 – Variations

COMMISSIONER GATTO made a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the 
Petitioner, Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC, a variation from Section 
XII.2.D.9 to increase the maximum required interior side yard setback from five feet (5’) to ten and 
one/tenth feet (10.1) and a variation from Section XII.3.E.4.c to increase the maximum width of a 
two-lane driveway from twenty feet (20’) to thirty-one feet (31’) consistent with the Submitted 
Plans and adopt Findings of Fact as proposed by Village Staff in the August 3, 2023 Staff Report. 
COMMISSIONER GASKILL seconded the motion. Lori Kosmatka, Associate Planner, called the 
roll; all were in favor.

Page | 326AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



6

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the motion carried. 

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted the item would go to the Village Board on August 15th. He thanked the 
Petitioners for their time and commended the Petitioner for their openness with the surrounding 
neighbors. 

Page | 327AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION 
NO.2023-R-090

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF OAK 
PARK TOWNES SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 328AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-090

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF OAK PARK 
TOWNES SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) has considered the Final Plat of Oak 
Park Townes Subdivision (“Plat”), dated May 5, 2023, submitted by Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf 
of Oak Park by EEP, LLC  (“Petitioner”) pertaining to certain real property located at 17822-17828 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois (“Subject Property”), a true and correct copy of which is 
attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, said Plat, was referred to the Plan Commission of the Village and has been 
processed in accordance with the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed the proposed Plat on August 3, 2023, at a 
public meeting at which time all persons were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission voted 6-0 in favor to recommend that said Plat be 
approved; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of this Village has filed its report of findings and 
recommendations that the proposed Plat be approved by this President and Board of Trustees, and 
this Board of Trustees has duly considered said report of findings and recommendations; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to approve said Plat; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: That the report and findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission of this 
Village are herein incorporated by reference as the findings of this Board of Trustees, as 
completely, as if fully recited herein at length.

Page | 329AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 2: That the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, hereby 
approve and accept said Plat, dated May 5, 2023, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and all necessary 
Village Officials and staff are hereby authorized to execute said Plat prior to final recording, 
subject to the condition that the Final Plat is subject to final approval by the Village Engineer and 
Village Attorney prior to and after recording.

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 330AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of 

Cook and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-R-090 “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF OAK PARK TOWNES SUBDIVISION LOCATED 

AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE” which was adopted by the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
          VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 331AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

Exhibit A – Plat of Subdivision (To Be Updated After Final Review)

Page | 332AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 333AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION 
NO.2023-R-091

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF
VACATION OF RIGHT OF WAY LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 334AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-091

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF
VACATION OF RIGHT OF WAY LOCATED AT 17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) has considered the Plat of Vacation of 
Right of Way (“Plat”), submitted by Ramsey Elshafei, on behalf of Oak Park by EEP, LLC  
(“Petitioner”) pertaining to certain real property located at 17822-17828 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley 
Park, Illinois (“Subject Property”), a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto and made a 
part hereof as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, said Plat, was referred to the Plan Commission of the Village and has been 
processed in accordance with the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission reviewed the proposed Plat on August 3, 2023, at a 
public meeting at which time all persons were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission voted 6-0 in favor to recommend that said Plat be 
approved; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of this Village has filed its report of findings and 
recommendations that the proposed Plat be approved by this President and Board of Trustees, and 
this Board of Trustees has duly considered said report of findings and recommendations; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to approve said Plat; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

Page | 335AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 1: That the report and findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission of this 
Village are herein incorporated by reference as the findings of this Board of Trustees, as 
completely, as if fully recited herein at length.

SECTION 2: That the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, hereby 
approve and accept said Plat, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and all necessary Village Officials and 
staff are hereby authorized to execute said Plat prior to final recording, subject to the condition 
that the Plat is subject to final approval by the Village Engineer and Village Attorney. 

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 336AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of 

Cook and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-R-091, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND 

ACCEPTING THE FINAL PLAT OF VACATION OF RIGHT OF WAY LOCATED AT 

17822-17828 OAK PARK AVE” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August 2023.

____________________________________
         VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 337AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

Exhibit A – Plat of Vacation of Right of Way (To Be Updated After Final Review)

Page | 338AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 7, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water & Sewer Superintendent

Subject: 179th Street Watermain Replacement - Bid Rejection
_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented for Committee of Whole and Village Board consideration and action.

Description:  Reject all bids received for the 179th Street Watermain Replacement.

Background:  Funding to replace the watermain on 179th Street from Oak Park Avenue to 66th Court 
was requested and approved in the FY2024 capital budget.  The project was designed and followed the 
formal bidding process.  Bids for the project were opened publicly on August 1, 2023.  The two bids 
received were well above the budgeted amount for the project by approximately $350,000. FY2024 
funding carryover, plus additional funding to cover the cost of the project, will be requested for the 
FY2025 capital budget.

Staff Direction Request:  Reject both bids received for the 179th Street Watermain Replacement.

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 339AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 8, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water Superintendent

Subject: Water System Assessment Program Agreement -  2023-RFQ-010
_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented for Committee of the Whole and Village Board discussion and action.

Description:  The Village sought a qualified contractor to conduct a water assessment of our water 
system which includes the following services:  

Fire Hydrant Maintenance, operate and inspect hydrants in our water system for problems. 
 Inspections are performed on 1,305 (roughly one-third) of the Village’s hydrants.

Fire Hydrant Flow Testing, check pressure and volume of water flowing from hydrant. 
 Full flow operation on approximately 1,305 (roughly one-third) hydrants, to ensure the water 

main capacity is in accordance with ISO, NFPA, and AWWA requirements.

Water System Leak Survey, detecting non-visible leaks in our water system. 
 Use instrumentation on water valves, hydrants, and water services to listen for leaks.  If leaks 

are found, use leak correlation machine to pinpoint leaks.  The Village is divided into two 
sections, east and west of 80th Avenue.  The western portion is 110 miles of water main while 
the eastern portion is 153 miles of water main. This year the west side of 80th Avenue will be 
surveyed.

Valve Exercising, operate and inspect valves in our water system for problems.
 Locate, operate, and inspect 1,125 (roughly one-third) of the Village’s water valves each year.

Background:
The RFQ was written to be a three-year contract with the option to renewal for another three-year 
contract.  M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. was the only company that submitted a proposal for the work.  M.E. 
Simpson Co., Inc. has performed this work for the last five years. The Village is very pleased with their 
work and recommends continuing with their services.

Budget/ Finance:
Funding is available in the approved FY2024 O&M Budget though accounts 72513 and 72790.

Staff Direction Request:
Approve an agreement with M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. in the amount of $226,557 for the Water System 
Assessment Program.

Attachments:
1. Professional Service Agreement

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 340AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-096

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND M.E. SIMPSON CO., INC. FOR THE WATER SYSTEM ASSESSMENT 

PROGRAM

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 341AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-096

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND M.E. SIMPSON CO., INC. FOR THE WATER SYSTEM ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with M.E. Simpson Co., Inc., a true and correct copy of 

such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 342AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND M.E. SIMPSON CO., INC. FOR 
THE WATER SYSTEM ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

Page | 343AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-096, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND M.E. SIMPSON CO., INC. FOR THE WATER 

SYSTEM ASSESSMENT PROGRAM,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 344AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 345AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 346AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 347AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 348AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 349AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 350AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 351AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 352AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 353AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 354AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 355AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 356AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 357AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 358AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 359AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 360AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 361AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: July 31, 2023

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager
Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager
John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Assistant Public Works Director

Subject: Helipad Improvements – Professional Engineering Services
_________________________________________________________________________________
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description: The Village utilized the Illinois Department of Transportation’s (IDOT) QBS 
(Qualifications-Based Selection) process in selecting the Engineering Consultant to assist with the 
design, cost estimate, Bidding Services and Construction Oversight for the Helipad Aircraft Pavement 
Improvement project. Two (2) consultants submitted RFQ (Request for Qualifications) packets which 
the Village reviewed, rated, interviewed and selected Primera Engineers, Ltd. over the Farnsworth 
Group since it was rated with a higher score. Part of the higher scoring was because Farnsworth was 
only pre-qualified for the design work which would have required them to include another consultant to 
meet all the pre-qualification requirements. IDOT was notified and concurred with the Village’s 
selection.

Primera’s Professional Services includes reconstruction of the existing asphalt helistop with portland 
cement concrete pavement, new embedded helistop lighting, installation of a 3,000 gallon fuel station, 
relocating existing overhead utilities underground along 183rd Street, security cameras, automated 
entrance gates, any miscellaneous drainage improvements along with turning movements for semi-
truck access to deliver the fuel.

Public Works Staff has reviewed the RFQ, discussed the phasing of the project with Primera and 
found the scope of work defined in the agreement to be satisfactory. 

Budget / Finance:  Funding for Engineering and Construction are budgeted with TIF dollars in the 
FY24 Capital Fund Budget (20-00-000-75814). Grant funds have been allocated to the project in the 
amount of $1,440,000.00 and overall budget is $2,444,510.00.

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve award of Professional Services to Primera Engineers, Inc. in the amount of 

$151,375.56.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachment: 
1. Professional Services Agreement with Primera Engineers, Inc.

Interoffice

Memo

Page | 362AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-089

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 363AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-089

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an Agreement with Primera Engineers, Inc., a true and correct copy of 

such Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Agreement” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Agreement to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Agreement.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 364AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. 

FOR HELIPAD IMPROVEMENTS – PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES

Page | 365AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-089, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND PRIMERA ENGINEERS, INC. FOR HELIPAD 

IMPROVEMENTS – PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES,” which was adopted by the 

President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 366AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 367AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 368AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 369AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 370AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 371AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 372AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 373AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 374AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 375AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 376AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AT ILLINOIS AIRPORTS
FOR ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING (A/E), PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

Authorized for use by
The Illinois Department of Transportation

Division of Aeronautics
Effective: June 2012

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made effective at Tinley Park, Illinois on the  day of  in the
year 202 , by and between the Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois home-rule municipality, (hereinafter referred to
as the “Sponsor”), and Primera Engineers, Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant”).  This Agreement
expires five years from the date of execution.

W I T N E S S E T H :

The Sponsor intends to undertake the accomplishment of a project pursuant to the development of a public air
navigation facility known as the Tinley Park Helistop Heliport (TF8) in Cook County, state of Illinois; and the project
shall be identified as the Illinois Project No. TF8-5050, State Block Grant Project No. (N/A).  The following is the
detailed project title and description from the Illinois Department of Transportation's Office of Planning and
Programming (OP&P) program letter which shall be carried through the development of the project (attach
supplemental information as necessary in Section I. H., Detailed Scope of Services): Helistop Aircraft Pavement
Improvements.

A detailed sketch of the proposed work, labeled ATTACHMENT P, shall be attached.

In consideration of the benefits which will accrue to the parties hereto by virtue of the Agreement and the
respective covenants herein contained, IT IS MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED as follows:

The Consultant agrees to furnish executed "Certification of Engineer" and certain professional engineering services
enumerated herein-after, in connection with the implementation and development of the aforesaid project.

The Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics within the state of Illinois shall act as Agent of the
Owner/Sponsor for all matters involving the development of any public air navigation facility by virtue of the Illinois
Aeronautics Act.  The Illinois Aeronautics Act requires and directs the Illinois Department of Transportation, Division
of Aeronautics (hereinafter referred to as the "Department") to "regulate and supervise aeronautics within this
state", with "aeronautics" defined as "…the design, establishment, construction, extension, operation, improvement,
repair or maintenance of airports…".  The Department shall not expend any funds appropriated, or made
available…for any work upon any such project that is not contracted for and constructed or developed under the
supervision or direction of the Department.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 1

Page | 377AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

Ronald Hudson
Rectangle

Ronald Hudson
Rectangle

Ronald Hudson
Rectangle

Ronald Hudson
Rectangle

Ronald Hudson
Rectangle



20220379.00
Primera

Financial assistance may include reimbursement to eligible airport Sponsors for engineering costs directly related
to projects financed in whole or in part by federal/state monies provided such engineering costs were approved
by the Department prior to the payment of these costs by the airport Sponsor.  The approval of engineering costs
prior to payment shall qualify those costs for federal/state reimbursement but shall not constitute an obligation
of federal/state funds.  Since the services contemplated under this Agreement are professional in nature, it is
understood that the Consultant, acting as an individual, partnership, firm or other legal entity, is of professional
status and will be governed by professional ethics in their relationship to the Department and the Sponsor. The
Department acknowledges the professional and ethical status of the Consultant by approving this Agreement and
the associated fees for federal/state eligibility (either in whole or part) on the basis of their qualifications and
experience and determining their compensation by mutually satisfactory negotiations.

Any additions/deletions, revisions/modifications to this Agreement without the expressed written consent of the
Department shall void this Agreement as it relates to state and federal funding participation eligibility.

I. ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING (A/E), PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

The Consultant agrees to perform various professional engineering and planning services and provide
necessary and required information pursuant to the accomplishment of the above referenced project.

It is understood that meetings will be common to all phases. The Consultant will coordinate project kick-off,
pre-design and pre-construction meetings and project status update meetings, as required, in order to resolve
project issues with the Department, Sponsor and/or other regulatory and review agencies.  The Department
shall be notified of scheduled agency meetings and given the opportunity to participate. Meetings for which
effort will be billed shall be thoroughly documented by minutes with copies distributed to the Sponsor and the
Department within 10 days of the meeting.  Failure to properly document meeting discussions could result in
the loss of part or all of the professional services compensation eligibility associated with this activity.

A. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN (NOT APPLICABLE - see Paragraph I. H.)
This phase includes activities required for agency coordination and permit development, non-routine
surveys, testing and architectural/engineering preliminary design considerations of a project.  Elements
of this phase may include development of architectural schematic building designs and reports,
non-routine geological and field investigations (soil borings and pavement cores), DCP testing, FWD testing
(when used to evaluate pavement as part of a strengthening project), coordination of FAA reimbursable
agreements, coordination of utility relocation agreements, coordination of force account activity (must be
pre-approved by the Department in writing).

The Consultant shall furnish and/or perform engineering reconnaissance necessary for the preparation
and development of an engineering report, bidding documents (design plans and specifications) including
topographic field surveys, crack surveys, and sampling and testing for routine soils investigations (in
accordance with ATTACHMENT J - Testing Schedule & ATTACHMENT K - Testing Rates & Cost Summary).

This phase will culminate in the submittal of a detailed engineering report with project alternatives and
design recommendations and project completion timeline assessment.  The Consultant shall furnish an
engineering report in accordance with standard practices and the provisions of ATTACHMENT E -
Engineering Report.  The report will include an analysis of preliminary surveys, geo-technical testing and
alternative designs and include final project design recommendations.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 2

Page | 378AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

The project completion timeline assessment will identify necessary effort required to complete the final
project design (complete construction plans and specifications). This phase of project development will
represent approximately 35% of the project design timeline.  Project formulation should be consistent with
the TIP submittal and the program letter project description (ATTACHMENT R).  If not, identify components
that have changed as a result of the preliminary assessment and schematic design analysis.

A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in
ATTACHMENTS A / A1.

B. DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
This phase shall include activities required to accomplish a project design in accordance with the
established Aeronautics letting schedule project design timeline and approved letting date determined at
the pre-design meeting. Requests for time extensions beyond the previously agreed-to submittal deadline
dates (as established in the Department's Letting Schedule, ATTACHMENT Q, and this Agreement) must
be made to the Department in writing not less than 5 days prior to the due date of the submittal.  The
request for extension must be signed by a principal/officer of the Consultant's firm.  Incomplete submittals
will not be accepted.  Milestone submittals include the engineering report (at 35% design timeline), plan
/ spec review (at 80% design timeline) and final submittal of all deliverables (at 100% design timeline).
A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in
ATTACHMENTS B / B1.  Elements of this phase may include:

1. CONSTRUCTION PLANS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND ESTIMATES
The Consultant shall prepare and furnish for Department review and comment construction plans,
special provisions and Construction Safety Plan (per guidance explained in FAA AC 150/5370-2F (or
current) Operational Safety on Airports during Construction) at the 80% project design timeline with
detailed estimate of costs, estimated DBE participation goal and working/calendar day flow chart, for
the particular design authorized in this Agreement.

2. CLARIFICATION OF PLANS
The Consultant shall render clarification of the construction plans and specifications, when and if such
clarification is deemed necessary.

3. BIDDING ASSISTANCE
The Consultant shall assist the Sponsor and/or Department in the bidding process, analyze and
summarize bid results.

C. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES (NOT APPLICABLE)
This phase shall include all basic services after the award.  A detailed scope of services shall be attached
with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS C / C1.

1. OFFICE ENGINEERING

a. SHOP DRAWINGS
Review the detailed construction, shop and erection drawings submitted by the contractor(s) for
compliance with design concepts.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 3

Page | 379AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

b. SUPPLEMENTARY SKETCHES
Preparation of elementary and supplementary sketches plus estimates required to resolve actual
field conditions.

c. RECORD DRAWINGS
The Consultant shall prepare Record Drawings within thirty (30) days after the official Notification
from the Department of the Official Acceptance of the Construction Work; and after approval by
the Department, furnish said Department with one (1) set of such record drawings.  The submittal
format shall be in accordance with the current policies of the Department.

d. MATERIALS CERTIFICATION
Prior to reporting a pay item quantity for payment, the materials used and incorporated in, or
associated with the pay item, shall be verified for specification compliance by the Consultant.  The
Consultant shall obtain and review all certifications and/or test results required by the policies
of the Department and the Department's Manual for Documentation of Airport Materials.  At the
completion of, or any time prior to the completion of the final quantity of a pay item, the
Consultant shall submit the aforementioned material certifications and/or test results, that were
utilized for acceptance of material, to the Department for review and final approval.  Prior to final
payment of engineering services under this agreement, the Consultant shall have submitted
required certifications and test results to the Department, and the Consultant shall have signed
the Department's MATERIALS CERTIFICATION FORM.

2. FIELD ENGINEERING

a. RESIDENT ENGINEER APPROVAL
The Consultant agrees to furnish the name and qualifications of the Resident Engineer in writing
for approval of the participating agencies prior to the preconstruction conference that shall attend
said preconstruction conference and shall perform the various professional engineering services
required of the Resident Engineer in 2.b. thru 2.f. below and inspection of construction.

b. DAILY DIARY
The Resident Engineer shall maintain a daily diary.  Copies shall be forwarded to the Department
(ATTACHMENT F).

c. DUTIES OF RESIDENT ENGINEER
Furnish full time (unless part time is approved by the Sponsor and/or Department - see
Paragraph I. H.) Resident Engineering of construction including project inspection, field testing,
and furnish surveying at the site of the work, whose duties shall include all reasonable, proper
and customary duties as are usually and customarily furnished in connection with the general
engineering of construction of such improvements, including but not limited to the following:

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 4

Page | 380AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

i. Performance of acceptance and quality assurance tests when required by Department policy
and/or contract specification.  Examples of these tests include but are not limited to:  Testing
concrete for slump and air content; testing concrete for strength; testing bituminous concrete
pavement for density using the nuclear method and using the Bulk Specific Gravity Method.
Obtaining representative samples of miscellaneous materials such as paint, geotextile fabric,
joint sealer, epoxy, polyester resin, etc. for testing as necessary, and/or as directed by the
Department; performance of field density tests of earthwork embankments, backfills and
subgrade; field density tests of subbase and base courses, and moisture content tests on
materials where applicable; and, laboratory proctor tests where applicable.  Test Reports
shall be submitted to the Department within three (3) working days of the date the test was
conducted.

ii. Inspection/Measurement/Oversight of construction to determine that the work was
completed in substantial conformance  with the approved plans and specifications, and in
compliance with the requirements set forth in the contract documents.  All stop or start work
orders shall be issued by the Department; the Resident Engineer shall recommend the
orders.  Document pay item quantities reported for pay in accordance with the latest revision
of the Department's Airport Construction Documentation Manual.

iii. Preparation and forwarding to the Department of periodic project reports required by the
Department.  Bi-weekly construction reports will be submitted to the Department, within three
(3) calendar days of the end of the contractor's work week.

iv. To obtain and review for specification compliance, material certifications and/or test results
for all materials prior to their use in the construction.

v. To reject for inclusion in the project, any materials that are delivered without certification
and/or test results, or materials delivered with certification that has been found to be in
noncompliance, or any defect found through visual inspection which renders the material
unsuitable for inclusion in the project.  The Department shall be notified when any rejections
are made.  Materials that are delivered without certification and/or test results may be
stockpiled or stored in a manner acceptable to the Resident Engineer until such time as the
certification and/or test result arrive and are reviewed and accepted by the Resident
Engineer.

vi. Preparation of Reports required per the Sponsor's NPDES permit while providing on-site
services, retaining all support documentation.

vii. Participate in audits performed to determine that the project is proceeding accordingly per
the plans and specifications and adhering to AIP grant requirements.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 5

Page | 381AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

d. FINAL INSPECTION
Initiate a request, upon substantial completion of all construction work, for a final inspection by
the Department.  When necessary, a punch list of uncompleted items and electrical checklist (if
applicable) on the project shall be established at the final inspection.  Submit a final acceptance
letter (punch list complete) which shall certify to the Department and the Sponsor that, to the best
of the Consultant's knowledge, information and belief, the work involved has been done in
substantial conformance with the plans, specifications, and Contract Document, as the same
shall have been modified, or supplemented by change order, supplementary contract or
otherwise, and that such work is acceptable.

e. SAFEGUARD THE SPONSOR
Endeavor to safeguard the Sponsor against any defects and deficiencies on the part of the
Contractor. The Resident Engineer does not guarantee the performance of the contract by the
Contractor, except that the Resident Engineer shall ensure that, to the best of the Resident
Engineer's knowledge, information and belief,  the work has been done in substantial
conformance with the approved plans and specifications and advise the Sponsor and/or the
Department in writing of any known noncompliance set forth in the contract.  This does not in any
way mean that the Resident Engineer is a guarantor of the Contractor's work.

The Resident Engineer assumes no responsibility for safety in, on or about the job site, nor shall
the Resident Engineer have any responsibility for the safety or adequacy of any equipment,
building component, scaffolding, forms or other work aids provided by the contractor; nor is the
Resident Engineer responsible for the superintendence of the contractor's work or any acts of the
contractor.

f. OTHER ENGINEERING SERVICES
Furnish other Engineering Services which may be required by the Sponsor, including surveys.
sub-surface investigations, sampling, testing, and analysis of soils, offsite inspection of materials,
laboratory testing, and inspection and control at central mixing plants.  Where tests must be
conducted by commercial laboratories, only those laboratories approved by the Department will
be utilized.  If any of these services are conducted by outside firms, the Resident Engineer shall
submit copies of the executed contract for such services as specified in Section III. B., of this
Agreement.  The charges for such services shall be specified in the contract and will remain in
effect until completion of the services and acceptance by the Consultant.  Certified copies of the
results of all tests required by the Department under this paragraph are to be mailed to the
Department within five (5) calendar days after the tests are completed.

g. FINAL QUANTITIES
Final quantities associated with the accepted construction work shall be submitted to the
Department within thirty (30) days after final acceptance of the construction work.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 6

Page | 382AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

D. PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES
This phase may involve activities or studies unrelated to or outside of the scope of basic design and
construction phase engineering services routinely performed by the Consultant.  Those activities may
include master plan and airport layout plan development, environmental studies and assessments, PCI
surveys, FWD testing (when used to evaluate pavement as part of a publication revision), first-order NGS
monument surveys, boundary surveys, aeronautical surveys, photogrammetric surveys and topographic
mapping, preparation of property ownership plats and easements, appraisal and land acquisition services,
benefit / cost analysis studies, RSA determination studies, drainage studies and analyses, FEMA/FIRM
map revisions and GIS updates.  A detailed scope of services is prescribed in Paragraph I. H., with
anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS D / D1.

E. ENDORSEMENT OF DOCUMENTS
The Consultant will endorse and seal all final draft reports, contract plans, maps, right of way plats, and
special provisions for construction contract documents.  Such endorsements must be made by a person,
duly licensed or registered in the appropriate category by the Department of Financial and Professional
Regulation of the state of Illinois, being employed by the Consultant and responsible for the portion of the
services for which license registration is required.  These sealed documents will serve as the record
documents for the services covered by the terms of the Agreement.

F. DELIVERABLES
At a minimum, the Consultant shall provide the Department (copy Sponsor upon request) the following
deliverables:

1. Final project estimate of costs complete w/ professional services fees and sponsor reimbursement
estimates.

2. DBE participation goal and breakout of DBE work.
3. QA verification of ELM Engineers Estimate for Schedule of Prices.
4. Calendar day estimate of construction and detailed breakout of critical work items and associated

production rates.
5. One set of final construction plans (half-size) and special provisions - sealed by the Consultant and

executed by the Sponsor.
6. One copy of the Construction Safety Plan (per guidance explained in FAA AC 150/5370-2F (or current)

Operational Safety on Airports during Construction).
7. Original executed Consultant Project Certification (ATTACHMENT N).
8. Executed DBE Final Documentation (ATTACHMENT O).
9. Electronic copy/access of all information (via CD, electronic submittal or ftp site).

G. NOTICE-TO-PROCEED (NTP)
The Consultant shall not commence any phase of the work until the "official notice-to-proceed" (NTP) has
been issued in writing either by the Sponsor or Department (via Office of Planning and Programming).

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 7

Page | 383AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Services to be performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall become eligible for funding
participation consideration as of the date of the written NTP.  The dated project program notification letter
(i.e. Program Letter) from the Department's Office of Planning and Programming, indicating the project's
inclusion in the state program and the estimated funding participation sources/levels, shall constitute the
NTP.  The Consultant shall schedule a project phase kick-off meeting (pre-design, pre-construction, etc.)
with the Sponsor and the Department at the earliest possible convenience upon the Sponsor's receipt of
this letter.

For projects not covered by a program letter or with program letter pending, the Sponsor may issue the
written NTP with concurrence from the Department.  In such cases, the Sponsor is fully liable for all costs
incurred as a result of such authorization pending future reimbursement once the project is programmed
and a program letter is issued. The Sponsor/Consultant is required to schedule a project phase kick-off
meeting (pre-design, pre-construction, etc.) with the Sponsor and the Department at the earliest possible
convenience.

A copy of the program letter shall be included as ATTACHMENT R of this Agreement.

In the absence of a written, dated notice-to-proceed, the execution date of this Agreement shall be used
to determine the eligibility of service dates.

The Sponsor and the Department are not liable, and shall not authorize payment to the Consultant, for any
services performed prior to the date of notice to proceed or the execution of this Agreement (whichever
takes precedent).  All effort, regardless of the notice-to-proceed authorization, is subject to review and
eligibility funding determination.

H. DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN
(Not Applicable)

DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
Design services shall be furnished in accordance with Paragraph I. B. of this Agreement.  Also, as part of
the Design Phase, the following services described in Paragraph I. A. of this Agreement, Preliminary
Assessment and Schematic Design services, shall be furnished:

 Topographic field survey (a pavement crack survey will not be performed).  Design survey by
subconsultant.

 Geotechnical investigation, including field sampling {both soil borings and pavement cores} and
laboratory testing, including for the conformance with Illinois Clean Construction or Demolition Debris
(CCDD) regulations.  Geotechnical investigation by subconsultant.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 8

Page | 384AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

 Project requirements will be described in an Engineering Report, which is to include design
parameters, including subgrade modification and surface/subsurface drainage, pavement section and
other design recommendations, and a preliminary opinion of construction costs, fees and expenses.
Force account work (establishment of public power utility service) is not included in the Project.  No
FAA reimbursable agreements are included.

CONSTRUCTION PHASE
(Not Applicable)

PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES
Special Services furnished by the Consultant shall include:

 The Consultant will complete the “Checklist to Support an Environmental Finding of Categorical
Exclusion (Catex)” - Long Form, including support documentation, for the review and approval of The
Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.  This will include review of State Threatened
and Endangered species, and submittal of an Environmental Survey Request (ESR).

II. CONSULTANT COMPENSATION

The Sponsor agrees to pay the Consultant as compensation for rendering the professional services
hereinabove described and submitted using the standard Department invoice forms (ATTACHMENTS G & H).
Burden and overhead rates entered into this Agreement shall be in effect for the length of the agreement and
will not be adjusted, except as may be determined under an audit of costs by the Auditor General or the
Department.  The rates used in this Agreement shall be the latest audited or provisional approved rates by
IDOT as of the date of execution of this Agreement (approval letter must be attached).  Should the rate change
in the time between the final approval notification of fees and the execution of this Agreement, hours will be
adjusted accordingly so that there is no increase in the final approved not-to-exceed amount.

Any professional services effort performed beyond the not-to-exceed limits expressed below, and for which a
future amendment will be sought, will be performed under all Agreement provisions as the original contracted
work.  The dollar value of such effort is not considered approved for payment until review and approval by the
Department.

A. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN (NOT APPLICABLE)
For services outlined in Section I.A., Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design, and further detailed
in Section I. H., Detailed Scope of Services,

1. a lump sum payment of (Not Applicable) (representing approximately 35% of the total estimated
professional services compensation for design phase services as determined from the TIP request).
The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when the preliminary assessment and schematic design phase
deliverables (outlined in Section I.A.) are approved and accepted by the Department.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 9

Page | 385AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

B. DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
For services outlined in Section I. B., Design Phase Services, and further detailed in Section I. H., Detailed
Scope of Services,

1. a cost plus a fixed payment of $11,940.00, total amount not to exceed $146,475.00, unless a major
change or addition to the scope of services is required by the Department or extensions of time are
necessary for completion of the project.  All justification for amendments shall be documented with
effort recorded separate from the hours approved under this Agreement.  All amendment requests
must be supported by justification per Section III. M., Amendments to the Agreement.  The payment
of this fee shall be made in monthly installments submitted by the Consultant and approved by the
Department.  The final charges shall be submitted after the Design Phase Services have been
performed, approved and all deliverables accepted by the Department in accordance with the
guidance outlined in Section I.F.  This period of time expires 30 days after award of the construction
contract.  Any submittal after this time shall not be considered eligible for payment / reimbursement
by the Department unless extended by the Department.

2. a lump sum payment of (Not Applicable), unless a major change or addition to the scope of work is
required by the Department or extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project.  All
justification for amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours
approved under this Agreement.  All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section III. M., Amendments to the Agreement.

The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when the design phase deliverables (outlined in Section I. F.) are
approved and accepted by the Department.

C. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES (NOT APPLICABLE)
For services outlined in Section I. C., Construction Phase Services, and further detailed in Section I. H.,
Detailed Scope of Services,

1. a cost plus a fixed payment of (Not Applicable), total amount not to exceed (Not Applicable), unless
a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or extensions of time
are necessary for completion of the project.  All justification for amendments shall be documented
with effort recorded separate from the hours approved under this Agreement.  All amendment
requests must be supported by justification per Section III. M., Amendments to the Agreement.

The payment of this fee shall be made in monthly installments submitted to and approved by the
Sponsor (and/or Department if applicable).  The final charges shall be as soon as possible after
official notification from the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work.  A time line will
be submitted at each billing cycle after 50% which will indicate a projection of the completed
engineering fee vs. the contractor's progress.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 10

Page | 386AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

If more than one contract exists for the project, the monthly invoices submitted by the Consultant shall
detail the amounts of work accomplished under each separate contract.  The invoices shall also indicate
the dates that the services were performed.  If these services are furnished by the Consultant by obtaining
such services outside the Consultant's organization, the Consultant shall be reimbursed at his actual cost
for obtaining these services.  However, the total payment to the Consultant shall be within the "not to
exceed" amount as previously stated unless an amendment to this agreement is approved by the Sponsor
(and/or Department if applicable).

D. PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES
For services outlined in Section I. D., Planning and Special Services, and further detailed in Section I. H.,
Detailed Scope of Services,

1. a cost plus a fixed payment of $662.00, total amount not to exceed $5,225.00, unless a major
change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or extensions of time are
necessary for completion of the project.  All justification for amendments shall be documented with
effort recorded separate from the hours approved under this Agreement.  All amendment requests
must be supported by justification per Section III. M., Amendments to the Agreement.  The payment
of this fee shall be made in monthly installments submitted to and approved by the Sponsor.  The final
charges for the Special Services Phase shall be submitted within forty-five (45) days after official
notification from the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work or within 45 days after
official notification from the Department of acceptance of other non-construction projects unless
extended by the Department.

2. a lump sum payment of (Not Applicable), unless a major change or addition to the scope of work is
required by the Department or extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project.  All
justification for amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours
approved under this Agreement.  All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section III. M., Amendments to the Agreement.  The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when the
deliverables are approved and accepted by the Department.

III. SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The Consultant shall render the services in accordance with generally accepted Professional Standards.

A. TERMINATION
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18.36(i)(2); FAA Order 5100.38)

The Sponsor, by written seven (7) day notice, may terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time,
because of the failure of the other party to fulfill his agreement obligations.  Upon receipt of such notice,
the Consultant shall:  (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs
otherwise), and (2) deliver to the Sponsor all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries
and such other information and materials as may have been accumulated by the Consultant in performing
this agreement whether completed or in process.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 11

Page | 387AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

1. If the termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill his agreement obligations, the
Sponsor may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement or otherwise.
In such case, the Consultant shall be liable to the Sponsor for any additional cost occasioned to the
Sponsor thereby.

2. If, after notice of termination for failure to fulfill agreement obligations, it is determined that the
Consultant had not so failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the
convenience of the Sponsor.

3. It is hereby understood and agreed that should the agreement be terminated, the Consultant shall
be entitled to and shall receive a fee based on the amount of work accomplished and approved by
the Department up to the day of notification of termination.  The fee shall be equal to the sum of the
actual number of man-hours of each category of work applied at a negotiated hourly rate, plus any
outside services approved by the participating agencies and accomplished prior to the notification.
If terminated under Section III. HH., Breach of Contract Terms, the Consultant will not be entitled to
profit on the work accomplished.

B. CHANGE IN CONSTRUCTION PLANS
It is hereby understood and agreed that if the construction plans are completed in accordance with criteria
and/or decisions made by the Sponsor (and/or the Department if applicable), and approved by the
Department, and said construction plans are substantially changed or revised, for any reason other than
the fault of the Consultant in preparing same, then the Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
rendering the services necessary to complete the changes.  The amount of this fee shall be negotiated
between the Sponsor, Consultant and the Department, and approved by the Department, and an
amendment to the agreement should be accomplished prior to authorizing the Consultant to proceed with
the changes.  The fee shall be due and payable when the revisions are approved by the Sponsor and the
Department.

It is the Consultants responsibility to notify the Department as soon as possible when changes/revisions
are identified that are beyond the scope of services contemplated under this Agreement.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 12

Page | 388AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

C. HOLD HARMLESS
The Consultant shall be responsible to pay for all labor, material and equipment costs incurred and for any
and all damages to property or persons to the proportionate extent arising out of the negligent
performance of services under this agreement and shall indemnify and save harmless the Sponsor,
(and/or the Department if applicable), their officers, agents and employees from all third party suits,
claims, actions or damages of any nature whatsoever to the proportionate extent resulting there from.
These indemnities shall not be limited by the listing of any insurance coverage.  If any errors, negligent
acts and/or omissions are made by the Consultant in any phase of the work under this agreement, the
correction of which may require additional field or office work, the Consultant will be promptly notified and
will be required to perform such additional services as may be necessary to correct these errors, negligent
acts and/or omissions without undue delay and without additional cost to the Sponsor (and/or the
Department if applicable).  The Consultant shall be responsible for any damages incurred as a result of
his errors, negligent acts and/or omissions and for any losses or cost to repair or remedy construction as
a result of his errors, omission and/or negligent acts, to the extent such error, omission or negligent act
breeches the Professional Standard of care. The Consultant shall not be responsible for any consequential
damages of the Sponsor or the Department. Neither the Consultant, Sponsor, nor Department shall be
obligated for the other parties' negligence or for the negligence of others.

D. DRAWING OWNERSHIP
It is further mutually agreed by the parties hereto that reproducible copies of the drawings, computer
disks, tracings, construction plans, specifications and maps prepared or obtained under the terms of the
contract shall be delivered to and become the property of the Sponsor and basic survey notes and
sketches, charts, computations and other data shall be made available upon request of the Sponsor.  If
any information is used by the Sponsor or another Consultant such use or reuse by the Sponsor or others
shall be at the sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to the Consultant.

E. CONTRACT FOR OUTSIDE SERVICES
If any of the services outlined in Section I. are furnished by the Consultant by obtaining such services
outside the Consultant's organization, the Consultant shall provide an executed contract between the
person(s) or firm and the Consultant outlining the services to be performed and the charges for the same.
Two (2) copies of the executed contract shall be submitted to the participating agencies for approval prior
to the services being performed; all covenants and Special Conditions shall be included and binding on
all subcontracts.

F. FORMERLY NOTICE TO PROCEED (See Section I. G.)

G. SUBLET AGREEMENT
Each party binds himself, his partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns, to the other part
of this agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns for such other
party at all covenants of this Agreement.

Except as above, neither the Sponsor nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet or transfer his interest in this
agreement without the written consent of the other party hereto.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 13

Page | 389AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

H. AGREEMENT EXPIRES
This agreement expires upon final approval and acceptance of the completed project(s) by the Sponsor
(and/or Department as applicable), and after all final engineering charges have been paid to the Consultant
as of the date of project close-out or after five years from the date of execution, whichever comes first.
Payment liability by the State is as outlined above (see Section I.G., Notice to Proceed and Section II.,
Consultant Compensation).

I. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 21; FAA AC 150/5100-15A or latest revision)

The Consultant agrees to conduct the services in compliance with all the requirements imposed by or
pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Part 21 of the Regulations of the Secretary of
Transportation, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended.

During the performance of this contract, the Consultant, for itself, its assigns and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant") agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Regulations.  The Consultant shall comply with the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter,
"DOT") Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time,
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a
part of this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination.  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall
not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of
subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The Consultant shall
not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the
Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix
B of the Regulations.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including, Procurements of Materials and Equipment.  In all solicitations
either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be performed under
a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential
subconsultant or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant's obligations under this
contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin.

4. Information and Reports.  The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required by the
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations,
orders, and instructions.  Where any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession
of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall so certify to the sponsor
or the FAA, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 14

Page | 390AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance.  In the event the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination
provisions of this contract, the sponsor shall impose such contract sanctions as may determine to be
appropriate, including, but not limited to --

a. withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant complies,
and/or

b. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions.  The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 5 (above)
in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto.  The Consultant shall take such action with respect to
any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions
including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, however, that in the event an Consultant becomes
involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction,
the Consultant may request the sponsor and/or Department to enter into such litigation to protect the
interests of the sponsor and, in addition, the Consultant.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) ASSURANCES

1. Policy.  It is the policy of the Department of Transportation (DOT) that disadvantaged business
enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 23 shall have the maximum opportunity to participate in the
performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds under this agreement.
Consequently, the DBE requirements of 49 CFR Part 23 applies to this agreement.

2. DBE Obligation.  The Consultant agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises as defined
in 49 CFR Part 23 have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and
subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this agreement.  In this
regard, all Consultants shall take all necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part
23 to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for
and perform contracts.  Consultants shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin,
or sex in the award and performance of DOT-assisted contracts.

J. OPEN ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18.36(I); FAA Order 5100.38)
(Public Act 90-0572 Section 20-65; Public Act 87-991)

The Consultant shall maintain, for a minimum of 5 years after the completion of the contract, adequate
books, records, and supporting documents to verify the amounts, recipients, and uses of all disbursements
of funds passing in conjunction with the contract; the contract and all books, records, and supporting
documents related to the contract shall be available for review and audit by the Auditor General; and the
Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with any audit conducted by the Auditor General and to provide full
access to all relevant materials.  Failure to maintain the books, records, and supporting documents
required by this Section shall establish a presumption in favor of the State for the recovery of any funds
paid by the State under the contract for which adequate books, records, and supporting documentation
are not available to support their purported disbursement.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 15

Page | 391AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

K. CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT
(Public Act 90-0572, Section 50-13)

It is unlawful for any person holding an elective office in this State, holding a seat in the General Assembly,
or appointed to or employed in any of the offices of State government, or who is an officer or employee
of the Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority, or who is the wife, husband or minor
child of any such person, to have or acquire any contract, or any direct pecuniary interest in any contract
therein, whether for stationery, printing, paper or for any services, materials or supplies, which will be
wholly or partially satisfied by the payment of funds appropriated by the General Assembly of the State of
Illinois or in any contract of the Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority.  Payments
made for a public aid recipient are not payments pursuant to a contract with the State within the meaning
of this Section.

It is unlawful for any firm, partnership, association or corporation in which any such person is entitled to
receive more than 7 ½% of the total distributable income to have or acquire any such contract or direct
pecuniary interest therein.

It is unlawful for any firm, partnership, association or corporation in which any such person together with
his spouse or minor children is entitled to receive more than 15%, in the aggregate, of the total
distributable income to have or acquire any such contract or direct pecuniary interest therein.

Nothing in this Section invalidates the provisions of any bond or other security hereto or hereafter offered
for sale or sold by or for the State of Illinois.

This Section does not affect the validity of any contract made between the State and an officer or
employee of the State or member of the General Assembly, his spouse, minor child or any combination
of such persons, if that contract was in existence before his election or employment as such officer,
member, or employee.  Such a contract is void, however, if it cannot be completed within 6 months after
such officer, member, or employee takes office, or is employed.

This Section does not apply to (1) a contract for personal services as a teacher or school administrator
between a member of the General Assembly or his spouse, or a State officer or employee or his or her
spouse, and any school district, public community, college district, the University of Illinois, Southern
Illinois University or any institution under the control of the Board of Governors of State Colleges and
Universities or under the control of the Board of Regents or (2) a contract for personal service of a wholly
ministerial character including but not limited to services as a laborer, clerk, typist, stenographer, page,
bookkeeper, receptionist or telephone switchboard operator, made by a spouse or minor child of an
elective or appointive State officer or employee or of a member of the General Assembly or (3) payments
made to a member of the General Assembly, a State officer or employee, his or her spouse or minor child
acting as a foster parent, homemaker, advocate, or volunteer for or in behalf of a child or family served
by the Department of Children and Family Services.

Any person convicted of a violation of this Section shall be guilty of a business offense and shall be fined
not less than $1,000 nor more than $5,000.

The appropriate Certification of Capacity to Contract will be executed in Section III. X., of this agreement.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 16

Page | 392AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

L. THE CONSULTANT SELECTION
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18; FAA AC 5100-14D or latest revision)
(30 ILCS 535; IDOT-Aeronautics Administrative Bulletin: 2010-02)

The Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, an Illinois home-rule municipality, hereby certifies that it has completed
the prescribed qualifications based consultant selection procedures.  The firm of Primera Engineers, Ltd.,
of Chicago, Illinois, has been selected to provide the engineering services required for the project on the
fourteenth day of July, 2022.

M. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT
All effort recorded to document a claim for additional compensation must be delineated separately from
the original scope of services with personnel, classifications, dates worked, rates, hours and services
thoroughly detailed and clearly identified.

The Department shall be notified of potential amendment requests at the earliest possible opportunity
once it has been determined that any of the following three circumstances may exist. Any amendments
to the Agreement which increases the fee or the time of performance must contain one of the following
written determinations (with support documentation) depending upon the circumstances of the change.

1. The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not
reasonably foreseeable at the time the contract was signed.

2. The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not within
the contemplation of the contract as signed.

3. The undersigned determine that this change is in the best interest of the State and is authorized by
law.

Date:

Example

Sign Name:

Print Name:

Title:

Any professional services effort performed beyond the not-to-exceed limits expressed in Section II.
Consultant Compensation, and for which a future amendment will be sought, will be performed under all
Agreement provisions as the original contracted work. The dollar value of such effort is not considered
approved for payment until review and approval by the Department.

N. CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT
(Public Act 90-0572 Section 50-5)

I hereby certify that I am the President and duly authorized representative of the firm Primera Engineers,
Ltd., whose address is 550 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60661, and that neither I nor the
above firm I here represent has:

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 17

Page | 393AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

1. employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or other consideration,
any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the above Consultant)
to solicit or secure this Agreement,

2. agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or retain the services
of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Agreement, or

3. paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than a bona fide employee working
solely for me or the above Consultant) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind
for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the contract; except as here expressly stated (if
any):

The firm certifies by execution:

1. it has not been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the State of
Illinois, nor has the firm made an admission of guilt of such conduct which is a matter of record, nor
has an official, agent, or employee of the firm committed bribery or attempted bribery on behalf of the
firm and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official of the firm, nor has the firm
been barred from being awarded a contract or subcontract.

2. it has not been barred from contracting with a unit of state or local government as a result of a
violation of the Criminal Code of 1961.

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the Federal Aviation Administration of the United
States' Department of Transportation in connection with this contract involving participation of Airport
Improvement Program (AIP) funds and is subject to applicable state and Federal laws, both criminal and
civil.

Date: day of , 202 Name/Title:
Erin M. Inman, P. E.
President/Secretary

O. FEDERAL TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
The following statement is made under penalty of perjury:

"The Firm's correct Federal Taxpayer Identification Number is 36-3520747.  This firm is doing business
as a (please check one):

Individual Partnership X Corporation”

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 18

Page | 394AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

P. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PARTICIPATION
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 26)

Contract Assurance (§26.13) - The Consultant or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The Consultant shall carry out applicable
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the
Consultant to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the
termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate.

In keeping with the DBE plan adopted by the Sponsor, the Consultant shall take all necessary and
reasonable steps to attain DBE participation in this contract.

The work for each subconsultant should be listed separately.  If the subconsultant is being utilized to meet
the project DBE goal, they must be prequalified in that category and certified as a DBE in that category.
Please indicate that they are certified in that category.  The certification list is available on the
Department's website on the "Doing Business" menu under Small Business Enterprises and IL UCP
directory https://webapps.dot.illinois.gov/UCP/ExternalSearch.  The percent of work is computed based
on the individual subconsultant's work effort in each category.

Participation Category Percent of Work DBE Certification

N/A 0.00% N/A

NOTE: All final payments requests shall contain completed ATTACHMENT O - DBE Final Documentation
or the complete information on the Consultant's format.

Q. DISCRIMINATION
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 21; FAA AC 150/5100-15A or latest revision)
(Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965; 41 CFR Part 60)

The Consultant agrees not to commit unlawful discrimination in employment in Illinois and further agrees
to take affirmative action to ensure that no unlawful discrimination is committed.

R. DUES/FEES TO CLUBS WHICH DISCRIMINATE
(775 ILCS 25/2 Source: P.A. 85 909)

The Consultant of the business entity certifies that it is not prohibited from selling goods or services to the
State of Illinois because it pays dues or fees on behalf of its employees or agent or subsidizes or otherwise
reimburses them for payment of their dues or fees to any club which unlawfully discriminates.

Firm Name: None
Subcontract Amount: $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 19

Page | 395AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

S. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
(Public Act 90-0572 Section 50-13)

The Consultant agrees to comply with the provision of the Illinois Public Act prohibiting conflict of interest
and all the terms, conditions and provisions of those Sections apply to this contract and are made a part
of this contract the same as though they were incorporated and included herein.

T. FELONY CONVICTION
(Public Act 90-5072 Section 50-10)

The Consultant certifies that if he/she or the business entity has been convicted of a felony, at least five
years has passed since the completion of the sentence as of the contract date.

U. ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS NUMBER
The Consultant must have an Illinois Department of Human Rights prequalification number, or have an
application on file with the Illinois Department of Human Rights office at the State of Illinois Center, Suite
10-100, 100 West Randolph, Chicago, Illinois 60601 (refer to Department of Human Rights form).

V. EDUCATIONAL LOAN DEFAULT
(5 ILCS 385).

The Consultant certifies that, if this agreement is with an individual or individuals, that he/she is not in
default on an educational loan.

W. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE
(30 ILCS 580).

If the Consultant has 25 or more employees, the following certification shall apply and, by signing this
document, the Consultant certifies as follows:

The Consultant certifies that he will provide a drug free workplace in compliance with the Drug Free
Workplace Act ("Act").  Specifically, Consultant certifies he will do the following:

(a) Publish a statement:
(1) Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use

of a controlled substance, including cannabis, is prohibited in the Consultants workplace.

#IDHR PC-1/IL 442-0010 IDHR # 115012-00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 20

Page | 396AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

(2) Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
(3) Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on this agreement, the employee will:

(A) abide by the terms of the statement; and
(B) notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the

workplace no later than 5 days after such conviction.
(b) Establish a drug free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Consultant policy of maintaining a drug free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations.

(c) Give a copy of the statement described above to each employee engaged in the performance of the
contract and post the statement in a prominent place in the workplace.

(d) Notify the State within 10 days after receiving notice under part (a)(3)(B) above from an employee or
otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

(e) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program by, any employee who is so convicted, as required by §5 of the Act.

(f) Assist employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling, treatment, and
rehabilitation is required and indicate that a trained referral team is in place.

(g) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through implementation of §3
of the Act.

If an individual, the Consultant further certifies that he will not engage in the unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in the performance of the
agreement.

X. CAPACITY TO CONTRACT
(Public Act 90-0572)

The Consultant certifies that the Corporation's certificate of Authority to do business in Illinois, is in good
standing with the Secretary of State's Office.

CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 90-0572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract with the
State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any contract with the State
of Illinois, whether for materials, services, supplies, printing or stationery.  This prohibition does not extend
to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature as provided for in the Act.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 21

Page | 397AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

The undersigned, being a duly authorized officer and the duly elected President/Secretary and Vice
President/Chief Financial Officer of Primera Engineers, Ltd., a corporation, hereby certify that they have
read Public Act 90-0572 Section 50-13 and that they have checked the records of the corporation and
that no person who is entitled to receive individually more than 7 ½% of the total distributable income of
the corporation, or together with their spouse or minor child more than 15% of the total distributable
income of the corporation, is (I) an elected State official, a member of the General Assembly, an appointed
State officer, a State employee; (ii) an officer or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway Authority or of the
Illinois Building Authority; or (iii) a spouse or a minor child of any such enumerated person.

Date: day of , 202 Primera Engineers, Ltd.
Corporation

By:
Erin M. Inman, P.E.
President/Secretary

By:
Melissa Clark
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer

Y. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A)

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements.

The Consultant certifies compliance with Section 319 of Public Law 101-102 and to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an Officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 22

Page | 398AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US Code.  Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Z. INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT
(Applicable to contracts in excess of $10,000):

The Consultant certifies that neither it nor any substantially-owned affiliated company is participating or
shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration
Act of 1979 or the regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act.  The
Consultant makes the certification set forth in Section 5 of the International Anti-Boycott Certification Act.

AA. NON-APPROPRIATION CLAUSE
Obligations of the State will cease immediately without penalty or further payment being required in any
fiscal year the Illinois General Assembly fails to appropriate or otherwise make available sufficient funds
for payment of this Agreement.

BB. DEBT CERTIFICATION
The Consultant certifies that it, or any affiliate, is not barred from being awarded a contract under 30 ILCS
500/50-11 and 50-12.  The Consultant further acknowledges that the contracting State agency may
declare the contract void if the preceding certification is false or if the contractor, or any affiliate, is
determined to be delinquent in the payment of any debt to the State during the term of the contract.

CC. GOODS FROM CHILD LABOR ACT
The Consultant certifies in accordance with Public Act 94-0264 tha1 no foreign made equipment,
materials, or supplies furnished to the State under the contract have been produced in whole or in part
by the labor of any child under the age of 12.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 23

Page | 399AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

DD. QUALIFICATION BASED SELECTION ACT
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18.36; FAA Order 5100.38; FAA AC 150/5100-14 (latest))

The parties hereby certify that there was compliance with the provisions of the State of Illinois'
Architectural, Engineering and Land Surveying Qualifications Based Selection Act, Chapter 30 ILCS 535
in the procurement of the services covered by this Agreement.

EE. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 29; FAA Order 5100.38)

The Consultant certifies, by submission of this proposal or acceptance of this contract, that neither it nor
its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.  It further agrees by
submitting this Agreement that it will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions,
solicitations, proposals, contracts, and subcontracts.  Where the Consultant or any lower tier participant
is unable to certify to this statement, it shall attach an explanation to this solicitation/proposal.

FF. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18.36(i)(8); FAA Order 5100.38)

All rights to inventions and materials generated under this contract are subject to regulations issued by
the FAA and the Sponsor of the Federal grant under which this contract is executed.

GG. TRADE RESTRICTION CLAUSE
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 30.13; FAA Order 5100.38)

The Consultant or subconsultant, by submission of an offer and/or execution of a contract, certifies that
it:

1. is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of countries
that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the Office of the United States Trade Representative
(USTR);

2. has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person that is a
citizen or national of a foreign country on said list, or is owned or controlled directly or indirectly by one
or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on said list;

3. has not procured any product nor subcontracted for the supply of any product for use on the project
that is produced in a foreign country on said list.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49
CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to a Consultant or subconsultant who is unable to certify to the
above.  If the Consultant knowingly procures or subcontracts for the supply of any product or service of
a foreign country on said list for use on the project, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through
the Sponsor cancellation of the contract at no cost to the Government.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 24

Page | 400AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Further, the Consultant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate
this provision for certification without modification in each contract and in all lower tier subcontracts.  The
Consultant may rely on the certification of a prospective subconsultant unless it has knowledge that the
certification is erroneous.

The Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the sponsor if the Consultant learns that its
certification or that of a subconsultant was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason
of changed circumstances.  The subconsultant agrees to provide written notice to the contractor if at any
time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making the
award.  If it is later determined that the Consultant or subconsultant knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the Sponsor cancellation of the
contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Government.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision.  The knowledge and information
of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
ordinary course of business dealings.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America
and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to
prosecution under Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.

HH. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
(Reference: 49 CFR Part 18.36)

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Consultant or their subconsultants may
result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that  may be necessary to
enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.  The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract
Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation
of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.

II. BAN ON TEXTING WHILE DRIVING
(Reference: Executive Order 13513)

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,
October 1, 2009, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, December 30, 2009, the
Consultant or subconsultant is encouraged to:

1. Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers
including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing any work for, or on behalf of,
the Federal government, including work relating to a grant or sub-grant.

2. Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the size of the business, such
as:

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 25

Page | 401AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

a. Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text
messaging while driving; and

b. Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with
texting while driving.

The Consultant or subconsultant must insert the substance of this clause on banning texting when driving
in all contracts and subcontracts.

Policies and procedures for procurement of professional services are established in Federal Regulation Title 49
CFR Part 18, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements. The Airport and Airway
Improvement Act (AAIA) of 1982, as amended, serves as the enabling legislation.  The parties agree that these
policies and procedures have been followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their hand and seals at Tinley Park, Illinois, effective the
 day of , 202 .

ATTEST:

(SEAL) VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS
FEIN
(Federal Employee's Identification Number)

By: By:
Nancy M. O’Connor Michael W. Glotz
Village Clerk Mayor

ATTEST:

(SEAL) PRIMERA ENGINEERS, LTD.
FEIN  36-3520747
(Federal Employee’s Identification Number)

By: By:
Melissa Clark Erin M. Inman, P.E.
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer President/Secretary

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 26

Page | 402AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A / A1 - PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES NOT APPLICABLE
ESTIMATE OF COSTS / SALARY EXPENSES NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT B / B1 - DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS / SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT C / C-1 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS / SALARY EXPENSES / LABOR BREAKDOWN

ATTACHMENT D / D1 - PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS / SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT E - ENGINEERING REPORT (General Guidance)

ATTACHMENT F - RESIDENT ENGINEER'S DIARY (Standard Format) NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT G - COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE (Standard Format)

ATTACHMENT H - LUMP SUM INVOICE (Standard Format) NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT I - EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN (Standard Format)

ATTACHMENT J - TESTING SCHEDULE (Included in Subconsultant Agreement)

ATTACHMENT K - TESTING RATES & COST SUMMARY (Included in Subconsultant Agreement)

ATTACHMENT L - SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FRINGE COSTS (See Attachment S)

ATTACHMENT M - SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS (See Attachment S)

ATTACHMENT N - PROJECT CERTIFICATION

ATTACHMENT O - DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

ATTACHMENT P - PROJECT SKETCH

ATTACHMENT Q - PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT R - OP&P PROGRAM LETTER

ATTACHMENT S - CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN / FRINGE EXPENSE AND GENERAL /
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATE LETTER

ATTACHMENT T - OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

ATTACHMENT U - RETAINER AGREEMENT

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 27

Page | 403AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT A
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Costs

Category Amount

1. Direct Salary Costs $0.00

2. Overhead Labor/General/Administrative 1 (CY 2021) 126.50% 0.00

3. Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Materials and Supplies 0.00

Printing 0.00

Transportation Costs 2 - from Below 0.00

Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) - from Below 0.00

4. Fixed Payment 5 0.00

5. Outside Services (including Lodging and Per Diem) - from Below 0.00

Total Amount Not-to-Exceed (Lump Sum) $0.00

Estimated cost of total professional design phase services from TIP: $134,813.00 (by Others)

3. Transportation Costs 2 Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

Vehicle (Owned or Leased) Day $65.00 0.0 $0.00

Vehicle (Rented) Day 55.00 0.0 0.00

Vehicle (Mileage Rate) Mile 0.625 0.0 0.00

Total $0.00

3. Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

CADD Usage Charges 4 None 0.00 0.0 $0.00

Shipping, Postage 0.00

Total $0.00

5. Outside Services Unit Unit Cost No. Units Cost

Per diem Meals 2, 3 Day $28.00 0.0 $0.00

Lodging 2, 3 Day 134.00 0.0 0.00

Subconsultant 0.00

Total $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 28

Page | 404AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT A-1
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT & SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Salary Expenses

Classification Time Required (Hours) Hourly Wage Salary Expense

Principal 0.0 $78.00 $0.00

Senior Project Manager 0.0 73.48 0.00

Project Engineer (Engineer 5) 0.0 67.16 0.00

Engineer (Engineer 3) 0.0 48.30 0.00

Engineer (Engineer 2) 0.0 38.61 0.00

Junior Engineer (Engineer 1) 0.0 33.59 0.00

Senior Designer (Designer 4) 0.0 50.25 0.00

Designer (Designer 3) 0.0 39.52 0.00

Junior Designer (Designer 1) 0.0 28.56 0.00

Senior Technician (Field Technician 4) 0.0 47.75 0.00

Technician (Field Technician 2) 0.0 31.50 0.00

Junior Technician (Field Technician 1) 0.0 26.63 0.00

Administration (Project Assistant) 0.0 34.04 0.00

Total 0.0 $0.00 $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 29

Page | 405AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT B
DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Costs

Category Amount

1. Direct Salary Costs $36,100.16

2. Overhead Labor/General/Administrative 1 (CY 2021) 126.50% 45,666.70

3. Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Materials and Supplies 0.00

Printing 125.00

Transportation Costs 2 - from Below 375.00

Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) - from Below 75.00

4. Fixed Payment 5 11,940.00

5. Outside Services (including Lodging and Per Diem) - from Below 52,193.00

Total Amount Not-to-Exceed (Cost Plus Fixed Payment) $146,475.00

Preliminary Design Construction Estimate: $2,068,897.00

3. Transportation Costs 2 Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

Vehicle (Owned or Leased) Day $65.00 0.0 $0.00

Vehicle (Rented) Day 55.00 0.0 0.00

Vehicle (Mileage Rate) Mile 0.625 600.0 375.00

Total $375.00

3. Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

CADD Usage Charges 4 None 0.00 0.0 $0.00

Shipping, Postage 75.00

Total $75.00

5. Outside Services Unit Unit Cost No. Units Cost

Per diem Meals 2, 3 Day $28.00 0.0 $0.00

Lodging 2, 3 Day 134.00 0.0 0.00

Design Survey Subconsultant (CBBEL) 18,005.00

Geotechnical Investigation Subconsultant (Geocon) 10,095.00

Design Assistance Subconsultant (CBBEL) 24,093.00

Total $52,193.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 30

Page | 406AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT B-1
DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Salary Expenses

Classification Time Required (Hours) Hourly Wage Salary Expense

Principal 4.0 $78.00 $312.00

Senior Project Manager 72.0 73.48 5,290.56

Project Engineer (Engineer 5) 120.0 67.16 8,059.20

Engineer (Engineer 3) 240.0 48.30 11,592.00

Engineer (Engineer 2) 0.0 38.61 0.00

Junior Engineer (Engineer 1) 0.0 33.59 0.00

Senior Designer (Designer 4) 0.0 50.25 0.00

Designer (Designer 3) 240.0 39.52 9,484.80

Junior Designer (Designer 1) 0.0 28.56 0.00

Senior Technician (Field Technician 4) 0.0 47.75 0.00

Technician (Field Technician 2) 0.0 31.50 0.00

Junior Technician (Field Technician 1) 0.0 26.63 0.00

Administration (Project Assistant) 40.0 34.04 1,361.60

Total 716.0 $50.42 $36,100.16

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 31

Page | 407AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT C
CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Costs

Category Amount

1. Direct Salary Costs $0.00

2. Overhead Labor/General/Administrative 1 (CY 2021) 126.50% 0.00

3. Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Materials and Supplies 0.00

Printing (Record Drawings on CD) 0.00

Transportation Costs 2 - from Below 0.00

Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) - from Below 0.00

4. Fixed Payment 5 0.00

5. Outside Services (including Lodging and Per Diem) - from Below 0.00

Total Amount Not-to-Exceed (Cost Plus Fixed Payment) $0.00

Contract Calendar Days: N/A Estimated Days RE On-site: N/A

3. Transportation Costs 2 Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

Vehicle (Owned or Leased) Day $65.00 0.0 $0.00

Vehicle (Rented) Day 55.00 0.0 0.00

Vehicle (Mileage Rate) Mile 0.625 0.0 0.00

Total $0.00

3. Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

CADD Usage Charges 4 None 0.00 0.0 $0.00

Shipping, Postage 0.00

Total $0.00

5. Outside Services Unit Unit Cost No. Units Cost

Per diem 2, 3 Day $28.00 0.0 $0.00

Lodging 2, 3 Day 134.00 0.0 0.00

Subconsultants 0.00

Total $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 32

Page | 408AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT C-1
CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

Estimate of Salary Expenses

Classification Time Required (Hours) Hourly Wage Salary Expense

Principal 0.0 $78.00 $0.00

Senior Project Manager 0.0 73.48 0.00

Project Engineer (Engineer 4) 0.0 67.16 0.00

Resident Engineer (Engineer 3) 0.0 48.30 0.00

Engineer (Engineer 2) 0.0 38.61 0.00

Junior Engineer (Engineer 1) 0.0 33.59 0.00

Senior Designer (Designer 4) 0.0 50.25 0.00

Designer (Designer 3) 0.0 39.52 0.00

Junior Designer (Designer 1) 0.0 28.56 0.00

Senior Technician (Field Technician 4) 0.0 47.75 0.00

Technician (Field Technician 2) 0.0 31.50 0.00

Junior Technician (Field Technician 1) 0.0 26.63 0.00

Administration (Project Assistant) 0.0 34.04 0.00

Total 0.0 $0.00 $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 33

Page | 409AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT D
PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

Estimate of Costs

Category Amount

1. Direct Salary Costs $2,001.68

2. Overhead Labor/General/Administrative 1 (CY 2021) 126.50% 2,532.13

3. Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Materials and Supplies 0.00

Printing 0.00

Transportation Costs 2 - from Below 0.00

Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) - from Below 30.00

4. Fixed Payment 5 662.00

5. Outside Services (including Lodging and Per Diem) - from Below 0.00

Total Amount Not-to-Exceed (Cost Plus Fixed Payment) $5,225.00

3. Transportation Costs 2 Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

Vehicle (Owned or Leased)) Day $65.00 0.0 $0.00

Vehicle (Rented) Day 55.00 0.0 0.00

Vehicle (Mileage Rate) Mile 0.625 0.0 0.00

Total $0.00

3. Other Costs (excluding Outside Services) Unit Unit Cost No. Units Extended Cost

CADD Usage Charges 4 None 0.00 0.0 $0.00

Shipping, Postage 30.00

Total $30.00

5. Outside Services Unit Unit Cost No. Units Cost

Per diem 2, 3 Day $28.00 0.0 $0.00

Lodging  2, 3 Day 134.00 0.0 0.00

Subconsultant 0.00

Total $0.00

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 34

Page | 410AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT D-1
PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICESEstimate of Salary Expenses

Classification Time Required (Hours) Hourly Wage Salary Expense

Principal 0.0 $78.00 $0.00

Senior Project Manager 2.0 73.48 146.96

Project Engineer (Engineer 5) 8.0 67.16 537.28

Engineer (Engineer 3) 16.0 48.30 772.80

Engineer (Engineer 2) 0.0 38.61 0.00

Junior Engineer (Engineer 1) 0.0 33.59 0.00

Senior Designer (Designer 4) 0.0 50.25 0.00

Designer (Designer 3) 0.0 39.52 0.00

Junior Designer (Designer 1) 0.0 28.56 0.00

Senior Technician (Field Technician 4) 0.0 47.75 0.00

Technician (Field Technician 2) 0.0 31.50 0.00

Junior Technician (Field Technician 1) 0.0 26.63 0.00

Administration (Project Assistant) 16.0 34.04 544.64

Total 42.0 $47.66 $2,001.68

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 35

Page | 411AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

NOTES FOR ATTACHMENTS A THROUGH D

1. A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden / fringe and general / administrative expense
rates must be attached (ATTACHMENT S) for verification of rates.

2. Current approved rates established by State of Illinois - Governors Travel Control Board.

3. Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount.

4. CADD is incorporated into the approved overhead and burden rate.

5. Fixed Payment (Profit) = (14.5%) x [Direct Salary Costs + (OH&B) x (Direct Salary Costs) + Transportation +
Materials & Supplies + Printing + Other Costs (excluding outside services)].

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 36

Page | 412AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT E
ENGINEERING REPORT (General Guidance)

The Engineering Report is to be prepared by the Consultant and submitted to the Sponsor and/or Department, if possible,
prior to starting Plans and Specifications.  The Report shall include, at a minimum, a discussion of the following elements
which are applicable and any other elements deemed necessary by the Department:

1. Introduction, project overview and consistency with approved ALP, justification, scope, authorization, funding, required
environmental actions and schedule.

2. Investigations and evaluations, including pavement history, PCI information, topographic survey data, soil sampling
and testing, boring logs, CBR test results, subgrade stabilization considerations, and seasonal frost issues.

3. Pavement design considerations, including pavement types and/or alternates; any unusual design and reasons
therefore, selection of design CBR value, traffic distribution, and reported pavement strength.

4. Rehabilitation, strengthening and/or overlay work shall be detailed as to the type of work required, including existing
pavement conditions, material selection considerations, thickness design and economic analysis.

5. Construction features which vary from FAA criteria should be identified including the problem(s) facts, alternative
solutions, and/ or desired solution.  Is the desired solution the most economical?

6. Items such as materials sources, soils, drainage, water for construction, cost of land vs. development, contractor
resources, available finances, and stage development.  The report should say how these factors affected the decisions
made by the Consultant in the design.

7. Explanation of drainage design criteria including explanation of drainage districts data input and off-site drainage
impact on design. Include drainage calculations and modeling.

8. Special considerations for local circumstances such as available material, equipment, contractors, and airport
sponsored events.

9. Consultant's choice of options for the lighting design; similar explanation of choices made for the drainage, fencing,
turfing and marking, including decisions regarding cover crop seeding.

10. Approach conditions which will result from proposed work and comparison with FAA criteria.

11. Analysis of potential RSA determination (if applicable).

12. Development of PCN for runway strengthening and rehabilitation projects.

13. Description of non-AIP work and quantity separation from AIP eligible items.

14. Identify work to be done by others such as utility companies and airports sponsor forces.

15. The Consultant's preliminary estimate of construction costs, fees and expenses shall be included.

16. A discussion of project safety concerns (per guidance explained in FAA AC 150/5370-2E (or current) Operational
Safety on Airports during Construction) shall be included.

17. A discussion of project phasing / sequencing and estimate of construction calendar days shall be included.
IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 37

Page | 413AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT F

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 38

Page | 414AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

To: , Chief Engineer
Illinois Department of Transportation
Division of Aeronautics
Abraham Lincoln Capital Airport,
1 Langhorne Bond Drive
Springfield, IL. 62707-8415
Attn: , Section Chief

From (Firm):
Address:

Telephone No. (        )
INVOICE #                   .  Date                      .
        [      ] Partial                   [      ] Final

Airport Municipality , IL

IL. Proj. No. Federal Proj. No.

Notice to Proceed Date (OP&P program letter or Sponsor authorization):

Per A/E Agreement / Amendment dated:

Services (check only those services pertaining to invoice):
Preliminary Phase Services Planning and Special Services
Design Phase Services Other (                                     )
Construction Phase Services Amendment(s)

Service Dates:
For Services Rendered From (date): To (date):

(1) Direct Salaries to Date…………………………………………………………………… $
(2) Payroll Burden and Overhead ( %)………………………………………. $
(3) Other Direct Salaries………………………............................................................. $
(4) Profit - (Fixed Payment $ x % Complete).................. …… $
(5) SUBTOTAL.............................................................................................................. $

(6) Direct Costs of Services by Others........................................................................... $
(7) Direct Costs, Travel and In-plant.............................................................................. $
(8) TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED To Date:  (5) + (6) + (7)............................................... $
(9) Maximum Payable (per Engineering Agreement)...................$
(10) Less Total Amounts Previously Invoiced................................................................ $

(11) PAYMENT DUE THIS INVOICE.............................................................................. $

I certify that to the best of my know- By
ledge the percent of work shown as
complete on this Invoice is correct.

Printed Name and Title

Department Approval By

Date:
Printed Name and Title

NOTE:
This format is for general information; however the consultants format containing the essential data
may be acceptable.

ATTACHMENT G

COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE (Standard Format)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 39

Page | 415AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT H

LUMP SUM INVOICE (Standard Format)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 40

Page | 416AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Page          of          Pages

Airport
Il l. Proj. No.

Invoice No. AIP Proj. No.
                                  Date

ENGINEERING COSTS BREAKDOWN

Agrmt. Para.
Governing
Services

Service
Performed

Date
Performed

Employee’s
Name and

Classification
Hours Rate Amount

ENGINEERING FIRM:   Total

Name
Address

      Prepared By
      Date

NOTE:
This format is for general information; however the consultants format containing the essential data
may be acceptable.

ATTACHMENT I

EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN (Standard Format)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 41

Page | 417AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT J
TESTING SCHEDULE

(Included in Subconsultant Fee)

APPROXIMATE
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION APPROXIMATE
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

Particle - Size Analysis Marshall Method
ASTM D-42l ASTM D-1559
ASTM D-422 Gradation
ASTM D-2217 ASTM C-136
Moisture-Density Relations of
Soil

Extraction and Gradation

ASTM D-698 ASTM D-2172
ASTM D-1557 Bulk Specific Gravity
Shrinkage Factors of Soil ASTM D-2726
ASTM D-427 Maximum Theoretical
Permeability of Granular Specific Gravity
Soils ASTM D-2041
ASTM D-2434 Nuclear Density
Determination of Organic ASTM D-2922
Materials in Soils by Wet Washed Aggregate Sample
Combustion ASTM C-117
AASHTO T-194 Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit,
Bearing Ratio of Laboratory Plastic Index
-Compacted Soil ASTM D-4318
ASTM D-1883 Absorption and Specific
Modulus of Soil Reaction Gravity
AASHTO T-222 ASTM C-127
Soil Classification ASTM C-128
"Visual" Moisture Content
ASTM D-2488 ASTM C-566
Soil Borings P.C.C. Test Cylinders
ASTM D-2113 ASTM C-31
Hydrated Lime Slump P.C.C.
ASTM C-207 ASTM C-141
Abrasion Air Content
ASTM C-131 ASTM C-231
Soundness Flexural Strength
ASTM C-88 ASTM C-78
Penetration Yield, Cement Content
ASTM D-946 ASTM C-138
Viscosity Rubber in Tension
ASTM D-3381 ASTM D-412
Moisture Content (Micro) Striping Test
ASTM D-4643 ASTM D-1664

* The testing form shall be adjusted to the specific project.  The consultant shall not assume IDOT will provide any
testing and inspections.  Payment for these services shall be at the rates established in Attachment K.

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 42

Page | 418AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Included in Subconsultant Fee

ATTACHMENT K
TESTING RATES AND COST SUMMARY

(Included in Subconsultant Fee)

DESCRIPTION OF TEST
ESTIMATED

COST PER TEST
NUMBER

REQUIRED
TOTAL $

Extraction and Gradation, ASTM D-2172 (D-5444,D-
6307, D-6925

Bulk Specific Gravity, ASTM D-2726

Nuclear Density, ASTM D-2922

PCC Test Cylinders, ASTM C-31/C-39

Slump PCC, ASTM C-141

Air Content, ASTM C-231

Total Testing Subconsultant Tests

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 43

Page | 419AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT L
SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FIXED COSTS

See Attachment S

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 44

Page | 420AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT M
SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS

See Attachment S

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 45

Page | 421AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Airport: Letting Date:
IL Project No.:
Federal Project No.:
Contract No:

Project Description:

Pursuant to Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 152, as amended, and as a condition to receiving any
Federal and/or State financial assistance through a Grant Offer from the FAA and/or the State of Illinois -
Department of Transportation for the proposed airport development project, it is hereby represented, to
the best of our knowledge, information, and belief that:

1. The Consultant has been selected to provide the necessary professional services for the project
described herein and identified in the Professional Services Request For Qualifications (RFQ).
Selection Date (Required):    Copy of Retainer attached (ATTACHMENT U).

2. Project is clearly delineated on the currently approved Airport Layout Plan.
Approval Date (Required): .

3. Project is environmentally cleared.  [    ] CatEx     [    ] EA     [    ] EIS     [    ] FONSI
Approval Date (Required): .

4. All Corps/EPA permits and other regulatory agency reviews/approvals/mitigation have been
satisfied and there are no known encumbrances to the completion of the project.
[    ] Yes  [    ] No.

5. Plans were prepared in accordance with FAA approved standards and advisory circulars; and,
the specifications were prepared in accordance with the FAA approved Illinois Standard
Specifications For Construction Of Airports, along with the Division of Aeronautics’ most current
Policy Memorandums and “Handout” Specifications, except as noted by attached Modification of
Standards (MOS) which has been addressed and justified in the engineering report and
submitted to and approved by the FAA and Engineer of Design. [    ] Yes  [    ] No.
Approval Date of MOS (If applicable): .

6. The design conforms to the approved programmed project scope. [    ] Yes  [    ] No.
7. Provisions have been included for safety during construction (per guidance explained in FAA AC

150/5370-2F (or current) Operational Safety on Airports during Construction). [    ] Yes  [    ] No.
8. The plans, special provisions and quantities have been thoroughly checked in accordance with

best management practices by the Consultant for accuracy and consistency, and are in
conformance with AC 150/5300-13 (latest edition). All contract deliverables referenced in Section
I.F. DELIVERABLES have been submitted, received and determined acceptable.
[    ] Yes  [    ] No.

Date By:       P.E.
     Project Engineer (Consultant)

Date By:
                  Sponsor

Date By:       P.E.
Aeronautics Design Engineer

Date By:       P.E.
                                                                                                          Aeronautics Engineer of Design

ATTACHMENT N
PROJECT CERTIFICATION

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 46

Page | 422AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

Subconsultant Prime Consultant
Name Name
Address Address

Telephone Telephone

Subject Contract Amounts
Airport Consultant Contract Amount
Illinois Project No. DBE Contract Amount
Federal Project No DBE Goal (%)

This documentation verifies the services provided and the amount paid to the DBE Subconsultant on the above
captioned contract.  The undersigned certifies that the services reported herein was executed by the DBE, that
the DBE actually provided the services and that the services reported herein conforms to the services reported
in the approved Engineering Agreement together with any amendments approved by the Sponsor and/or
Division as applicable.

Description of Service Provided Contract Amount Amount Paid

Totals

Prime Consultant DBE Subconsultant

Print Name Print Name

Title  Title

Signature Signature

Date Date

ATTACHMENT O
DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 47

Page | 423AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT P
PROJECT SKETCH

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 48

Page | 424AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT Q
PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 49

Page | 425AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT R
OP&P PROGRAM LETTER

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 50

Page | 426AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT R (Continued)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 51

Page | 427AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT S
CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN / FRINGE EXPENSE AND GENERAL / ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSE RATE LETTER

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 52

Page | 428AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT S (Continued)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 53

Page | 429AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT T
OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 54

Page | 430AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT T (Continued)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 55

Page | 431AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



20220379.00
Primera

ATTACHMENT U
RETAINER AGREEMENT

(Attached)

IDOT-Division of Aeronautics, Standard A/E Agreement 2012-01, Effective 30 June 2012

\\Mac\Home\Desktop\WP Documents\TF8-5050 Design and Special Services Phases Agreement (Version 1.0) (21 November 2022).wpd Page 56

Page | 432AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 433AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 434AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 435AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 436AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 437AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 438AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 439AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 440AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 441AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 442AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 8, 2023

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Jimmy Quinn, Facilities Superintendent

Subject: Public Safety Building Boiler Replacements
Approve Job Order Contract (JOC) With Robe Construction Inc.

_________________________________________________________________________________
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meeting for consideration and possible 
action.

Description:  We are requesting authorization to replace the existing boilers at the Public Safety 
Building utilizing the Job Order Contracting (JOC) procurement method. Robe Construction Inc. is the 
awarded general contractor that will perform the work under an existing cooperative contract through 
the city of Naperville. This contract is for usage by other jurisdictions within Illinois pursuant 
Procurement #19013.

Background:  The existing boilers are over 10 years old and have experienced several failures. These 
will be replaced with new overall energy efficient boilers.

Budget/Finance:     Funding was budgeted and approved for $125,000 for FY2024 Capital Projects. 
Due to pricing changes for materials this project will be over the original budgeted amount.

Contractor:                                               Location Proposal
Robe Construction Inc. Naperville, IL $128,552.06
                         
                    

Budget Available                                                  $128,552.06     
   Contract Amount                            $125,000.00                       

Difference over Budget                       $    3,552.00    
                       Using Capital HVAC (30-00-000-75004) to cover balance

Staff Direction Request:
1. Approve the JOC with Robe Construction Inc. in the amount of $128,552.06.
2. Direct staff as necessary.

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 443AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2023-R-097

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION INC. FOR THE PUBLIC 

SAFETY BUILDING BOILER REPLACEMENTS

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DENNIS P. MAHONEY

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
KENNETH E. SHAW

COLLEEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 444AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-R-097

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION INC. FOR THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 

BOILER REPLACEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into a Contract with Robe Construction Inc., a true and correct copy of 

such Contract being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Contract be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as fpollows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "Contract” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said Contract to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

Contract.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park 

on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 15th day of August, 2023, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                   
 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
      Village Clerk

Page | 445AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1

JOB ORDER CONTRACT (JOC) WITH ROBE 
CONSTRUCTION INC

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING BOILER 
REPLACEMENTS

Page | 446AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, NANCY M. O’CONNOR, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-R-097, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A JOB ORDER CONTRACT 

(JOC) BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBE CONSTRUCTION INC. 

FOR THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING BOILER REPLACEMENTS,” which was adopted by 

the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on August 15, 2023.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 15th day of August, 2023.

____________________________________
   VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 447AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

SERVICE CONTRACT

This contract is by and between the Village of Tinley Park, an Illinois home-rule municipal 
corporation (the “Village”), and Robe Construction, Inc (the “Contractor”), for the project or work 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

1. In consideration of the compensation stated in paragraph 2, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by reference.  The express terms of this Contract shall take precedence 
and control over any term or provision of the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) that in any way 
conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter the terms of this Contract.

2. Except in the event of a duly authorized change order approved by the Village as provided 
in this Contract, and in consideration of the Contractor’s final completion of all work in 
conformity with this Contract, the Village shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed 
One Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand, Five Hundred Fifty Two and 06/100 
Dollars(128,552.06). Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion of the work, the 
Contractor shall submit his application for payment to the Village, and the Village shall pay 
Contractor for the work performed no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of 
the Village's receipt and the Village’s approval of the work and the application for payment.  
No payment shall be made by the Village until the Contractor has submitted to the Village 
(i) a Contractor’s Affidavit listing all subcontractors and material suppliers utilized on the 
project and (ii) final waivers of lien from the Contractor, all subcontractors and all material 
suppliers.

3. No changes shall be made, nor will invoices for changes, alterations, modifications, 
deviations, or extra work or services be recognized or paid except upon the prior written 
order from authorized personnel of the Village.  The Contractor shall not execute change 
orders on behalf of the Village or otherwise alter the financial scope of the Project.

4. Written change orders may be approved by the Village Manager or his designee provided 
that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 2 of this Contract 
to more than $10,000.00.  Changes in excess of this amount must be approved by the Village 
Board prior to commencement of the services or work. If a requested change causes an 
increase or decrease in the cost of or time required for the performance of the 
contract, Contractor will agree to an equitable adjustment in the contract price or 
performance schedule, or both.  Neither party is obligated to comply with requested 
changes unless and until both parties execute a written change order. 

5. Time is of the essence on this Contract.  The Contractor shall complete all work under this 
Contract by the dates set forth below:

6. No “Notice to Proceed” may be given nor any work commenced until this Contract is fully 
executed and all exhibits and other attachments are completely filled out and attached hereto.

7. It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Contractor is an independent contractor 
retained for the above-mentioned purpose.  The Village shall not control the manner nor 
the means of the Contractor's performance, but shall be entitled to a work product as 
described herein.  The term "subcontractor" shall mean and include only those hired by and 

Page | 448AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



having a direct contract with Contractor for performance of work on the Project.  The 
Village shall have no responsibility to any subcontractor employed by a Contractor for 
performance of work on the Project, and all subcontractors and material suppliers shall 
look exclusively to the Contractor for any payments due.  The Village will not be 
responsible for reporting or paying employment taxes or other similar levies that may be 
required by the United States Internal Revenue Service or other State or Federal agencies. 
Every subcontractor shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Contract as far as 
applicable to their work.  The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Village for the 
acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and shall ensure that any subcontractors perform 
in accordance with the requirements of this Contract.  Nothing contained herein shall create 
any contractual or employment relations between any subcontractor and the Village.  The 
Contractor is solely responsible for the safety procedures, programs and methods of its 
employees and agents and shall hold the Village harmless for any and all damages resulting 
from violations thereof.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, State and 
local safety laws and regulations.

8. It is further agreed that the Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the 
Village, its officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, 
damages, causes of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of 
litigation, court costs, and attorneys’ fees, for injury to or death of any person or for 
damage to any property arising out of or in connection with the Contractor’s negligence 
under this Contract.  

9. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder 
and hereby releases, relinquishes, and discharges the Village, its officers, agents, and 
employees from all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, 
including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to or death of any person and any 
loss of or damage to any property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out 
of, or in connection with the Contractor's  negligence in its work to be performed 
hereunder.  The Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage in an amount and from 
a carrier suitable to the Village, and the Village shall be named as an additional insured 
where required.  Certificates of Insurance are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

10. The Village is exempt from payment of state and local sales and use of taxes on labor and 
materials incorporated into the project.  If necessary, it is the Contractor's responsibility to 
obtain a sales tax permit, resale certificate, and exemption certificate that shall enable the 
Contractor to buy any materials to be incorporated into the project and then resale the 
aforementioned materials to the Village without paying the tax on the materials at the time 
of purchase.  In no event will the Village be liable for or pay any sales or use taxes incurred 
by the Contractor in performing the services under this contract.

11. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 
regulations, ordinances, and other laws, including but not limited to the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act (IRCA).  The Contractor may not knowingly obtain the labor or 
services of an unauthorized alien.  The Contractor, not the Village, must verify eligibility 
for employment as required by IRCA.

12. At any time, the Village may terminate this Contract for convenience, upon written notice to 
the Contractor.  The Contractor shall cease work immediately upon receipt of such notice.  
The Contractor shall be compensated for services performed and accepted by the Village up 
to the date of termination.

Page | 449AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



13. No waiver or deferral by either party of any term or condition of this Contract shall be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver or deferral of any other term or condition or subsequent 
wavier or deferral of the same term or condition.

14. This Contract may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by the 
parties.

15. This Contract and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval of Village.

16. The parties hereby state that they have read and understand the terms of this Contract and 
hereby agree to the conditions contained herein.

17. This Contract has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.  
The parties agree that performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Cook County, 
Illinois.

18. Contractor, its employees, associates or subcontractors shall perform all the work hereunder.  
Contractor agrees that all of its associates, employees, or subcontractors who work on this 
Project shall be fully qualified and competent to do the work described hereunder.  Contractor 
shall undertake the work and complete it in a timely manner.

19. If any provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 
the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.  If a court of competent 
jurisdiction finds that any provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by 
limiting such provision it may become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be 
deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

20. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Village and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  

21. This Contract will be effective when signed by the last party whose signing makes the 
Contract fully executed.

22. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, if the work to be 
performed under this Contract is covered by said Act.

23. The Contractor agrees to comply with the Illinois Substance Abuse Prevention on Public 
Works Projects Act.

Page | 450AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CERTIFICATIONS BY CONTRACTOR

Affidavit of Compliance

Contractor and all subcontractors shall complete this Affidavit of Compliance (“Affidavit”) and 
submit supporting documentation as required pursuant to Responsible Bidder Requirements on 
Public Work Projects.  Contractor must submit this Affidavit and all related evidence with its bid.  
Contractor shall be responsible for providing this Affidavit to all subcontractors who will perform 
work on the project.  All subcontractors’ Affidavits and supporting documentation must be 
submitted no later than the date and time of the contract award.  Failure to comply with all 
submission requirements may result in a determination that the Contractor is not a responsible 
bidder.

For the remainder of this Affidavit, “Contractor” refers to the general contractor and all 
subcontractors.   Each item must be answered.  If the question is not applicable, answer “NA.”  If 
the answer is none, answer “none.”

The certifications set forth in this Affidavit and all documents attached hereto shall become a part 
of any contract awarded to the Contractor.  Furthermore, Contractor shall comply with these 
certifications during the term and/or performance of the contract. 
 

The undersigned ___________________________, as ______________________ and on behalf 
       (Name) (Title)

of _Robe Construction, Inc._ having been duly sworn under oath certifies that:
(Contractor)

Business Organization

The form of business organization of the Contractor is (check one):

__ Sole Proprietor or Partnership __ LLC
__ Corporation __ Independent Contractor (Individual)

If contractor/subcontractor is a corporation, indicate the state and the date of incorporation:

________________________________________________________________________

Authorized to do business in the State of Illinois: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached: ___________________________________

Federal Employer I.D. #: _____________________ 

Social Security # (if an individual or sole proprietor): _____________________

Page | 451AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Registered with Illinois Department of Revenue: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Registered with Illinois Department of Employment Security: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Describe supporting documentation attached (if “No,” explain): _________________________

Tax liens or tax delinquencies

Disclosure of any federal, state or local tax liens or tax delinquencies against the contractor of any 
officers of the contractor in the last five (5) years Yes [ ]  No [ ]

“No” means “not applicable.”  If “yes,” describe lien/delinquencies and resolution: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

EOE Compliance

Contractor is in compliance with provisions of Section 2000e of Chapter 21, Title 42 of the United 
States Code and Federal Executive Order No. 11246 as amended by Executive Order No. 11375 
(known as the Equal Opportunity Employer provisions). Yes [ ] No [ ]

Employee Classification

Contractor’s employees who will perform work on the project are properly classified as an 
employee or independent contractor under all applicable state and federal laws and local 
ordinances (Form B). N/A [ ]Yes [ ]  No [ ]

Professional or Trade Licenses

Contractor will possess all applicable professional and trade licenses required for performing the 
Contract work: Yes [ ]  No [ ]

License Number
Date 
Issued

Current 
Expiration Holder of License

Page | 452AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



If any of the above license(s) have been revoked or suspended, state the date and reason for 
suspension/revocation:

Documentation Attached (Contractor must initial next to each item):

_____ Form A: Name and address of subcontractors from whom Contractor has accepted a 
bid or intends to hire to perform work on any part of the project.  
NOTE: All subcontractors shall complete and submit an Affidavit of Compliance no later than the 
date the subcontractor commences work on the project. 

_____ Form B: List of individuals who will perform work on the project on behalf of the 
Contractor, verifying that each individual is properly classified as an employee or independent 
contractor.  Contractor also verifies that all Contractor’s employees are covered under a current 
workers’ compensation policy, properly classified under the workers’ compensation policy, and 
covered by a health and welfare and retirement plan.

_____ Form C Additional Information (if required)

_____ Certificate of Good Standing 
(or other evidence of compliance with laws pre-requisite to doing business in the state)

_____ Illinois Department of Revenue registration

_____ Illinois Department of Employment Security registration

_____ Standards of Apprenticeship/Apprentice Agreements

_____ Substance Abuse Prevention program (or applicable provision from CBA in effect)

_____ Written Safety Policy Statement signed by company representative

_____ OSHA cards evidencing 10-hour or greater safety program completed, if requested

_____ Workers’ Compensation Coverage

_____ Professional or Trade Licenses

Page | 453AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Eligibility to Contract

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is not barred from bidding on or 
entering into this contractor as a result of a violation of either the bid-rigging or bid-rotating 
provisions of Article 33E of the Criminal Code of 1961, as amended.

_Robe Construction, Inc.                  _                                      
______________________________

Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Human Rights Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is in compliance with Title 7 of the 
1964 Civil Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act as amended.

_Robe, Inc                            _                              ____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act

The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant to section 3 
of the Illinois Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free 
workplace for all employees engaged in the performance of the work under the contract by 
complying with the requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further 
certifies, that it is not ineligible for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a 
violation of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act.

_ Robe, Inc                                                          ________________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Page | 454AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Certificate Regarding Sexual Harassment Policy

The undersigned does hereby certify pursuant to section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 
(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a 
minimum, the following information:  (i) the illegality of sexual harassment;  (ii) the 
definition of sexual harassment under State law;  (iii) a description of sexual harassment, 
utilizing examples;  (iv) an internal complaint process including penalties;  (v) the legal 
recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department of Human 
Rights and Human Rights Commission;  (vi) direction on how to contact the Department of 
Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; and  (vii) protection against retaliation.
 
__ Robe Construction, Inc                                                           
_____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act

The undersigned hereby certifies that:

A. There is in place a written program which meets  or exceeds the program requirements of the 
Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635), and has provided 
a written copy thereof to the Village of Tinley Park.

B. There is in place a collective bargaining agreement which deals with the subject matter of 
the Substance Abuse Prevention on Public Works Projects Act (P.A. 95-0635)

(Cross out either A or B depending upon which certification is correct)

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                        
_____________________________                       __________________________      
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with Prevailing Wage Requirements

The undersigned hereby certifies that:
This contract calls for the construction of a “public work,” within the meaning of the Illinois 
Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”). The Act requires contractors and 
subcontractors to pay laborers, workers and mechanics performing services on public works 
projects no less than the current “prevailing rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus amount for 
fringe benefits) in the county where the work is performed. The Department publishes the 
prevailing wage rates on its website at http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/rates/rates.HTM. The 

Page | 455AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Department revises the prevailing wage rates and the contractor/subcontractor has an obligation to 
check the Department’s web site for revisions to prevailing wage rates. For information regarding 
current prevailing wage rates, please refer to the Illinois Department of Labor’s website. All 
contractors and subcontractors rendering services under this contract must comply with all 
requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage requirements and notice and record 
keeping duties.

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                   
_____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

Certificate of Compliance with the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance

The undersigned or the entity making the proposal or bid has reviewed and is in compliance with 
the Village of Tinley Park Responsible Bidder Ordinance No. 2022-O-032

_ Robe Construction, Inc                                                         
____________________________
Name of Contractor (please print) Submitted by (signature)

______________________________
Title

[Signature Page to Follow]

Page | 456AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Robe Construction, Inc   

BY:
Date

Printed Name:

Title:

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Michael W. Glotz, Village President Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

ATTEST:

Village Clerk Date
(required if Contract is $20,000 or more)

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

BY:
Village Manager Date

Page | 457AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Attached Scope of work for the Public Safety Building Boiler Replacements:

 Village of Tinley Park – Public Safety Building Boiler replacements.

Page | 458AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Exhibit B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

(See Risk Manager for Insurance Requirements)

Page | 459AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form A

Subcontractors who will Perform Work on the Project

Name Address Work to be Performed

Page | 460AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form B

Individuals who will perform work on the project

List all individuals who will perform work on this project with the following information:

Individual is an employee (E) or independent contractor (I);
Individual’s trade classification (indicate apprenticeship status where appropriate);
Employee (E) is covered under Contractor’s current workers’ compensation (WC) policy;
Employee’s (E) county of residence.

Name E/I Trade WC - Y/N County of residence

Page | 461AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Form C
Additional Information Required
If required in the bid specifications, Contractor shall complete items I and/or II below:

Statement of past three (3) years experience on public construction projects.

Public Body/
Project Name/Year

Reference Name/ 
Phone #

Original Price/
Final price Subcontractors

Page | 462AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



List any determinations by a court or governmental agency for violations of federal, state or local 
laws, including but not limited to violations of contracting or antitrust laws, tax or licensing laws, 
environmental laws, the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA), the National Labor 
Relations Act (NLRA), or federal Davis-Bacon and related Acts.

Date Law Determination Penalty

Page | 463AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ROBEI-2 OP ID: CBE

08/01/2023

Bulow Group Certificate Team
The Bulow Group
18521 Spring Creek Road Unit B
Tinley Park, IL 60477
Robert Randick

708-258-5448 708-377-4178
coi@thebulowgroup.com

Auto- Owners Insurance
Nationwide

Robe, Inc.
6150 N. Northwest Hwy
Chicago, IL 60631

Cincinnati Insurance

A X 1,000,000
X X 07570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 50,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000

X X 2,000,000

1,000,000A
50570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024

X
X X

XX 10,000,000A
5057069602 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 10,000,000

0X
XA

07241050 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 1,000,000
Y 1,000,000

1,000,000
A 07570696 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 Rented 32,000
B Builders Risk CIM13152Z 01/03/2023 01/03/2024 Limit 500,000

Re: All Work Performed for the Village of Tinley Park                       
Additional Insured as respects General Liability as required by written &   
signed contract:Village of Tinley Park                                      
                                                                            

VOTINLE

Village of Tinley Park
16250 Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

708-258-5448

18988
23787
10677

Equipment Floater

Page | 464AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler ReplacementJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

19013

DPW-2023-02

July 15, 2023

$128,552.06

City of Naperville - Robe, Inc.

Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name:

01 - General Requirements: $5,456.88

22 - Plumbing: $17,715.36

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $105,026.93

26 - Electrical: $352.89

$128,552.06Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Page | 465AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

July 15, 2023

DPW-2023-02

19013

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

0.8315-Option 3 - Normal Working Hours, 1.0000-No AdjustmentAdjustment Factor(s) Used:

Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

City of Naperville - Robe, Inc.

$128,552.06

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base cost to the actual 

Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, list each one 

separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warranty, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt shall be submitted with 

the Price Proposal.

1 $1,200.00EA

Installation =x x $1,200.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0000$1.00 1,200.00

User Note: P & P Bond

01  22   20   00 0010 ElectricianFor tasks not included in the Construction Task Catalog® and as 

directed by owner only.

2 $1,266.14HR

Installation =x x $1,266.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$95.17 16.00

01  22   23   00 1050 6 CY Rear Dump Truck With Full-Time Truck Driver3 $1,733.71DAY

Installation =x x $1,733.71
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$1,042.52 2.00

01  66   19   00 0005 Transfer Delivered Materials Distances Greater Than 125', Per CY Of Material 

Per 125'

4 $117.74CY

Installation =x x $117.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$7.08 20.00

01  66   19   00 0010 Transfer Demolition Debris Distances Greater Than 125', Per CY Of Material Per 

125'

5 $117.74CY

Installation =x x $117.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$7.08 20.00

01  71   13   00 0003 Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A Tractor 

Trailer With Up To 53' BedIncludes loading, tie-down of equipment, delivery of 

equipment, off loading on site, rigging, dismantling, loading for return and 

transporting away. For equipment such as bulldozers, motor scrapers, hydraulic 

excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, heavy duty construction 

loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, straight mast construction 

forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction forklifts, telescoping and 

articulating boom man lifts with >40' boom lengths, etc.

6 $580.52EA

Installation =x x $580.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$698.16 1.00

01  74   13   00 0003 Collect Existing Debris And Load Into Truck Or DumpsterPer CY of debris 

removed.

7 $441.03CY

Installation =x x $441.03
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$26.52 20.00

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $5,456.88

22 - Plumbing

 2.00

Page 1 of 5

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 466AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

DPW-2023-02Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  11   16   00 0393 2" Hard Drawn Type K Copper Tube/Pipe8 $2,040.50LF

Installation =x x $1,519.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$18.28 100.00

Demolition x x = $520.52 0.8315$6.26 100.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0393 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add9 Mod $236.98LF

Installation =x x $236.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$2.85 100.00

22  11   16   00 0444 2" 90 Degree Copper Elbow10 $1,067.73EA

Installation =x x $715.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$86.05 10.00

Demolition x x = $352.22 0.8315$42.36 10.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0444 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add11 Mod $158.32EA

Installation =x x $158.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$19.04 10.00

22  11   16   00 0474 2" 45 Degree Copper Elbow12 $843.14EA

Installation =x x $561.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$84.39 8.00

Demolition x x = $281.78 0.8315$42.36 8.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0474 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add13 Mod $126.65EA

Installation =x x $126.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$19.04 8.00

22  11   16   00 0504 2" Reducing Copper Tee14 $320.51EA

Installation =x x $219.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$132.21 2.00

Demolition x x = $100.64 0.8315$60.52 2.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0504 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add15 Mod $45.28EA

Installation =x x $45.28
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$27.23 2.00

22  11   16   00 0516 2" Copper Coupling16 $1,435.58EA

Installation =x x $911.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$73.12 15.00

Demolition x x = $523.60 0.8315$41.98 15.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0516 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add17 Mod $237.48EA

Installation =x x $237.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$19.04 15.00

22  11   16   00 0530 2" Reducing Copper Coupling18 $380.39EA

Installation =x x $247.32
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$74.36 4.00

Demolition x x = $133.07 0.8315$40.01 4.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

Page 2 of 5

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 467AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

DPW-2023-02Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

22 - Plumbing

22  11   16   00 0530 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add19 Mod $59.90EA

Installation =x x $59.90
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$18.01 4.00

22  11   16   00 0545 2" Male Copper Adapter20 $238.67EA

Installation =x x $159.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$96.18 2.00

Demolition x x = $78.73 0.8315$47.34 2.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0545 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add21 Mod $35.55EA

Installation =x x $35.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$21.38 2.00

22  11   16   00 0557 2" Female Copper Adapter22 $249.23EA

Installation =x x $170.51
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$102.53 2.00

Demolition x x = $78.73 0.8315$47.34 2.00

User Note: Piping and fittings

22  11   16   00 0557 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add23 Mod $35.55EA

Installation =x x $35.55
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$21.38 2.00

22  13   16   00 0509 4" Schedule 40 Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) DWV Pipe AssemblyIncludes all 

fittings, couplings and hangers. Fittings are assumed every 10'. Not for use 

where detail is available.

24 $1,290.49LF

Installation =x x $1,057.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$31.79 40.00

Demolition x x = $233.15 0.8315$7.01 40.00

User Note: • Furnish new Schedule 40 PVC Flue Pipe.

22  13   16   00 0509 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add25 Mod $217.19LF

Installation =x x $217.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$6.53 40.00

22  34   36   19 0029 250 MBH Input, 100 Gallon, ASME Rated Tank, 95% Efficiency, Power-Vent, 

Condensing Gas Fired Commercial Water Heater (BTH-250A)

26 $8,696.22EA

Installation =x x $8,294.48
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$9,975.32 1.00

Demolition x x = $401.74 0.8315$483.15 1.00

User Note: Furnish & install one (1) A.O. Smith Cyclone 199KBTU 100-gallon water heater to match existing.

Subtotal for 22 - Plumbing: $17,715.36

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  05   23   00 0090 2" Threaded Or Sweated, 125 LB, Regular Port, Carbon Steel Trim, Brass Body, 

Ball Valve

27 $522.25EA

Installation =x x $463.18
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$139.26 4.00

Demolition x x = $59.07 0.8315$17.76 4.00

User Note: Misc Valves

23  05   23   00 0090 For Full Port, Add28 Mod $75.60EA

Installation =x x $75.60
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$22.73 4.00

Page 3 of 5

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 468AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

DPW-2023-02Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC)

23  05   23   00 0090 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add29 Mod $88.54EA

Installation =x x $88.54
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$26.62 4.00

23  05   93   00 0037 Water Balance, Pumps30 $673.07EA

Installation =x x $673.07
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$269.82 3.00

23  05   93   00 0043 Water Balance, Boiler, Up To 500 MBH31 $972.17EA

Installation =x x $972.17
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$584.59 2.00

23  07   19   00 0008 2" Diameter Pipe, 1" Thick Calcium Silicate Insulation32 $1,509.17LF

Installation =x x $1,218.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$14.65 100.00

Demolition x x = $291.03 0.8315$3.50 100.00

23  07   19   00 0008 For Work In Restricted Working Space, Add33 Mod $218.68LF

Installation =x x $218.68
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$2.63 100.00

23  21   23   13 0013 Centrifugal, Cast Iron Circulating Pump 3/4 HP34 $1,997.71EA

Installation =x x $1,676.14
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$1,007.90 2.00

Demolition x x = $321.57 0.8315$193.37 2.00

User Note: Furnish & install two (2) Bell & Gossett circulating pumps

23  21   23   23 0002 50 GPM Cast Iron Turbine Pump, 3" Discharge 100' Head, 10 Stage, 2 HP35 $4,247.62EA

Installation =x x $3,693.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$4,441.94 1.00

Demolition x x = $554.14 0.8315$666.44 1.00

User Note: Furnish & install one (1) Bell & Gosset 2 H.P. house pump

23  52   16   13 0040 1,840 MBH 92% Efficient, Gas Fired, Stainless Steel Firetube, Condensing 

Boiler (Lochinvar Crest FBN2000)

36 $93,433.86EA

Installation =x x $91,360.86
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$54,937.38 2.00

Demolition x x = $2,073.00 0.8315$1,246.54 2.00

User Note: Furnish & install two (2) Lochinvar Knight XL 399KBTU 92% efficient boilers to match existing.

23  52   16   16 0050 Optional Condensate Neutralization Tank For GB312 (Buderus 63035899)37 $1,288.26EA

Installation =x x $1,288.26
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$774.66 2.00

User Note: Furnish & install two (2) new Neutralizer kits.

Subtotal for 23 - Heating, Ventilating, And Air-Conditioning (HVAC): $105,026.93

26 - Electrical

26  01   20   91 0002 Lock Out/Tag Out Local Disconnect38 $79.82EA

Installation =x x $79.82
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$24.00 4.00

26  01   20   91 0003 Lock Out/Tag Out Breaker Or Motor Starter39 $59.87EA

Installation =x x $59.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$24.00 3.00

Page 4 of 5

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 469AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Tinley Park- Public Safety Boiler Replacement

DPW-2023-02Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

26 - Electrical

26  01   20   91 0004 Lock Out/Tag Out Tags40 $13.80EA

Installation =x x $13.80
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$4.15 4.00

26  05   83   00 0134 3/4 HP AC Motor Single Phase, 230 Volt Motor/Equipment, Connection, 

Termination And Rotation Testing

41 $123.53EA

Installation =x x $123.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$74.28 2.00

User Note: 2 circulating pumps

26  05   83   00 0137 2 HP AC Motor Single Phase, 230 Volt Motor/Equipment, Connection, 

Termination And Rotation Testing

42 $75.87EA

Installation =x x $75.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 0.8315$91.24 1.00

User Note: 1 house pump

Subtotal for 26 - Electrical: $352.89

$128,552.06Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 5 of 5

7/15/2023

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Page | 470AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 471AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 472AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 473AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 474AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 475AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 476AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 477AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 478AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 479AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 480AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 481AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 482AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 483AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 484AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 485AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 486AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 487AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 488AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 489AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 490AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 491AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 492AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 493AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 494AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 495AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 496AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 497AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 498AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 499AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 500AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 501AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 502AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 503AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 504AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 505AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 506AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 507AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 508AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 509AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 510AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 511AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 512AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 513AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 514AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 515AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 516AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 517AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 518AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 519AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 520AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 521AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 522AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 523AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 524AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 525AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 526AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 527AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 528AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 529AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 530AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 531AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 532AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 533AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 534AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 535AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 536AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 537AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 538AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 539AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 540AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 541AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 542AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 543AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 544AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 545AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 546AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 547AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 548AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 549AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 550AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 551AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 552AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 553AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 554AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 555AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 556AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 557AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 558AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 559AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 560AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 561AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 562AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 563AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 564AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 565AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 566AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 567AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 568AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 569AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 570AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 571AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 572AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 573AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 574AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 575AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 576AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 577AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 578AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 579AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

STAFF 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 580AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
BOARD 

COMMENT 
 

Page | 581AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 582AGENDA - 8/15/2023,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

EXECUTIVE 
SESSION 

 


	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7
	ITEM #2 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM #3 - President Glotz and Clerk O'Connor
	ITEM #4 - President Glotz
	ITEM #5 - Consent - A
	ITEM #5 - Consent - B
	ITEM #5 - Consent - C
	ITEM #5 - Consent - D
	ITEM #5 - Consent - E
	ITEM #5 - Consent - F
	ITEM #5 - Consent - G
	ITEM #5 - Consent - H
	ITEM #6 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #7 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #8 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Mahoney
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #13 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #14 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #15 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #16 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #17 - Board Comment
	ITEM #18 - Public Comment
	Executive Session



